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(a)

(b)

NOTICE OF THE 62N> ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the SIXTY
SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of
the members of RSD FINANCE LIMITED
(“the Company”) will be held on FRIDAY,
SEPTEMBER 26, 2025 AT 11.00 AM (IST)
at Professional - I, The Alcor Hotel, 2nd Floor,
H. No - 4, Ramdas Bhatta, Bistupur,
Jamshedpur, Purbi Singhbhum, Jharkhand -
831001. The following business will be
transacted at the meeting: -

Adoption of the Audited Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company.

To receive, consider and adopt:

the Audited Standalone Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 together with the reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon;
and

the  Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 together with
the reports of the Auditors thereon.

Appointment of Ms. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal
(DIN: 00052100), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment as a Director.

To consider and if thought fit, pass with or
without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and the rules made there under
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force)
Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur  Dugal (DIN:
00052100), who retires by rotation at this
meeting and being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

Appointment of Statutory Auditor of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the
following Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 139, 142 and other

applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force), M/s. S D Y & Co. Chartered
Accountants  (Firm’s Registration No.
016850C) be and are hereby re-appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
term of 5 (Five) consecutive years to hold
office from the conclusion of this 62nd
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion
of the 67th Annual General Meeting of the
Company, at such remuneration (exclusive
of applicable taxes and reimbursement of
out of pocket expenses) as shall be fixed by
the Board of Directors of the Company from
time to time in consultation with them.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

Appointment of Mr. Sital Prasad Swain,
Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership
No. F6338, CP No. 6814), (Peer review Number
6863/2025) as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) read with Rule 9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act
(including any statutory modifications,
amendments or re-enactments thereto), and
further read with Regulation 24A of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended to date, consent
of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
the appointment of Mr. Sital Prasad Swain,
Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership
No. F6338, CP No. 6814), (Peer review
Number 6863/2025), as the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company from the conclusion
of 62nd AGM till the conclusion of 67thAGM,
to carry out the Secretarial Audit for a
period of five consecutive financial years i.e.,
from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 on such
terms of remuneration, including
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses,
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as may be mutually agreed to between the
Board of Directors of the Company and the
Secretarial Auditor.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the
Company be and is accorded to the Board of
Directors to do all such acts, deeds and things
and to execute all such documents, instruments
and writings, as may be required, to give effect
to the aforesaid resolution.”

5. Re-appointment of Managing Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or
without  modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, in
pursuance of the relevant provisions of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in
force), as per the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company and subject to the
approvals, consents and permissions and in
pursuance to recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(‘NRC’) and that of Board of Directors (‘Board’),
the consent of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Rajeev
Singh Dugal (DIN: 00052037) as Managing
Director of the Company for a period of 5 years
with effect from 22nd July, 2025 upto 21st July,
2030, whose period of office shall not be liable
to retire by rotation, with the powers to the
Board to alter, amend, vary and modify the
terms and conditions of the said appointment.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the
remuneration payable by the Company along
with its subsidiaries to Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal,
Managing Director of the Company effecting
from his re-appointment shall not exceed Rs.
10,00,000/-(Rupees Ten Lakhs only) in respect
of any Financial Year.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to take all necessary steps and
actions, do all such acts, deeds and things, and
sign and file necessary forms, returns or
documents, including e-Forms with the
Registrar of Companies, to give effect to this
resolution.”

6. Continuation of Malkeet Singh Saini as a
Non-Executive Independent Director of the
company attaining 75 years as on May,
2026

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation
17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, approval of
the Members be and is hereby granted for the
continuation of appointment of Mr. Malkeet
Singh Saini (DIN): 02592649 as a ‘Non-
Executive, Independent Director’ of the
Company until63rd AGM to be held in the year
2026, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors of the Company is authorized to do
all such acts, deeds and things and to execute
all such documents, instruments and writings,
as may be required, to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For RSD Finance Limited

Sd/-
Rajeev Singh Dugal

Managing Director
DIN - 00052037

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: August 13, 2025
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IMPORTANT NOTES:

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to
Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”), relating to the special business to
be transacted at the Annual General Meeting
(the “AGM”) is annexed hereto. As an
additional information, the Explanatory
Statement also contains material facts
pertaining to ordinary business mentioned at
Item No. 3 of the said Notice.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY / PROXIES TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /
HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY / PROXIES NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty (50) and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the
Company. The instrument of Proxy in order
to be effective, should be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, duly
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting. A
Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies
submitted on behalf of the companies,
societies etc. must be supported by an
appropriate resolution / authority, as
applicable.

The Register of Members and the Share
Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from (Friday) 19.09.2025 to (Friday)
26.09.2025 (both days inclusive) for annual
closing for the financial year 2024-25.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members
are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address
or demise of any member as soon as possible,
Members are also advised not to leave their
demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic
statement of holdings should be obtained
from the concerned Depository Participant
and holding should be verified.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in securities market. Members
holding

shares in electronic form are, therefore,
requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts. Members

holding shares in physical form can submit
their PAN details to the Company.

Details under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the
Directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment at the Annual General Meeting,
forms integral part of the Notice. The
Directors have furnished the requisite
declarations for their appointment/re-
appointment.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the
year 2024-25 is being sent to all the
members whose email IDs are registered
with the Company/Depository Participant(s)
for communication purposes unless any
member has requested for a hard copy of the
same. For members who have not registered
their email address, physical copies of the
Annual Report for the year 2024-25 is being
sent in the permitted mode.

Electronic Copy of the Notice of the 62nd
Annual General Meeting of the Company
inter alia indicating the process and manner
of remote e-voting and e-voting along with
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent
to all the members whose email IDs are
registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s) for communication purposes
unless any member has requested for a hard
copy of the same. For members who have not
registered their email address, physical
copies of the Notice of the 62nd Annual
General Meeting of the Company inter alia
indicating the process and manner of e -
voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Notice of the
62ndAnnual General Meeting and the Annual
Report for the year 2024-25 will also be
available on the Company’s website
www.indiantoners.com for their download.
The physical copies of the aforesaid
documents will also be available at the
Company’s Registered Office for inspection
during normal business hours on working
days. Even after registering for e-
communication, members are entitled to
receive such communication in physical
form, upon making a request for the same, by
post free of cost. For any communication, the
shareholders may also send requests to the
Company’s email id:
rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com.

In compliance with the provisions of Section
108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
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Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is
pleased to offer the facility of voting through
electronic means. The cut-off date for
determining the eligibility to vote by
electronic means or by ballot in the general
meeting shall be 19.09.2025. The members
attending the meeting who have not already
cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be
able to exercise their right at the meeting in
terms of notification issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated 19.03.2015.

The Company has appointed Mr. Sital Prasad
Swain, Practicing Company Secretary
(Membership No. F6338 and CP No - 6814),
to act as the Scrutinizer for remote e voting
on the date of the AGM in a fair and
transparent manner.

The Company shall submit the voting result
to the stock exchange, withintwo working
days of conclusion of its Annual General
Meeting. The Results declared along with the
report of the Scrutinizer shall be hosted on
the website of the Company
www.rsdfinancelimited.com and on the
website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com
immediately after the declaration of result
and will also be communicated to the
Bombay Stock Exchange and Calcutta Stock
Exchange.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of
votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to
have been passed on the date of the AGM i.e.,
September 26, 2025.

Copies of the Annual Report will not be
distributed at the AGM. Members are,
therefore, requested to bring their copies of
the Annual Report to the AGM.

The route map showing directions to reach to
the venue of the 62nd AGM is given at the
end of this Notice as per the requirement of
the Secretarial Standards 2.

names and address of the Stock Exchanges
where at the Company’s Equity hare are
listed, are given below: -

Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
7, Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Floor 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

PROCEDURES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING: -

The remote e-voting period begins on
Monday, 22nd September, 2025 at 09:00
AM. and ends on Thursday, 25th
September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled
by NSDL for voting thereafter. The
Members, whose names appear in the
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners
as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e.
19th September, 2025, may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of
shareholders shall be in proportion to
their share in the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off
date, being 19th September, 2025.
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How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of Login Method

shareholders
Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL
Shareholders holding Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer

securities in demat

or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the
mode with NSDL.

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under
‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User
ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be
able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services,
option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.
Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your
sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting experience.
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NSDL Mobile App is available on

.' App Store ' Google Play

Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login

Shareholders holding through their existing user id and password. Option will be
securities in demat

made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
mode with CDSL

authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi
username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is
in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register
is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on
login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration
option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile
& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders (holding | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
securities in demat | Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
mode) login through | Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
their depository | Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
participants Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.
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Login type Helpdesk details

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at
022 - 4886 7000

Individual

Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL

securities in demat helpdesk by sending a request at
mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800
225533

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you
can log-in at https:// eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e.
cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares Your User ID is:
i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL)

or Physical

a) For Members who hold
shares in demat account with
NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client
ID is 12***** then your wuser ID is

b) For Members who hold
shares in demat account with
CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

2¥sprkicokaiRik - then  your user ID  is
12**************

c¢) For Members holding
shares in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and
cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to

enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
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(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and
your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. 0nce you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
General Guidelines for shareholders
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
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Scrutinizer by e-mail to sitalpr@yahoo.co.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution /
Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority
Letter” displayed under "e-Voting” tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and
e voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com
or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at
evoting@nsdl.com.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to our RTA in skcdilip@gmail.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode,
you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting
for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. Any person who becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of the Meeting and
holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 19.09.2025, may obtain the User ID and password in the
manner as mentioned below: If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against
Folio No. / DP ID Client ID, then on the home page of https://evoting.nsdl.com, the member may click
“Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to generate a password. Member
may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in If the member is already registered with NSDL e-
voting platform then he can use his existing User ID and password for casting the vote through
remote e-voting.

5. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company during normal business hours (9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days, up to
and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

6. Members, who hold shares in de-materialized form, are requested to bring their client ID and DP ID
Nos. for easier Identification of attendance at the Meeting.

7. In all correspondence with the Company members are requested to quote their Account / Folio
Numbers and in case their Shares are held in the dematerialized form they must quote their Client ID
No. and their DP ID No.

8. Members, desirous of availing electronic form of delivery of balance sheet and other related
documents are requested to update their E - mail address with the Registrar and Transfer Agents or
with the Company by a written request.

9. Pursuant to General Circulars Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020 and 20/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April,
2020 and 5th May, 2020 respectively issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 issued by Securities and
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10.

11.

Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”), Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for the FY
2024-25 are being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/ Depositories.

We urge members to support our commitment to environmental protection by choosing to receive
the Company’s communication through email. Members holding shares in demat mode, who have not
registered their email addresses are requested to register their email addresses with their respective
DP, and members holding shares in physical mode are requested to update their email addresses
with the Company’s RTA M/s. S. K. Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd. at skcdilip@gmail.com, to receive copies of
the Annual Report 2024-25 in electronic mode. Members may follow the process detailed below for
registration of email ID to obtain the report.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail
address, telephone / mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, power of attorney registration,
Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA
in prescribed Form ISR-1.

Type of holder Process to be followed

Physical Holders For availing the following investor services, send a written request in the
prescribed forms to the RTA of the Company, M/s. S. K. Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd. either by email to
skcdilip@gmail.comor by post to D/42,Katju Nagar (Near South City Mall),Ground Floor, Katju Nagar
Bazar, Jadavpur, Kolkata -700032. Form for availing investor services to register PAN, email address,
bank details and other KYC details or changes / update thereof for securities held in physical mode:

Form ISR-1

Request for registering PAN, KYC details or changes / updation thereof
Form ISR-2

Confirmation of Signature of securities holder by the Banker

Form ISR-3

Declaration Form for Opting-out of Nomination by holders of physical securities in Listed Companies.
Form SH-13

Nomination Form

Form SH-14

Cancellation or variation of Nomination

Demat Holders

Please contact your DP and register your email address and bank account details in your demat
account, as per the process advised by your DP.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November
3, 2021. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-POD 1/P/CIR/2021/655 dated March 16, 2023, SEBI vide these
circulars have mandated, the submission of PAN by every participant in securities market. Address
with PIN code, Email address, Mobile No. Bank Account details of the first holder, Specimen
Signature and Nomination by holders of physical securities, in case not recorded for the Folio(s), and
that “From January 1, 2022, the RTAs shall not process any service requests or complaints received
from the holder(s)/claimant(s), till PAN, KYC and Nomination documents/details are received”.

10
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Accordingly, Shareholders are requested to furnish the above details in respective Form ISR-1, ISR-2,
ISR-3, SH-13 and SH-14 which can be obtained from our RTA M/s. S. K. Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd.

2. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for submitting nomination is available for
members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their
nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13.. Members are
requested to submit these details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in electronic form
and to the RTA, in case the shares are held in physical form.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For RSD Finance Limited

Sd/-

Rajeev Singh Dugal

Managing Director

DIN-00052037
Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 13.08.2025

11
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Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the companies act, 2013:
Item No. 3 of the Notice
Appointment of Statutory Auditor of the Company

After evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit
team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc.,, the Board of Directors of the Company
(‘Board’) has, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, proposed the appointment of S
DY & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 016850C), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for the
consecutive term of five years from the conclusion of 62nd AGM till the conclusion of 67t AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2030, at a remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the
Board and the Statutory Auditors.

S D Y & Co. have consented to their appointment as the Statutory Auditors and have confirmed that
the appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act and
that they are not disqualified to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors in terms of the provisions of
Section 139 and 141 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

The Board, in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and conditions of
appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed
with the Statutory Auditors.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution at Item No. 3 of the accompanying
Notice.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommends the Ordinary
Resolution set forth at Item No.3 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Item No. 4 of the Notice
To appoint Secretarial Auditor of the Company

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment (s) thereof, for the
time being in force) (‘the Act’), every listed company and certain other prescribed categories of
companies are required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Practicing Company
Secretary, to their Board’s report, prepared under Section 134(3) of the Act. Furthermore, pursuant
to recent amendment to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), every listed
entity must appoint a Secretarial Audit firm for a maximum period of two terms of five consecutive
years, with shareholders approval to be obtained at the Annual General Meeting.

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 as
notified on 12th December, 2024, provides that appointment of Secretarial Auditor will be made for a
term not exceeding five consecutive years in case of individual Secretarial Auditor and not more than
two terms of five consecutive years in case of appointment/reappointment of a Secretarial Audit Firm
and all such appointment/reappointments will be subject to approval of the shareholders of the
Company in the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board at its meeting held an August 13, 2025, based on recommendation of the Audit
Committee, after evaluating and considering various factors such as Industry experience, competency
of the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, Independence, etc., has approved the appointment of
Appointment of Mr. Sital Prasad Swain, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. F6338, CP
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No. 6814), (Peer review Number 6863/2025) as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of 5
consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 until FY 2029-30, subject to approval of members.
Furthermore, in terms of the amended regulations, Mr. Sital Prasad Swain has provided a
confirmation that he has subjected himself to the peer review process of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and holds a valid peer review certificate and that he has no conflict of interest. He
has provided his consent to act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and has confirmed that the
proposed appointment, if made, will be in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution at Item No. 4 of the accompanying
Notice.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommends the Ordinary
Resolution set forth at Item No.4 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Item No. 05 of the Notice
Re-appointment of Managing Director

Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal (DIN: 00052037) was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation for a period of five years with effect from 22 July 2020. Further, the
shareholders approved the re-appointment in the AGM held on December 30, 2020 in a
remuneration as per limit prescribed by Sec 197 of the Companies Act read.

Furthermore, in terms of Regulation 17 (6) (e) of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015,his remuneration
was approved by the shareholders in the AGM held on September 30, 2022 up to Rs. 10,00,000/- per
month by the company along with all subsidiary companies on an individual basis in respect of any
FY.

Profile

Mr. Dugal is an accomplished business owner with a keen interest in the securities and investments
market and is always open for exploring new fields and varied opportunities. He is running a heat-
treatment facility, a Non-Banking Financial Corporation (NBFC), and a hospitality business. He has a
Postgraduate Diploma in Business Management (PGDM) from XLRI (Xavier Labour Relations
Institute), Jamshedpur and has completed his B. Com (Hons) from the Hans Raj College, University of
Delhi. Mr. Dugal is associated with Confederation of Indian Industry (CII), Automotive Component
Manufacturing Associations (ACMA), Indo-American Chamber of Commerce (IACC) and the Hotel &
Restaurant Association of Eastern India (HRAEI). He is the President of Jamshedpur Hotelier’s
Association.

Based on the performance evaluation of the Managing Director, considering his knowledge of various
aspects relating to the Company’s affairs and long business experience, given the background and
contribution made by him during his tenure and for smooth and efficient running of the business and
as per the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board considers
that the continued association of Mr. Dugal would be beneficial to the Company. Accordingly, it is
proposed to appoint Mr. Dugal as the Managing Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation
and to hold office for a term of 5 (five) years on the Board of the Company with effect from 22 July
2025 to 21 July 2030.

Remuneration

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the 59th AGM held on 30th September, 2022, the total
managerial payment of remuneration by the company along with its subsidiaries in excess of sub-
limits prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 of the Act, to its managerial personnel
&Executive Directors or members of promoter group, shall not exceed Rs. 10,00,000/- per month on
an individual basis in respect of any financial year which is subject to effective till the expiry of the
respective term of such Executive Directors& managerial personnel.

Further, the tenure of Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal is expired on 21.07.2025 and is re-appointed for further
5 years w.e.f 22.07.2025. Accordingly, approval of the members is being sought for the special
resolution for the payment of remuneration to Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal, Managing Director of the

13



RSD FINANCE LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

company in excess of sub-limits prescribed under the Section of 197 of the Act and in terms of
Regulation 17(6)(e)of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations which shall not exceed Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees
Ten Lakhs) per month in respect of any Financial Year.

Except Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal, Ms. Upneet Dugal and Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal and their relatives,
none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, are
concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 05 for approval of the Members.
Item No. 6 of the Notice

Continuation of Malkeet Singh Saini as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the
company attaining 75 years as on May, 2026

Pursuant to sub-regulation (1A) of Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inserted by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018, approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution is necessary for
appointment / continuation of appointment of any Non-Executive Director who has attained the age
of 75 (Seventy Five) years, provided that the listed entity shall ensure compliance with this sub-
regulation at the time of appointment or re-appointment or any time prior to the non-executive
director attaining the age of seventy- five years.

Accordingly, Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini who is attaining the age of 75 years as on May 2026 and shall
hold office until the date of 63rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the year 2026,
subject to approval of members.

The Members of the Company, at their Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2023 granted
approval for appointment of Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini (DIN): 02592649 as a “Non-Executive,
Independent Director” of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years w.e.f. September 30, 2023, upto the
AGM in the year 2028, not liable to retire by rotation.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors has recommended the
continuation of Mr. Malkeet Singh Sani as an “Independent Director” of the Company, considering his
rich experience, expertise and valuable contribution made to the Board of Directors of the Company
until the 63 AGM to be held in the year 2026.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives (except Mr.
Malkeet Singh Saini) is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
aforementioned resolution.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 06 for approval of the Members.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For RSD Finance Limited

Sd/-

Rajeev Singh Dugal

Managing Director

DIN-00052037

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 13.08.2025
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE CONVENING 62ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Details of Directors Retiring by Rotation/seeking appointment/Re-appointment

Particulars

Nationality

Date of Birth

Age

Qualifications

Expertise in specific functional area

Terms & conditions of Appointment &
Remuneration

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting fees,
if any)

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Date of first Appointment on the Board

Number of shares held in the Company as on
31st March, 2025

Relationships with other Directors/ Key
Managerial Personnel

Number of meeting of Board attended during the
year

Directorships of other Boards as on
March 31, 2025

Chairman / Member of the Committee of
Directors of other Public Limited Companies in
which he / she is a Director

Name of the listed entities from which the
Director has resigned in the past 3 years

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 13.08.2025

Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal

Indian

26/07/1964

61 years

Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy & Psychology.
Expertise in Business Management, Administration
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, liable to
retire by rotation

NIL

NIL
13th August, 2020

NIL

Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal is spouse of Mr. Rajeev
Singh Dugal and mother of Ms. Upneet Dugal

Ten (10)

Two
1.SRP 0il Private Limited
2.Precision Automotive Private Limited

Chairman - NIL
Member - NIL

NIL

By Order of the Board of Directors
For RSD Finance Limited

Sd/-

Rajeev Singh Dugal
Managing Director
DIN- 00052037
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Sixty Second Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone as well as Consolidated) for the
year ended March 31, 2025.

1. KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 in
conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 from 1st April, 2019:

(Amt. in lakhs except EPS)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 875.12 957.22 13000.62 10311.27
Other Income 4.50 280.19 499.70 810.01
Total Income 879.62 1237.41 13500.32 11121.28
Less :Total Expenses 214.94 270.56 10964.02 8935.46
Profit before tax & 664.68 966.85 253630 2185.82
Extraordinary items
Add: Extraordinary Items - - - -
Less: Tax Expenses 152.44 204.70 754.83 445.53
Profit after tax 512.24 762.15 1781.47 1740.29
Add: Other
Comprehensive (27.36) 48.50 25.49 298.54
Income/(loss)
Total Comprehensive 484.88 810.65 1806.96 2038.83
Income
Profit available for
appropriation
Balance of profit for 5263.10 4618.77 11199.22 9785.19
earlier years
Add: Total Comprehensive 484.88 810.65 1338.43 1627.74
Income
Less: Pr(.)ﬁt‘ available for 111 (4.20) (25.01) (282)
appropriation
Less: Proposed Dividend - - 54.40 54.40
Less: Transfer to Statutory
Reserve (96.98) (162.13) (96.98) (162.12)
Less: Transfer to Statutory ) B i A
Reserve for prior period
Eﬁi’;ce ¢/fto Balance 5652.10 5263.10 12411.28 11199.23
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

RSD Finance Limited is a Company
registered under the Companies Act, 1956.
It is registered with the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) in the category of "Non-
Banking Financial Institution - Non
Systemically Important, Non Deposit
taking Company (NBFC-ND-NSI) under the
RBI Regulations and has a certificate under
section 45 IA of the RBI Act, 1934.

As part of our business activities, we are
predominantly focused in the business of
loans and advances, acquisition of shares/
stocks/ bonds/ debentures/ securities
issued by Government or local authority or
other marketable securities of a like
nature. We also provide Job Work services.
STATUTORY DISCLAIMER

The Company is having a valid Certificate
of Registration dated May 2, 1998 issued
by the RBI under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. However,
RBI does not accept any responsibility or
guarantee about the present position as to
the financial soundness of the Company or
for the correctness of any of the
statements or representations made or
opinions expressed by the Company and
for discharge of any liability by the
Company.

Neither there is any provision in law to
keep, nor does the Company keep any part
of the deposits with RBI and by issuing a
Certificate of Registration to the Company,
RBI neither accepts any responsibility nor
guarantees the payment of deposits to any
depositor or any person who has lent any
sum to the Company.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW

On a standalone basis, the Company
achieved a turnover of Rs. 879.62 lakhs for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025 as
compared to the turnover of Rs. 1237.41
lakhs recorded during the previous
financial year ended March 31, 2024. The
Net Profit before tax and exceptional items
of your Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 664.68
Lakhs as against the Net Profit of Rs.
966.85 Lakhs for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024. Basic earnings per share
work out to Rs. 3.75 compared to Rs. 6.26
in the previous year.

On a consolidated basis, your Company
recorded a total income of Rs. 13500.32

Lakhs during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 as compared to the
income of Rs. 11121.28 lakhs recorded
during the previous financial year ended
March 31, 2024 and gained a consolidated
Net profit before tax of Rs. 2526.36 Lakhs
for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 as against the Net Profit of Rs.
2185.82 Lakhs for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

In accordance with the provisions of
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Annual Report of the Company,
containing therein its Consolidated and
Standalone Financial Statements are
available on the website of the Company at
web link www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

Any member who is interested in
obtaining a copy of the Annual Report may
write to the Company at the Registered
Office of the Company. Further, a detailed
analysis of Company’s performance is
included in the Management Discussion
and Analysis, which forms part of this
Annual report.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF THE
BUSINESS

There have been no changes in the nature
of the business of the Company or the
subsidiaries during the year under review.
FUTURE PROSPECTS

The state of Company’s affair and future
outlook is discussed in the Management
Discussion & Analysis section of this
Annual Report.

DIVIDEND

Your  Director's regret for not
recommending any Dividend on Equity
Shares of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March, 2025.
UNCLAIMED/UNPAID DIVIDEND

In terms of the provisions of Section
124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company did not have any
unclaimed/unpaid dividend which was/is
required to be transferred to the Investors
Education and Protection Fund.

RESERVES

The Company proposes to transfer Rs.
96.98 lakhs to the statutory reserves and
an amount of Rs. 5652.10 lakhs is
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

proposed to be retained in the P/L account
during the Financial Year 2024-25.
SHARE CAPITAL

The Equity shares of the Company are
listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE) and the Calcutta Stock Exchange
(CSE). The paid-up Equity Share Capital as
on March 31, 2025 was Rs. 6.47 crores.

During the year under review, the
Company has not issued any shares with
differential voting rights nor has granted
any stock options or sweat equity.

As on March 31, 2025 none of the
Directors of the Company hold
instruments convertible into equity shares
of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND
COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and
commitments between the end of FY
2024-25 and the date of this report,
affecting the financial position of the
Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

Being a Non Deposit taking Non-Banking
Financial Company, your Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public
under section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year
under review and no amount on account of
principal or interest on deposits from
public was outstanding as on date of the
Balance Sheet.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents
as on March 31, 2025 is Rs. 173.70 lakhs as
compared to Rs. 205.93 lakhs as on March
31, 2024. The Company continues to
focus on judicious management of its
working capital.

Receivables and other working capital
parameters were kept under strict check
through continuous monitoring.
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES

The Company has two material
subsidiaries Precision Automotive Private
Limited and SRP Oil Private Limited and
one step down subsidiary Sigma HTS LLP.
There are no Associate or Joint venture

15.

Companies within the meaning of section
2(6) of the Companies act, 2013. There has
been no material change in the nature of
business of the subsidiaries.

No entity became or ceased to be the
subsidiary, joint venture or associate of
RSD Finance Limited during Financial Year
2024-25.

The Annual Reports of these Subsidiaries
will be made available for inspection by
any Member of the Company at the
Registered Office of your Company at
Holding No. - 4, The Alcor Hotel, Ramdas
Bhatta, Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001
during business hours on all days except,
Sundays and Public Holidays between
12.30 pm and 03.00 pm up to the date of
ensuing AGM. The Annual Reports of the
aforesaid Subsidiaries for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 shall be
provided to any Member of the Company
upon receipt of written request. In view of
the continuing statutory restrictions on
the movement of persons at several places
in the Country, Members may also send an
advance request at the e-mail id -
rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com for an electronic
inspection of the aforesaid documents.

The Annual Reports along with the
Audited Financial Statements of each of
the Subsidiaries of your Company are also
available on the website of the Company at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com

As required under Regulations 16(1) (c) &
46 of Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing  Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 “SEBI
Listing Regulations”, the Board of
Directors had approved the Policy for
determining Material Subsidiaries
(“Policy”). The details of the Policy are
available on the website of the Company
www.rsdfinancelimited.com/InvestorRela
tions/Codes/Polices

PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES

SR P OIL PRIVATE LIMITED

The Company continues to holds 52.55%
shares in SRP Oil Private Limited. SRP is a
material unlisted subsidiary Company of
RSD Finance Limited as per SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. It is engaged in the
business of the hospitality industry. It is
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ii)

iii)

carrying business in the brand name of
“The Alcor Hotel” in Jamshedpur,
Jharkhand.

Net revenue of SRP Oil decreased to Rs.
2726.10 lakhs in the Financial Year 2024-
2025 compared to Rs. 2764.38 lakhs in the
previous year. The net profit before tax
decreased to Rs. 842.47 lakhs during the
FY 2024-2025 compared to Rs. 947.93
lakhs earned in the previous year.

PRECISION AUTOMOTIVE PRIVATE
LIMITED (PAPL)

Precision Automotive Private Limited
continues to be a wholly owned material
subsidiary Company of RSD Finance
Limited. During the financial year 2024-
25, the Company earned income from
investment activities and generation and
transmission of solar energy.

The revenue from operations of PAPL was
Rs. 915.19 lakhs in the Financial Year
2024-25 compared to Rs. 505.41 lakhs
earned in the previous year. The net profit
before tax during the period was Rs.
352.08 lakhs as compared to a profit of Rs.
346.99 lakhs earned in the previous year.
SIGMA HTS LLP

SIGMA HTS is a Limited Liability
Partnership whose majority stake is held
by Precision Automotive Private Limited,
the wholly owned subsidiary of your
Company. Sigma HTS LLP deals in
providing heat treatment solutions.

During the financial year, the LLP earned
total revenue of Rs. 901549 lakhs as
compared to Rs. 6654.00 lakhs earned in
the previous year. However, during the
financial year it has earned profit of Rs.
442.45 lakhs as compared to Rs. 70.65
lakhs loss suffered in the previous year.

The Company does not have any associate
or a joint venture.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section
129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, a statement containing the
salient features of the financial Statements
of the aforesaid subsidiaries has been
provided in Form AOC-1, attached as
“Annexure - A” and forms a part of this
Report.

16.

17.

18.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In accordance with the requirements in
terms of Section 129 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with relevant Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and
Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing
Regulations”) the Company has prepared
Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with Ind AS 110 -
“Consolidated Financial Statements” and
Ind AS 27 - “Separate Financial
Statements.” The Consolidated Financial
Statements forms part of this Report.
LISTING

The Equity Shares of the Company
continue to be listed on the Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE) and the Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited (CSE). The scrip code
number of the Equity Shares of the
Company on BSE is 539875 and on CSE is
28123 respectively.

The Annual Listing Fee for the Financial
Year 2024-25 has been duly paid to both
the Stock Exchanges.

DIRECTORS

As on March 31, 2025 the Board of
Directors of your company consists of 6
Directors. Their details are as follows:

Name of Category

the

Director

Mr. Managing

Rajeev Director

Singh

Dugal

Ms. Executive

Upneet Director

Dugal

Mrs. Non-

Kawaljee Executive

tKaur Non -

Dugal Independent
Director

Mr. Independent

Malkeet Director

Singh

Saini

Dr. Rajiv Independent

Shukla Director

Mr. Independent

Pradeep Director

Kumar

Khosla

The profile of all the Directors can be
accessed on the Company’s website at
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www.rsdfinancelimited.com/companyprof
ile.

None of the Directors of the Company have
incurred any disqualification under
Section 164(2) of the Act read with Rule
14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. All
the Directors have confirmed that they are
not debarred from accessing the capital
market as well as from holding the office of
Director pursuant to any order of
Securities and Exchange Board of India or
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other
such authority.

The Board was duly constituted in
compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Listing
Regulations and provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company. In the view
of the Board, all the directors possess the
requisite  skills, expertise, integrity,
competence, as well as experience
considered to be vital for business growth.
The detailed analysis of various skills,
qualifications and attributes as required
and available with the Board has been
presented in the Corporate Governance
Report.

There were changes in the Board of
Directors of the Company during the year
which is enumerated below.

Name of | Category Cause of | Effective

the Change | Date

Director

Mr. Indepen | Resignatio | 28.09.202

Harsh dent n 4

Kumar Director

Pandey

Dr.Rajiv | Indepen | Appointm | 27.12.202

Shukla dent ent 4
Director

Retirement by rotation
Mrs. Kawaljeet KaurDugal

In accordance with the provisions of
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations
and the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal (Din -
00052100), retires by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers herself for reappointment.

19.

20.

The brief resume/details relating to
Director who is to be reappointed is
furnished in the Notice of the ensuing
AGM.

The Board of Directors on the
recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and based on
report of performance evaluation
recommends her re-appointment for the
consideration of the Members of the
Company at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Code of Conduct for Directors and
Employees

The Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for its Directors and employees
including a code of conduct for
Independent Directors which suitably
incorporates the duties of Independent
Directors as laid down in the Companies
Act, 2013. The said Codes can be accessed
on the Company’s website at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

In terms of the Listing Regulations, all
Directors and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with
their respective codes. The Managing
Director has also confirmed and certified
the same, which is provided at the end of
the Report on Corporate Governance.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year Ten meetings of the Board
were held during the year under review.
For details of meetings of the Board, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report,
which is a part of this report. The
intervening gap between the meetings was
within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In terms of Section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the following are the Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the
Company as on 31 March 2024:

Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal - Managing
Director

Mr. Ravi Joshi - Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Subhajita Biswal - Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer
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21.

22.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations
from all the Independent Directors
pursuant to the provisions of sub-section
(7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2013, confirming that they fulfill the
criteria of Independence as specified in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 16(1)(b) and 25(8) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

None of the independent directors are
aware of any circumstance or situation,
which exist or may be reasonably
anticipated, that could impair or impact
their ability to discharge their duties with
an objective independent judgment and
without any external influence. In terms of
Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
Independent Directors of the Company
have undertaken requisite steps towards
the inclusion of their names in the data
bank of Independent Directors maintained
with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs.

The board of directors have taken on
record the declaration and confirmation
submitted by the Independent Directors
after undertaking due assessment of the
same and in their opinion the Independent
Directors fulfill the conditions specified in
the Act and Listing Regulations and are
independent of the management.

The Independent Directors have complied
with the Code for Independent Directors
prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act along
with the Code of Conduct for Directors and
Senior Management Personnel formulated
by the Company as per Listing Regulations.
The Board confirms that the said
Independent Directors meet the criteria as
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013
as well as the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and have the requisite integrity,
experience and relevant experience in
their respective fields including the
proficiency required to effectively
discharge their roles and responsibilities
in directing and guiding the affairs of the
Company.

FAMILARISATION PROGRAMME

In order to encourage active participation
from the Independent Directors and also

23.

to enable them to understand the business
environment of the Company in depth and
to assist them in performing their role as
Independent Directors of the Company,
Familiarization =~ Programme for the
Independent Directors have been adopted.

Once appointed, the Independent
Directors undergo the Familiarization
Programme of the Company wherein the
necessary information and relevant
documents in respect to the industry, the
regulatory environment in which the
Company operates and the Annual Reports
of past financial years are provided to
them. The Managing Director of the
Company also has a one to one discussion
with the newly appointed Director to
familiarize him with the Company’s
culture.

Pursuant to Regulation 46 of the Listing
Regulations, the details of the
Familiarization program of the
Independent Directors are available on the
website of the Company at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com/investorr
elations/codes & policies (Path)
SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

Separate  meeting of Independent
Directors of the Company without the
presence of the Executive Directors and
the Management representatives was held
on March 04, 2025, as required under
Schedule IV to the Act (Code for
Independent Directors) and Regulation 25
(3) of the SEBI LODR. At the said meeting,
the Independent Directors inter alia,
reviewed and discussed:

- performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board of Directors as a
whole.

- performance of the Chairman of the
Company.

- assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between
the Company management and the Board
that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.

All the Independent Directors of the
Company attended the Meetings of
Independent Directors. The Independent
Directors expressed their satisfaction to
the desired level on the governance of the
Board.
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24.

B wn e

25.

(a)

(b)

()

BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board met Ten times during the
financial year. The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulation, 2015.
The details of the meetings of the Board,
attendance of Directors, etc. is given
separately in the Report of Corporate
Governance which forms part of the
report.

Board Committees

The following are the Board Committees
during the Financial Year 2024-25:

Audit Committee;

Nominations & Remuneration Committee;
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee;
Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee;

Risk Management Committee and

All  recommendations made by the
committees were approved by the Board.
The composition of each of the above
Committees, their respective roles,
attendance and responsibilities are
provided in detail in the Corporate
Governance Report

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the
audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31,
2025, the Board of Directors hereby
confirms that:

in the preparation of Annual Accounts for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025,
the applicable Ind AS have been followed
and there are no material departures from
the same;

the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at 31st March, 2025 and of the
profit and loss of the Company for the year
ended on that day;

the directors had taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of

(d)

(e)

)

26.

adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

the Annual Accounts for the year ended
31st March, 2025 have been prepared on a
“going concern” basis;

the directors had laid down internal
financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

the directors had devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

Further, there are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks made by
the Statutory Auditors/ Secretarial
Auditors in their respective reports.
BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
17(10) read with Part D of Schedule II of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirement) Regulations,
2015, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors
have formulated a policy for performance
evaluation of its own performance, of
various mandatory Committees of the
Board and of the individual Directors.

In terms of the provisions of Regulation
19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
performance evaluation process of all the
Independent  and Non-Independent
Directors of the Company was carried out
by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

Further, in terms of Regulations 17(10) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors carried out the
performance evaluation of the
Independent Directors (excluding the
Director being evaluated), its own
performance and that of its Committees.
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(M)

(i)

(iii)

27.

The Board evaluated the effectiveness of
its functioning and that of the Committees
and of individual directors by seeking their
inputs on various aspects of
Board/Committee Governance through
structured questionnaire.

The entire performance evaluation
process was completed to the satisfaction
of Board.

Further, SEBI vide its circular (Ref. no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/004)
dated January 5, 2017 issued a guidance
note on Board Evaluation for listed
companies. In view of the same, the
Independent Directors in their separate
meeting held on March 04, 2025 under
Regulation 25(4) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013 had:

reviewed the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a
whole;

reviewed the performance of the
Chairperson of the Company, taking into
account the views of executive and non-
executive Directors; and

assessed the quality, quantity and
timelines of flow of information between
the Company management and the Board
that was necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.

The Board of Directors has expressed its
satisfaction on the functioning and
performance of Board and Committees
and the performance of individual
directors. It emerged that the Board had a
good mix of competency, experience,
qualifications and diversity. Each Board
member contributed to the collective
wisdom of the Board, keeping in mind
his/her own background and experience.
There was active participation and
adequate time was given for discussing
strategy. Overall, the Board was
functioning very well in a cohesive and
interactive manner. The Directors even
expressed their satisfaction with the
evaluation process.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements of the
Company, as designed and implemented
by the Company, are adequate. During the

28.

29.

year under review, no material or serious
observation has been received from the
Statutory Auditors and the Internal
Auditors of the Company on the
inefficiency or inadequacy of such
controls.

The internal audit is entrusted to M/s. S.K.
Naredi & Co. LLP, a firm of Chartered
Accountants. The Internal Auditor monitor
and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of
internal control systems in the Company,
its compliance with the operating systems,
accounting procedures and policies at the
Company and its subsidiaries. It also
imparts guidance and constructive
suggestions for improvement of the audit
function in the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors, comprising of independent
directors regularly reviews the audit plans,
significant audit findings, adequacy of
internal  controls, compliance with
accounting standards as well as reasons
for changes in accounting policies and
practices, if any.

Necessary certification by the Statutory
Auditors in relation to Internal Financial
Control u/s 143(3)(i) of the Act forms part
of the Audit Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Adequate internal control systems
commensurate with the nature of the
Company’s business and size and
complexity of its operations are in place
and have been operating satisfactorily.
Internal control systems comprising of
policies and procedures are designed to
ensure reliability of financial reporting,
timely feedback on achievement of goals,
compliance with policies, procedure,
applicable laws and regulations and that
all assets and resources are acquired
economically, used efficiently and
adequately protected.

Your Directors confirm that during the
year under review, there were no
reportable material weaknesses in the
present systems or operations of internal
controls.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGICAL ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING &
OUTGO
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30.

The Company is a non-banking financial
Company and is also involved in job work
activities. The Company’s activity involves
very low energy consumption and has no
particulars to report regarding
conservation of energy and technology
absorption.

However, efforts are made to further
reduce energy consumption. The Company
did not have any foreign exchange
earnings and expenditures during the
year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

All Related Party Transactions entered
into by your Company during the financial
year were on arm’s length basis and were
in the ordinary course of business and in
compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Indian Accounting
Standards on “Related Party Disclosure
(Ind AS-24).”

All Related Party Transactions are placed
before the Audit Committee. None of such
related party transactions required the
approval of the Shareholders as per the
Act or Listing Regulations. Further, there
were no materially significant related
party transactions that may have potential
conflict of interests with the Company at
large.

All  contracts / arrangements /
transactions entered into by the Company
during the year under review with Related
Parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on arm'’s length. During the
year under review, the Company had not
entered into any contract/ arrangement/
transaction with related parties which
could be considered material in
accordance with the policy of the Company
on materiality of related party
transactions or which is required to be
reported in Form No. AOC-2 in terms of
Section 134(3) (h) read with Section 188
of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, there
are no transactions that are required to be
reported in Form AOC-2.

The details of the related party
transactions as per Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) - 24 are set out in Note
31 to the Standalone Financial Statement
of the Company. The Company in terms of

31.

32.

33.

Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations
submits within 15 days from the date of
publication of its standalone and
consolidated financial results for the half
year, disclosures of related party
transactions on a consolidated basis, in the
specified format to the stock exchanges.
The said disclosures can be accessed on
the website of the Company at
https://www.rsdfinancelimited.com/inves
torrelations/stock-exchange-disclosures.

The Board has approved and adopted the
Policy on Related Party Transactions and
the same is uploaded on the Company’s
website -
www.rsdfinancelimited.com/InvestorRela
tions/Codes/Policies

None of the Directors has any pecuniary
relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the
Company save and except the payment of
sitting fees to Independent Directors and
the remuneration given to executive
directors.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI
(Listing  Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company has adopted a risk management
policy. The policy provides for
identification, assessment and control of
risks that in the opinion of the Board may
threaten the existence of the Company.
The above policy is being reviewed/re-
visited at such other intervals as deemed
necessary for modifications and revisions,
if any.

DISCLOSURES OF TRANSACTIONS OF
THE LISTED ENTITY WITH ANY PERSON
OR ENTITY BELONGING TO THE
PROMOTER/PROMOTER GROUP
WHICH HOLD(S) 10% OR MORE
SHAREHOLDING IN THE LISTED
ENTITY, IN THE FORMAT PRESCRIBED
IN THE RELEVANT ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR ANNUAL RESULTS.

Rajeev Singh Dugal and Rajeev Singh Dugal
Trust (KU Benefit Trust) hold 10% or
more shares in the Company. The details
of transactions with promoter/ promoter
group holding 10% or more shares have
been disclosed in the financial statement
which is part of the Annual Report.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR)

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the
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34.

35.

Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been
constituted by the Board of Directors.

The Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee ~ (CSR  Committee)  has
formulated and recommended to the
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities
to be undertaken by the Company, which
has been approved by the Board.

The CSR Policy may be accessed on the
Company’s website at the www.rsdfinance
limited.com

The report on the CSR activities as
required under the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is
attached as “Annexure - C” and forms an
integral part of the report.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER
POLICY

The Company has in place a Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy which
is approved and adopted by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The Policy provides a framework to
promote responsible and  secured
reporting of unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud, violation of applicable
laws and regulations, financial
irregularities, abuse of authority, etc. by
Directors, employees and the
management. The Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy is available on the
website of the Company at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

The Company endeavors to provide
complete protection to the Whistle
Blowers against any unfair practices. It is
affirmed that no personnel of the Company
has been denied access to the Audit
Committee and no case was reported
under this policy during the year.

COMPANY'’S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Board has, on recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, formulated a policy for
selection and appointment of Directors,
senior management and their
remuneration in accordance with the Act
and the Listing Regulations.

36.

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy of
the Company aims to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel of the
Company and seeks to employ people who
not only fulfill the eligibility criteria but
also have the attributes needed to fit into
the corporate culture of the Company.

The Company pays remuneration to
Independent Directors by way of sitting
fees and Executive Non-Independent
Directors of your Company do not accept
any sitting fees. Remuneration to Directors
is paid within the limits as prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
limits as approved by the Members of the
Company, from time to time. There have
been no changes in the said policy during
the financial year. The policy is available
on the Company’s  website at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com/investorrelat
ions/codes/policies (path) and is also
annexed and forms part of the report as
“Annexure - D”

Further, information about elements of
remuneration package of individual
directors is provided in the extract of
Annual Return as provided under Section
92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
forms part of this Report.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS

The matters related to Auditors and their
Reports are as under:

Statutory Auditors & their Reports

M/s. S DY & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Jamshedpur, bearing Registration No.
016850C, were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors in casual vacancy of the Company
to hold office until the conclusion ensuing
Annual General Meeting for the FY 2024-
25, at a remuneration as may be mutually
decided between the Board of Directors
andSDY & Co,,

The report of the Statutory Auditor forms
part of the Annual Report 2024-25. The
said report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark
or disclaimer. During the year under
review, the Auditors did not report any
matter under Section 143(12) of the Act,
therefore no detail is required to be
disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the
Act.
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pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,
142 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, M/s. S D Y & Co, Chartered
Accountants (Firm’s Registration No.) be
and are hereby appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a term of 5
(Five) consecutive years to hold office
from the conclusion of this 62nd Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of the
67th Annual General Meeting of the
Company, at such remuneration (exclusive
of applicable taxes and reimbursement of
out of pocket expenses) as shall be fixed by
the Board of Directors of the Company
from time to time in consultation with
them.”

The Company has received a written
consent from him that the appointment is
in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder.

The brief resume/details relating to
Statutory Auditor who is to be appointed
is furnished in the Notice of the ensuing
AGM.

Secretarial Auditor & their Reports

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the
Company has appointed Mr. Sital Prasad
Swain, Company Secretary in practice
(Membership No. F6338 & CP No. 6814) to
conduct the Secretarial Audit for the FY
2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that
the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Rules, Listing Regulations and Guidelines
and that there were no deviations or non-
compliances. The Secretarial Audit Report
certified by the Secretarial Auditors, in the
specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith
and forms part of this report.

Further, in compliance of Regulation 24A
of the Listing Regulations, Company’s
unlisted material subsidiaries also
undergo Secretarial Audit and the
Secretarial Audit Reports of the Company
and its unlisted material subsidiaries
thereto in the prescribed Form No. MR-3 is

attached as Annexure - E, E(I) and E(II)
forming part of this Report. The same are
also available on the website of the
Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report of your
Company and its wunlisted material
subsidiaries does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark
or disclaimer.

Furthermore, the Secretarial Auditor, Mr.
Sital Prasad Swain, Practicing Company
Secretaries, has also certified the
compliance as per Regulation 24A of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations,
2018 and same has been intimated to the
stock exchanges within the stipulated time
and there stood no qualification reported
by the Secretarial Auditor.

Mr. Sital Prasad Swain has certified that
none of the directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as director of Companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such statutory authority. The said
certificate is appended to the Board’s
Report and should also form a part of the
Corporate Governance Report of the Board
as required under the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Further, in accordance with the third
amendment of SEBI (LODR), and as per
recommendation of Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors of the Company has
appointed Mr. Sital Prasad Swain as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company from
the conclusion of 62nd AGM till the
conclusion of 67th AGM, to carry out the
Secretarial Audit for a period of five
consecutive financial years i.e., from FY
2025-26 to FY 2029-30 on such terms of
remuneration, including reimbursement of
out-of-pocket expenses, as may be
mutually agreed to between the Board of
Directors of the Company and the
Secretarial Auditor. The Company has
received a written consent from him that
the appointment is in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and rules
framed thereunder.

The brief resume/details relating to
Secretarial Auditor who is to be appointed
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37.

38.

39.

is furnished in the Notice of the ensuing
AGM.

Cost Auditors Maintenance of cost records
and requirement of cost audit as
prescribed under the provisions of Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable in respect of the business
activities carried out by the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration
and other details as required under
Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule
5(1) of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Board’s
Report and are marked as ““Annexure - F’.
In terms of the provisions of section 136 of
the Act, the report is being sent to the
members and others entitled thereto. This
statement prescribed under rule 5(2) and
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rule, 2014 will be made available by email
to members of the Company seeking such
information. The members can send an
email to rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com. It shall
also be kept open for inspection by any
member at the registered office of the
Company during business hours.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS,
INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES
Details of loans, guarantees and
investments covered under Section 186 of
the Act are provided in Note 6 and 11
forming part of Financial Statements.
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading
for its Designated Persons in compliance
with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Code lays
down Guidelines which advise the insiders
on procedures to be followed and
disclosures to be made, while dealing with
the shares of the Company, and cautioning
them of the consequences of violations.
The Code requires pre- clearance for
dealing in the Company’s shares and
prohibits the purchase or sale of Company
shares by the Directors and the designated
employees while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company and during the
period when the Trading Window is

40.

41.

42.

43.

closed.

The Company has also adopted ‘Code of
Practice and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information’ in accordance with the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider  Trading)
Regulations, 2015. This Code aims to set
forth a framework and policy for fair
disclosure of events and occurrences that
could resolutely impact price of the
Company’s securities. The Company
endeavors to preserve the confidentiality
of un-published price sensitive
information and to prevent misuse of such
information.

The code of conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading is posted on the website of
the Company and can be accessed at:
www.rsdfinancelimited.com

All the Board of Directors and designated
employees have confirmed compliance
with the Code.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, Ten Board
Meetings were convened and held on April
22, 2024, May 27, 2024, August 14, 2024,
August 26, 2024, October 04, 2024,
November 14, 2024, December 03, 2024,
December 27, 2024, January 18, 2025, and
February 14, 2025. The details of which
are given in the Corporate Governance
Report which is forming part of this
Annual Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

The annual return of the company is also
available on the company’s website at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com and is
available at the
linkwww.rsdfinancelimited.com/investorr
elations/annualreturn

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis
Report on the operations of the Company,
as stipulated under Chapter IV of SEBI
(Listing  Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is
provided in a separate section and forms
an integral part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes that establishing
good corporate governance practices in
each and every function of the
organization leads to increased
operational efficiencies and sustained long
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(M
(iD)

term value creation for all stakeholders. In
terms of Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the
following forms part of this Report:

Report on the Corporate Governance;
Declaration regarding compliance to Code

of Conduct by Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel;

(ili) A certificate from a Practicing Company

Secretary that none of the directors on the
Board of the Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies by
the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such statutory authority;

(iv) the Certificate duly signed by the

W

44.

45.

46.

47.

Managing Director and Chief Financial
Officer on the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31,
2025 as submitted to the Board of
Directors at their meeting held on May 24,
2025; and

Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance
of conditions of Corporate Governance
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the
Company has complied with all the
relevant  provisions of  Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board
Meetings and General Meetings (SS1 and
SS2).

RBI REGULATIONS

The Company has complied with the
applicable regulations of RBI as on March
31, 2025.

RBI GUIDELINES

The Company continues to comply with all
the applicable regulations prescribed by
the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), from
time to time.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

There were no significant and material
orders passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals that would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its
future operations.

48.

49.

50.

51.

INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY
REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the
statutory auditors nor the secretarial
auditor has reported to the Audit
Committee under Section 143 (12) of
Companies Act, 2013, any instances of
fraud committed against the Company by
its officers or employees, the details of
which needs to be mentioned in the
Board’s Report.
APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING
UNDER IBC:

None of the application has been made or
any proceeding is pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
(31 of 2016) during the year

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company continues to put due
emphasis on appropriate human resource
development for its business. The
employees of the Company and the group
fully identify with the Company’s and the
groups vision and business goals.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual
harassment at workplace. We have
adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment at the Workplace and
constituted the Internal Complaints
Committee in line with the provisions of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there
under. The Policy aims to provide
protection to employees at the workplace
and prevent and redress complaints of
sexual harassment and for matters
connected or incidental thereto, with the
objective of providing a safe working
environment, where employees feel
secure.

The Company has not received any
complaint under the said policy. Web link
for the policy in the website is
www.rsdfinancelimited.com/codes-
policies.
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52.

53.

54.

a)

b)

9]

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY
BENEFIT ACT, 1961

The Company has complied with the
provisions of Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,
including all applicable amendments and
rules framed there under. The company is
committed to ensure a safe, inclusive and
supportive  workplace for women
employees. All eligible women employees
are provided with maternity benefits as
prescribed under the Maternity Benefit
Act, 1961, including paid maternity leave,
nursing breaks and protection from
dismissal during maternity leave.

The company also ensures that no
discrimination is made in recruitment or
service conditions on the grounds of
maternity, necessary internal systems and
HR Policies are in place to uphold the
spirit and letter of the legislation.

GENDER-WISE COMPOSITION OF
EMPLOYEES

In alignment with the principles of
diversity, equity and inclusion (DEI), the
company discloses below the gender
composition of its workforce as on March
31, 2025.

Male Employee:- 6 (Six)

Female Employee:- 2 (Two

Transgender Employees:- Nil

The disclosure reinforces the Company’s
efforts to promote an inclusive workplace
culture and equal
opportunity for all individuals, regardless
of gender.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or
reporting is required in respect of the
following matters as there were no
transactions on these items during the
year under review:

Issue of equity shares with differential
rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

Issue of shares (including sweat equity
shares and ESOP) to the employees of the

Company under any scheme.

The Company does not have any scheme of

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: August 13,2025

d)

g)

55.

provision of money for the purchase of its
own shares by employees or by trustees
for the benefit of employees.

Business Responsibility Report is not
applicable on the Company.

Formation of Dividend Distribution Policy
is not applicable on the Company.

Your Company has not raised funds
through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as per Regulation
32(7A) of the Listing Regulations.

The requirement to disclose the details of
difference between amount of the
valuation done at the time of onetime
settlement and the valuation done while
taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions along with the reasons
thereof, is not applicable.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors would like to acknowledge
the role of all its stakeholders’ viz,
shareholders, bankers, lenders, borrowers
and all others for their continued support
to your Company and the confidence and
faith that they have always reposed in
your Company.

Your Directors acknowledge and
appreciate the guidance and support
extended by all the Regulatory authorities
including Securities Exchange Board of
India (SEBI), Reserve Bank of India (RBI),
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA),
Registrar of Companies, Kolkata (ROC), the
Stock Exchanges and the NSDL and CDSL.

We value the professionalism of all the
employees who have proved themselves in
a challenging environment and whose
efforts have stood the Company in good
stead and taken it to present level.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Rajeev Singh Dugal Upneet Dugal
Managing Director Director

DIN: 00052037 DIN:07680726
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FORM AOC-1

Annexure - A

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES
PART “A” - SUBSIDIARIES

(Amount in lakhs)
Sl Particulars 1 2 3
No.
1. Name of the Subsidiary SRP Oil Pvt. Ltd Prec‘s“l’;“ltA‘L‘:ngt“’e Sigma HTS LLP*
Date since when the subsidiar
2. was acquired y September 30, 2015 November 15, 2013 March 15, 2016
Reporting period for the
subsidiary concerned, if different - April - March -
3. from the holding Company’s April - March April - March
reporting period
Reporting currency and exchange
rate as on the last date of the . . .
4. relevant Financial Year in the case Indian Rupees Indian Rupees Indian Rupees
of foreign subsidiaries
4,91,70,000 6,81,Q0,000 The total contrlbutlon
(49,17,000 Equity (1000 Equity Share of of the partners is Rs.
5. Share capital Sh’are‘s of Rs. 10 Rs. 100 each and 10,37,50,000 (10
each) : 68,00,000 Pref. Share Crore Thirty seven
of Rs. 10 each) lakhs fifty thousand).
6. Reserves & Surplus 6016.93 9672.82 780.08
7. Total Assets 7182.62 10703.68 7486.35
8. Total Liabilities 7182.62 10703.68 7486.35
9. Investments 4951.92 10032.41 NIL
10.  Turnover 2726.10 915.19 9015.49
11.  Profit before taxation 842.47 352.08 677.08
12, Provision for Taxation (Tax 203.73 164.04 234.62
Expenses)
13.  Profit after taxation 638.75 188.04 442.45
14.  Dividend NIL 54.40 NA
15. Proposed Dividend (Inclusive of NIL 54.40 NA
DDT)
16. % of shareholding 52.55% Equity 100% Equity 65% Capital

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NIL

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year -NIL
3. No Company has become a Joint venture or associate during the financial year 2024-25, hence Part - B of form AOC- 1
is not reported.

* Sigma HTS is a Limited Liability Partnership, 65% stake is owned by Precision Automotive Pvt. Ltd, Wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 13.08.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Rajeev Singh Dugal
Managing Director
DIN - 00052037

Sd/-
Upneet Dugal
Director
DIN - 07680726
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Annexure - B

FORM NO - AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH
RELATED PARTIES

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were on an arm’s
length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'’s length basis: -

Name of the related party and nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

As
Duration of the contract/ arrangements/ transactions provided in
Note 31 to
i . . . the
Salient terms of the contracts or agreements or transactions including the financial
value, if any statements

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

Amount paid as advances, if any

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Jamshedpur Rajeev Singh Dugal Upneet Dugal
Date: 13.08.2025 Managing Director Director
DIN - 00052037 DIN - 07680726
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Annexure - C

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
A Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy

The Company has made the policy which encompasses the Company’s philosophy for delineating its
responsibility as a Corporate Citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking
socially useful programs for welfare & sustainable development of the community at large which is
based as per the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014 made there under.

Activities under CSR:

The Company will carry out CSR activities as specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013,
including any amendments to it but will not be limited to the following:

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition;

Promoting Health care including Preventive Health care;

Promotion of education especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled;
Employment and livelihood enhancing Vocational skills and projects;

Ensuring environmental sustainability and ecological balance;

Promoting gender equality and empowering women;

Rural development project;

Undertaking and supporting rehabilitation measures post disaster;

Setting public libraries;

Such other activities as the Board may consider being appropriate.

The composition of the CSR Committee

The Chairperson and Members of the Committee are as follows:
SL. Name of Director Designation/ Number of Number of
No. Nature of meetings  of meetings of
Directorship CSR CSR
Committee Committee
held during attended
the year during the
year
1 Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal Chairperson 1 1
2 Mr. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal Member 1 1
3 Ms. Upneet Dugal Member 1 1
4. Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini Member 1 1

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company -
www.rsdfinancelimited.com

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable - Not Applicable

(a)

Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of Section 135 Rs. 645.83 Lakhs.

(b)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section135(5) Rs. 12.92 lakhs

(c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the NIL

previous financial years

(d)

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 0.19 Lakhs

(e)

Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5c- 5d) Rs. 12.73 lakhs
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(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Ongoing Project
- NIL

Details of the amount spent other than Ongoing Project are as follows:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Amount Mode of
Location of the Mode of implementation -
Item fromthe  Local roject spent forim lementation Through implementin
Sl. Name of the list ofactivities area project. the P g P g
No. Project inscheduleVII (Yes/ project Direct agency. CSR
to the Act. No). (Rs.in (Yes/No) Resistration
State.  District. Lakhs.). : Name. g
number.
. Point (i) of
Mal.(mg schedule VII to the
1. nglla.ble safe Act - making Yes  Jharkhand ., East 2.50 Yes NA NA
rinking . Singhbhum
water an’illa‘ble safe
drinking water
Point (i) of
o schedule VII to the
2. Distribution OfAct - Eradicating Yes  Jharkhand . East 3.75 Yes NA NA
Food Singhbhum
hunger, poverty
and malnutrition
Point (ii) of
schedule VII to the
Act - promoting
education,
including special
education and
employment
Promotion of enhancing vocation East
3. Education skills especially Yes  Jharkhand Singhbhum 3.75 Yes NA NA
among children,
women, elderly
and the differently
abled and
livelihood
enhancement
projects.
Point (i) and (iv) of
Health Care - schedule VII to the
Financial Act - promoting
Support & health care
4. Ens.urlng 1nclud1n.g No Maharashtra Mumbai 3.95 Yes NA NA
environmentalpreventive health
sustainability care, ensuring
& ecological environmental
balance sustainability,
ecological balance
TOTAL 13.95 (Amountin
) ] Lakhs)

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - NA

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - NA

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8a+8b+8c) - Rs. 13.95 lakhs
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Refer below table
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Amount Unspent (Rs. in Lakhs.)
Total Amount Spent for .
the Financial Year. Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
(Rs. in Lakhs.) Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
) ' section 135(6). section 135(5).
Date of
Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount. transfer.
13.95 Nil NA Nil NA NA
Excess amount for set-off, if any:
y
Sl. No. Particular Amount (Rs. In lakhs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 12.92
section135(5) )
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 13.95
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1.03
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if any
) Amount available for set (:).f.f in. succeeding financial years 1.22%
[(iii)-(iv)]

*This amount may be utilised during next three succeeding Financial Years.

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial
Years: NIL

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NO

9.

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit
as per sub section (5) of Section 135: NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Jamshedpur Rajeev Singh Dugal Upneet Dugal
Date: 13.08.2025 Managing Director Director

DIN - 00052037 DIN - 07680726
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ANNEXURE - D

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

This Nomination and Remuneration
Policy is being formulated in compliance
with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read along with the applicable rules
thereto and Regulation 19 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. This
policy on nomination and remuneration
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management has been
formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC or the
Committee) and has been approved by
the Board of Directors.

DEFINITIONS:

“Remuneration” means any money or its
equivalent given or passed to any person
for services rendered by him and includes
perquisites as defined under the Income-
tax Act, 1961;

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:
Managing Director, or Chief Executive
Officer or Manager and in their absence, a
Whole-time Director;

Chief Financial Officer;

Company Secretary; and

such other officer as may be prescribed.
“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean
the personnel of the company who are
members of its core management team
excluding Board of Directors. Normally,
this would comprise all members of
management of rank equivalent to
General Manager and above, including all
functional heads.

OBJECTIVE:

The objective of the policy is to ensure
that:-

To lay down criteria and terms and
conditions with regard to identifying
persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-Executive)
and persons who may be appointed in
Senior Management and Key Managerial
positions.

To determine remuneration based on the
Company’s size and financial position and

a)

b)

trends and practices on remuneration
prevailing in peer companies.

the level and  composition  of
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors of
the quality required to run the company
successfully;

to retain, motivate, promote talent and to
ensure long term sustainability of
talented managerial persons and create
competitive advantage.

relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks;
and

remuneration to directors, key
managerial personnel and senior
management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Committee shall identify and
ascertain the integrity, qualification,
expertise and experience of the person
for appointment as Director, KMP or at
Senior Management level and
recommend his / her appointment, as per
Company’s Policy.

A person should possess adequate
qualification, expertise and experience
for the position he / she is considered for
appointment. The Committee has
authority to decide whether qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a
person is sufficient / satisfactory for the
position.

Appointment of Independent Directors is
subject compliance of provisions of
section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with schedule IV and rules there
under.
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d) The Company shall not appoint or

e)

il.

iil.

continue the employment of any person
as Whole-time Director who has attained
the age of seventy years. Provided that
the term of the person holding this
position may be extended beyond the age
of seventy years with the approval of
shareholders by passing a special
resolution.

The Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel shall retire as per
the applicable provisions of the
Regulations and the prevailing policy of
the Company. The Board will have the
discretion to retain the Director, KMP,
Senior Management Personnel in the
same position / remuneration or
otherwise even after attaining the
retirement age, for the benefit of the
Company.

TERM / TENURE

Managing Director/Whole-time
Director:

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall identify a person
according to the requirements of the
Company for the above position and
recommend their appointment to the
Board including the terms of appointment
and remuneration.

The Board shall consider the
recommendation of the NRC and
accordingly approve the appointment and
remuneration. The appointment of MD,
JMD, WTD shall be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders.

Appointment of other employees will be
made in accordance with the Company’s
HR Policy.

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint
any person as its Executive Chairman,
Managing Director or Executive Director
for a term not exceeding five years at a
time. No re-appointment shall be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of
term.

b) Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office
for a term up to five consecutive years on
the Board of the Company and will be

eligible for re-appointment on passing of
a special resolution by the Company and
disclosure of such appointment in the
Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office
for more than two consecutive terms of
upto maximum of 5 years each, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for
appointment after expiry of three years of
ceasing to become an Independent
Director.

Provided that an Independent Director
shall not, during the said period of three
years, be appointed in or be associated
with the Company in any other capacity,
either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of
Independent Director it should be
ensured that number of Boards on which
such Independent Director serves is
restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed
companies as an Independent Director in
case such person is serving as a Whole-
time Director of a listed company or such
other number as may be prescribed
under the Act.

EVALUATION

The Committee shall carry out evaluation
of performance of Director, KMP and
Senior Management Personnel yearly or
at such intervals as may be considered
necessary.

REMOVAL

The Committee may recommend with
reasons recorded in writing, removal of a
Director, KMP or Senior Management
Personnel subject to the provisions and
compliance of the Companies Act, 2013,
rules and regulations and the policy of the
Company or by the Board on its own if
the person commits a breach of the
duties, functions and responsibilities or
obligations on any reason prescribed by
the law or AOA or the Listing Agreement
or for reason of poor performance as
measured as a result of performance
evaluation.

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO
DIRECTORS/ KMP/ SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
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1)

a)

b)

2)

a)

b)

0)

d)

Remuneration to Managing Director:

The Managing Director shall be eligible
for remuneration as may be approved by
the Shareholders of the Company on the
recommendation of the Committee and
the Board of Directors. The
Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be
paid to Managing Director shall be
governed as per provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
there under or any other enactment for
the time being in force and the approvals
obtained from the Members of the
Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall make such
recommendations to the Board of
Directors, as it may consider appropriate
with regard to remuneration to Managing
Director.

Remuneration to Non- Executive /
Independent Directors:

The Non-Executive / Independent
Directors may receive sitting fees for
attending meeting of the Board and the
committee and such other remuneration
as permissible under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013. The amount of
sitting fees shall be such as may be
recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors.

The profit-linked Commission shall be
paid within the monetary limit approved
by the Shareholders of the Company
subject to the same not exceeding 1% of
the net profits of the Company computed
as per the applicable provisions of the
Regulations.

An Independent Director shall not be
eligible to get Stock Options and also shall
not be eligible to participate in any share
based payment schemes of the Company.
Non-Executive Directors are eligible for
Stock Options as approved by the
shareholders.

Any remuneration paid to Non-
Executive/ Independent Directors for
services rendered which are of

3)

b)

<)

professional in nature shall not be
considered as part of the remuneration
for the purposes of clause (b) above if the
following conditions are satisfied:

The Services are rendered by such
Director in his capacity as the
professional; and

In the opinion of the Committee, the
requisite
qualification for the practice of that
profession.

Any incidental expense incurred by the
Directors  with  relation to the
participation in the meetings of the Board
and other Sub Committees shall be
reimbursed.

director = possesses  the

Remuneration to Executive Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management:

The remuneration to Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management shall
consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, in
compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance
with the Company’s Policy.

Remuneration of Executive Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management is  determined and
recommended by the Nomination &
Compensation Committee and approved
by the Board. Remuneration of Executive
Directors is also subject to the approval of
the shareholders.

The Incentive pay shall be decided based
on the balance between performance of
the Company and performance of the Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management, to be decided annually or at
such intervals as may be considered
appropriate.

IMPLEMENTATION

The Committee may issue guidelines,
procedures, formats, reporting
mechanism and manuals in supplement
and for better implementation of this
policy as considered appropriate.

The Committee may Delegate any of its
powers to one or more of its members.
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ANNEXURE - E
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FORM NO. MR -3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

To,

The Members,

RSD FINANCE LTD

H.NO-4, The Alcor Hotel

Ramdas Bhatta, Opp. Indian Oil Petrol Pump
Bistupur, Jamshedpur -831001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance with applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by RSD FINANCE LTD (“the Company”). The secretarial audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of records
based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Auditing Standards require that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of
records.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 (“the audit period”) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanisms in
place to the extent and in the manner reporting made hereinafter:

The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (not applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period);

The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(“the SEBI Act™): -

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
(not applicable to the Company during audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (not
applicable to the Company during the audit period) and
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b)

(i

(i)

(i)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018. (not
applicable to the Company during the audit period )

Rules, Guidelines and Regulations issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to Non -
Deposit Taking, Non - Systematically Important, Non- Banking Financial Companies which are
applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder (Hereinafter referred to as “Listing
Regulations”). The Listing Agreement entered into with BSE and CSE Limited.

Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings
(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We believe that the audit evidence which we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
explanations given to us, we believe that the systems and mechanisms established by the Company
are adequate to ensure compliance of laws as mentioned above. With respect to the applicable
financial laws such as Direct and Indirect tax laws, based on the information & explanations
provided by the Management and Officers of the Company and certificates placed before the Board
of Directors, we report that adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure compliance.

During the period under review, the Company generally has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Securities and Exchange Board of India and such other regulatory authorities for such acts, rules,
regulations, standards etc. as mentioned above.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act, RBI and listing regulations.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. Notice for meetings called for at a shorter notice and notes on agenda which are
circulated less than the specified period, necessary compliances under the Act and Secretarial
Standards on Board Meeting are complied with.

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, the decisions were carried out with the
consent of the Board of Directors /Committee Members and no Director /Member dissented on the
decisions taken at such Board / Committee Meetings.

We have examined the systems and processes established by the Company to ensure the
compliance with general laws including Labour Laws, Employees Provident Funds Act, Employees
State Insurance Act, Payment of Gratuity Act &other State Laws, considering and relying upon
representations made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanisms formed by the
Company for compliance under these laws and other applicable sector specific Acts,
Laws,RulesandRegulationsapplicabletotheCompanyanditsobservancebythem.
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We further report that based on the review of compliance mechanism established by the Company
and on the basis of our review and audit of the records and books, we are of the opinion that the
management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations to
monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Based on such checks as considered appropriate and documents provided by the Company, we
observed that the specific laws, as applicable to the Company are being duly complied with.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific event/action having a major
effect on the Company’s affair in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines ,standards, etc.

This report is to be read out with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE - A” and
forms an integral part of this report.

Sd/-

Sital Prasad Swain
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No-F6338

CP No. 6814
Date: 02.08.2025 UDIN- F006338G000919021
Place: Jamshedpur P.R.No: 6863/2025

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and
forms an integral part of this report.
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1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

ANNEXURE “A”

To,

The Members,

RSD FINANCE LTD

H.NO-4, The Alcor Hotel

Ramdas Bhatta, Opp. Indian Oil Petrol Pump
Bistupur, Jamshedpur -831001

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year March 31, 2025 of even date is to be read along
with this annexure.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We earnestly
believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial Laws like Direct &
Indirect Tax Laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by
the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

Sd/-

Sital Prasad Swain
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No-F6338

CP No. 6814
Date: 02.08.2025 UDIN - F006338G000919021
Place: Jamshedpur P.R.No: 6863/2025
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Form No- MR -3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

To,

The Members,

SRPOil Pvt Ltd

H.No - 4, The Alcor Hotel

Ramdas Bhatta, Opp. Indian Oil Petrol Pump
Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by S R P Oil Pvt Ltd (hereinafter called the “Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the

provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

c¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).
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e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non - Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period).

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
and amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period).

Other laws applicable specifically to the Company:
The Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954

The Food safety and Standards Act, 2006

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and General Meetings.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

None of the Directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no instance
of recording any dissenting member’s view in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company did not have any event which had a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc.

Sd/-

Sital Prasad Swain
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No-F6338

CP No. 6814
Date: 02.08.2025 UDIN - F006338G000918471
Place: Jamshedpur P.R.No: 6863/2025

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure [ and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure I

To,

The Members

SRPOil Pvt Ltd

H.No - 4, The Alcor Hotel

Ramdas Bhatta, Opp. Indian Oil Petrol Pump
Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial Laws like Direct &
Indirect Tax Laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by
the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

Sd/-
Sital Prasad Swain
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No-F6338

CP No. 6814
Date: 02.08.2025 UDIN - F006338G000918471
Place : Jamshedpur P.R.No: 6863/2025
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
Form No- MR -3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

To,

The Members,

Precision Automotive Private Limited

H. No - 4, The Alcor Hotel

Ramdas Bhatta, Opp. Indian Oil Petrol Pump
Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Precision Automotive Private Limited (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commerecial
Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity ) Regulations, 2021; ( Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible Securities
JRegulations, 2021 ; ( Not applicable to the Company during the audit period )

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; ( Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period )



RSD FINANCE LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
and amendments from time to time; ( Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period )

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and General Meetings.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

None of the Directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no instance
of recording any dissenting member’s view in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company did not have any event which had a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc.

Sd/-
Sital Prasad Swain
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No-F6338

CP No. 6814
Date: 02.08.2025 UDIN - F006338G000918689
Place: Jamshedpur P.R.No: 6863/2025

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure I

To,

The Members,

Precision Automotive Private Limited

H. No - 4, The Alcor Hotel

Ramdas Bhatta, Opp. Indian Oil Petrol Pump
Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

7. We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial Laws like Direct
& Indirect Tax Laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to
review by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

Sd/-

Sital Prasad Swain
Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No-F6338

CP No. 6814
Date: 02.08.2025 UDIN - F006338G000918689
Place: Jamshedpur P.R.No: 6863/2025
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ANNEXURE - F

DETAILS UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

PART (A) - DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25:

Name of Director Designation Ratio to median remuneration of
Employees
Rajeev Singh Dugal Managing 38.80
Director
Upneet Dugal Executive 28.71
Director

All the Non-Executive Directors of the Company are Independent Directors and have only been
paid sitting fees. The details of sitting fees paid are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.
In the above ratio of remuneration and percentage increase in remuneration, sitting fees paid to
Non-executive Directors, have not been considered.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary during the Financial Year 2024-25:

Sl Name of Director / Designation % increase in
No. KMP Remuneration
1 Rajeev Singh Dugal Managing Director 25.00%

2 Upneet Dugal Executive Director NIL

3 Ravi Joshi Chief Financial Officer 7.48%

4 Subhajita Biswal Company Secretary NIL

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of the employees in the FY 2024-
2025:-

There has been an increase of 11.49 % in the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company in FY 2024-2025 as compared to FY 2023-2024.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2025:-

There were 8 employees on the rolls of the Company.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:-

There has been a 12.00 % increase in average percentage increase in salaries of employees other
than Managerial personnel and 25% increase in the managerial remuneration of Ms. Rajeev Singh
Dugal during the year.

Justification: The increase is in line with the increase in the Company’s performance, anticipation
of future growth of the Company and the Industrial standards.
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F. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per Remuneration Policy of the Company:-

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to KMPs and other employees are as per the
Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company.

PART (B) - DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

During the year the Company had not engaged any employee drawing remuneration exceeding the

limit specified under Section 197(12) read with rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Jamshedpur Rajeev Singh Dugal Upneet Dugal
Date: 13.08.2025 Managing Director Director
DIN - 00052037 DIN - 07680726
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

INDIA'S TRADE AND ECONOMIC
OUTLOOOK

In an era marked by escalating global
trade tensions and persistent geopolitical
uncertainties, the Indian economy has
demonstrated remarkable resilience and
robust growth. The above findings are
from Reserve Bank of India’s March 2025
bulletin which highlights the state of the
economy in the country. The latest data-
driven analysis underscores the strength
of domestic fundamentals amidst a
volatile global backdrop. While global
economic uncertainties persist, India's
economy  shows  strong  growth,
supported by robust consumption and
government spending. Inflation has
moderated, and policy measures have
helped stabilize = market liquidity.
However, foreign portfolio outflows and
currency depreciation remain key risks.
Domestic Economic Developments

Resilient GDP Growth Amidst Global
Challenges

India’s GDP is projected to grow by 6.5%
in FY 2024-25, according to NSO’s Second
Advance Estimates.

e Quarter 3 GDP growth was 6.2%,
rebounding from 5.6% in Q2 due to
higher  private  consumption and
government spending.

e Sectors driving growth: construction,
trade, and financial services.

Foreign Portfolio Outflows & Currency
Risks

e Sustained foreign portfolio investor
(FPI) outflows put pressure on stock
markets and the rupee.

¢ However, domestic investors increased
their  holdings, stabilizing market
ownership structures. . Rupee
depreciation risks remain due to external
uncertainties.

Inflation Trends: Headline Inflation
Eases

¢ CPI inflation fell to a 7-month low of
3.6% in February 2025, mainly due to a
decline in vegetable prices.

* However, core inflation (excluding food
& fuel) rose to 4.1%, indicating persistent
price pressures. Employment Trends

¢ Manufacturing employment grew at the
second-fastest rate since the PMI survey
began.

e Services sector employment also
expanded significantly, reflecting strong
demand.

¢ Urban unemployment remains at a
historic low of 6.4%.

Trade & External Sector

Import and Export Trends

¢ Exports grew marginally by 0.1% to
$395.6 billion from April 2024-Feb 2025
but merchandise exports declined by
10.9% YoY in February, largely due to
base effects and weak global demand.

e Top-performing export sectors:
electronics, rice, and ores.

e Weak export sectors: petroleum
products, engineering goods, chemicals,
and gems & jewellery.

Imports increased by 5.7% to $656.7
billion, driven by gold, electronics, and
petroleum during April 2024-Feb 2025,
however it fell by 16.3% in Feb 2025,
leading to a narrowing trade deficit.

e QOil and gold imports dropped
significantly, contributing to the decline
in overall imports.

e Imports of electronic goods and
machinery remained strong, reflecting
domestic investment demand.

Financial & Monetary Policies

RBI’s Liquidity Management

e RBI used open market operations
(OMO), daily repo auctions, and
dollar/rupee swaps to manage liquidity.
e These measures helped stabilize
domestic  liquidity = despite capital
outflows.
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Sector-Specific Developments
Agriculture Sector

India’s food grain production for 2024-25
is estimated at 330.9 million tonnes,
marking a 4.8% increase from 2023-24,
driven by kharif production up 6.8% and
rabi up 2.8%, according to second
advance estimates.

Automobile Sector

e Car and motorcycle sales declined in
February due to weaker demand.

e Tractor sales saw double-digit growth,
indicating strong rural economy demand.
Infrastructure & Construction
e Toll collections and E-way bills
recorded double-digit growth, signalling
robust infrastructure activity.
¢ Government spending on infrastructure
projects supported economic momentum.

Global Setting

Trade War & Tariffs Impacting Growth
» The global economy entered 2025 with
strong momentum but is now slowing
due to increased protectionism and trade
restrictions.

¢ US-China tariff escalations could reduce
US GDP growth by 0.6 percentage points
in 2025 and shrink the economy by 0.3-
0.4% in the long run.

¢ OECD lowered global GDP forecasts to
3.1% in 2025 and 3.0% in 2026 due to
slowing demand.

Market Volatility & Currency
Fluctuations

e US dollar lost gains made since
November 2024 due to trade policy
uncertainty.

e European bond yields surged as
Germany and others increased military
spending.

e Equity markets worldwide have been
volatile, reflecting fears of slowing
growth.

Commodity Markets & Inflationary
Pressures

e Global oil prices fell 15% since mid-
January 2025 due to reduced demand
expectations.

e Gold prices hit a record high of $3000

per ounce due to investor flight to safety.
e Food production outlook improved,
with cereal production exceeding 2024
levels.

Overview

Despite global economic headwinds,
India’s growth remains stable at 6.5%,
supported by strong domestic demand.
Inflation is under control, though core
inflation remains sticky, necessitating
careful monetary management. Trade
challenges persist due to weak global
demand, but a narrowing trade deficit
offers some relief. While foreign investor
outflows pose risks, robust domestic
investment provides resilience. The RBI’s
proactive policies have played a crucial
role in stabilizing liquidity and inflation
expectations. Overall, India’s economy is
well-positioned for growth, but
uncertainties in global markets, financial
volatility, and trade disruptions remain
key risks. Sustained policy support and
domestic resilience will be essential in
maintaining economic momentum.

NBFC OUTLOOK

The growth trajectory for India’s non-
banking finance companies (NBFCs) is set
with asset growth projected at 15-17%
year-on-year (Y-o-Y) for FY25 and FY26,
compared to 23% in FY24. Despite the
slowdown, the projected growth remains
above the decadal average of 14%, driven
largely by core segments such as home
and vehicle loans, according to CRISIL
Ratings and Fitch.

The outlook for NBFCs in 2025 shows a
period of strategic recalibration as they
face a more challenging funding and
regulatory terrain. However, the sector
remains well-positioned to leverage its
fundamentals and capitalise on emerging
opportunities in a gradually stabilizing
economic environment.

OPPORTUNITIES& THREATS

The RBI has been continually
strengthening the supervisory framework
for NBFCs in order to ensure sound and
healthy functioning and avoid excessive
risk taking. It has issued several new
guidelines in the recent past.
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The uncertainties and volatility in the
financial market are a continuing threat
to the organizational performance.
However, the twin features of
foresightedness and focused analysis of
the market have challenged the threat of
adverse performance.

As various factors are posing constant
threats and high volatility in the Capital
Markets, it appears beneficial to diversify
the portfolio to reduce the risk and
insulate from the vagaries of stock-
market. Mutual Funds help to reduce risk
through diversification and professional
management. Therefore, the Company
invests its surplus funds in debt/ equity
oriented Mutual Funds. One of the biggest
advantages of Mutual Fund investment is
Liquidity. Open end funds provide option
to redeem on demand, which is beneficial
during rising or falling markets. The
management is exploring other avenues
of business.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Company follows accrual basis of
accounting under the historical cost
convention. It has adopted Indian
FINANCIAL RATIOS

Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

Balance Sheet

Net worth increased to Rs. 77.96 crores
as on March 31, 2025as compared to Rs.
73.10 crores as on March 31, 2024.

The Borrowings for FY 2024-25is Nil
compared to Rs. 39.81 lakhs during FY
2023-24 owing to debt repayments
during the year.

Profit and loss statement

Total income for FY 2024-25 stood
decreased to Rs. 8.79crores as compared
to Rs. 12.37 crores in FY 2023-24.

Total expenses for FY 2024-25 stood
decreased toRs. 2.15 crores as compared
to Rs. 2.71 crores in FY 2023-24.

Depreciation and amortization decreased
to Rs. 5.27 lakhs in FY 2024-25
compared to Rs. 6.03 lakhs in 2023-24.

Following are ratios for the current financial year and their comparison with preceding financial

year, along with explanations where the change has been 25% or more when compared to

immediately preceding financial year:

Summary of Key Financial Metrics and Key Ratios

(Amount in Lakhs except EPS)

KEY METRICS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
FY2024-2025 | FY2023-2024 | FY 2024-2025 | FY 2023-2024

Revenu.e from 87512 95722 13000.62 10311.27

Operations

Other Income 4.50 280.19 499.70 810.01

Total Expenses 214.94 270.56 10964.02 8935.46

Profit/(Loss) before 2536.30 2185.82
664.68 966.85

Tax

Profit/(Loss) After 51224 762,15 1781.47 1740.29

Tax

EPS (Rs. per share) 3.75 6.26 13.96 15.75
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Significant Ratios

The Disclosure w.r.t. details of significant changes in key financial ratios as stipulated under
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Clause B of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as follows:

Sl Ratio Reason for increase
.. FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 .
No. Description (in case of more than 25%)
1 Debtors Turnover 0.19 012 During the Financial year Collection Cycle is
reduced
2. Inventory Turnover NA NA NA
3. Inte.rest. Coverage NA NA NA
Ratio (times)
4, Current Ratio (times) NA NA NA
Debt Equi Rati
5. ¢ quity - Ratlo 1.01:1 NA
(times)
Operating Profit
NA NA NA
6. Margin (%)
During the financial year there has been
d in th 1 f fi ial
7 Net Profit Margin (%) 0.58 0.62 ecrease in e value of financia

Segment-Wise Performance

On a consolidated basis, the Investment
and Financial Segment has posted a
revenue of Rs.1699.43 lakhs (Previous
Year Rs. 1631.78 lakhs), Job Work
segment has posted a revenue of Rs.
94.87lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 102.47
lakhs), Hotel business segment has
posted a revenue of Rs. 2726.10lakhs
(Previous Year Rs. 2764.38 lakhs) and
heat treatment activity generated
revenue of Rs. 9015.49lakhs (Previous
Year Rs. 6654.00 lakhs) including inter
segmental revenue of Rs. 35.57 Lakhs for
the FY 24-25.

On a standalone basis, the Investment
and Financial Segment posted segment
revenue of Rs. 784.75lakhs (Previous
Year revenue of Rs. 1134.94 lakhs) and

instruments and other comprehensive
income.

the Job Work segment recorded a profit
of Rs. 94.87]akhs (Previous Year profit of
Rs. 102.47 lakhs).

The Company operates only in India,
hence there is no other significant
geographical segment that requires
disclosure.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

NBFCs in India operate in a dynamic and
complex risk landscape
comprising of plethora of challenges and
opportunities. Indian NBFCs confront a
multifaceted  risk  landscape  that
necessitates robust risk management
practices, stringent regulatory
compliance, and proactive adaptation to
changing market conditions to ensure
their stability and sustainability in this
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dynamic environment.

Various risk management strategies
employed by your company, and the
strategies impact their financial stability
and growth trajectory. Using a

combination of industry reports, annual
financial data, regulatory frameworks,
and case-based analysis, the study
focused on the evolving role of risk
governance in a post-crisis NBFC
environment. Additionally, RBI's Scale-
Based Regulation framework has played a
crucial role in pushing NBFCs toward
more  structured governance and
accountability. The NBFC sector’s average
GNPA reduction from 6.3% to 5.2%, along
with CRAR improvement to 23.7%, serves
as numerical evidence of better risk
alignment in recent years.

Further, change in regulatory
requirements for NBFCs from time to
time, can have a bearing on the running of
the Company. The overall economic
fluctuations/ slowdown and its impact on
service sector are also a cause of concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Effective internal controls are necessary
for building up an efficient organization.
Your Company has in place, an adequate
internal control and internal audit system
managed by qualified and experienced
people to ensure the compliances under
statutory regulations. Corporate policies
are made to figure out the weaknesses
persisting in the system and suggest
remedial measure for the same.

The system is improved and modified
continuously to meet with the changes in
business  condition, statutory and
accounting requirements. Internal
controls are supplemented by an effective
Internal Audit being carried out by M/s.
S. K. Naredi & Co. LLP Chartered
Accountant and are periodically reviewed
by the management.

The Audit Committee also met the

Company’s statutory auditors to ascertain
their views on the financial statements,
including the financial reporting system,
compliance to accounting policies and
procedures, the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control and
systems followed by the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
The Company always regards human
resources as its most valuable asset and
ensures friendly work environment that
encourages initiatives by individuals and
recognizes their performance. Total 8
employees were employed during the
financial year.

To maintain competency and to improve
the analytical abilities of employees for
gearing them to face challenges, proper
training and development is imparted by
the Company before the employee takes
up any responsibility. Our Company has
always valued its employees whose
dedication and contribution have helped
us to reach the levels of excellence and
rewarded them appropriately during the
appraisal.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT,
2013.

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual
Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has
been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees  (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under
this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual
harassment complaints received and
disposed off during the year 2024-25.
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Number of complaints received: NIL applicable securities laws and regulations.
Number of complaints disposed off: Nil Important factors that could make a

difference to the Company’s operations
Cautionary Statement include changes in Government
Statements in the Management Discussion regulations, tax regimes, economic
and Analysis describing the Company’s developments within India and other such
objectives, projections, estimate, factors over which the Company does not
expectations may be “forward-looking have any direct control.

statements” within the meaning of
For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Rajeev Singh Dugal Upneet Dugal
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00052037 DIN:07680726

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: August 13, 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good Governance practices stem from the
culture and the mindset of the
organization. The Company believes that
good governance is an essential element
of business, which helps the Company to
be a responsible corporate citizen and
fulfill its responsibilities to all its
stakeholders.

The Company seeks to achieve its goal by
being transparent in its business dealings,
being fair and independent in its decision
making, by disclosure of all relevant
information in an easily understood
manner, and by being fair to all
stakeholders and by ensuring that the
Company’s activities are managed by a
professionally competent Board of
Directors.

The Company believes that good
Corporate Governance is a continuous
process and strives to improve the
Corporate Governance practices to meet
shareholder's expectations. It is an
upward-moving target that the Company
collectively strives towards achieving.
The Company discloses information
regarding its  financial  position,
performance and other vital matters
with  transparency, fairness and
accountability on a timely basis. This
report is prepared with adherence to the
provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing
Regulations’) and the report
comprehends all the requirements under
Regulations 17 to 27 read with Para C and
D of Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of
sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the
Listing Regulations as applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Company's Board of Directors
provides entrepreneurial leadership to

the Group and strategic direction to the
management. The Company's policy is to
maintain an optimum combination of
Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors as we believe that
an active, well-informed, diversified and
independent board is necessary to
ensure the highest standards of
corporate governance.

The composition of the Board represents
an optimal mix of professionalism,
knowledge and experience and enables
the Board to discharge its
responsibilities and provide effective
leadership to the business.

As on 31st March 2025, the Board
consists of 6 (Six) Directors comprising
3(Three) Non-Executive Independent
Directors, 1 (One) Non-Executive
Director and 2(Two) Executive Directors
including woman directors. All the
Directors are well qualified
professionals in their respective arenas.
None of the Independent Directors are
more than 75 years of age. The
composition of Board is in conformity
with Regulation 17(1) of Listing
Regulations and the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’). The profiles of Directors
can be accessed on the Company’s
website
atwww.rsdfinancelimited.com/company

profile
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Classification of the Board

Executi\;'g tI’ﬁirecto rs 33%

m Non-Executive, Independent Directors

W Non-Executive, Non - Independent Directors

Category of Director No. of % of total
gory Directors No. of Directors
Executive Directors 2 33.33%
Non-Executive,
’ 3 50.00Y

Independent Directors %
Non-Executlve,-Non - 1 16.67%
Independent Directors

Total 6 100%

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

Minimum four Board meetings are held
every year. Additional meetings are held
to address specific needs of the Company.
In case of any exigency/ emergency,
resolutions are passed by circulation.
During the financial year 2024-25 the
Board of Directors met 10 (Ten) times
during the year under review on April 04,
2024, May 27, 2024, August 14, 2024,
August 26, 2024, October 04, 2024,
November 14, 2024, December 03, 2024,
December 27, 2024, January 18, 2025 &
February 14, 2025. The requisite quorum
was present for all the Meetings.

The Board meetings were held in such a
manner that the maximum time gap
between any two meetings was not more

than 120 (one hundred and twenty) days.
All material information was

circulated to the directors before the
meeting or placed at the meeting,
including minimum information required
to be made available to the Board as
prescribed under Regulation 17 of the
Listing Regulations and secretarial
standards. The requisite quorum was
present at all the meetings.

DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE RECORD
AND THEIR OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS/
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS

Every Director on Board notifies the
Company on an annual basis about the
Board and the committee positions which
he/she occupies in other Companies and
constantly updates any changes therein.
The number of Directorship, Committee
Membership(s)/ Chairmanship(s) of all
the Directors is within respective limits
prescribed under the Act and the Listing
Regulations.

Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal, Managing
Director, Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal, Non-
Executive Director and Ms. Upneet Dugal,
Executive Director of the Company are
not Independent Directors of any other
listed company and none of our IDs serve
as Non-Independent Director of any
company on the board of which any of
our Non-Independent Director is an ID.
The details of each member of the Board
as on 31st March, 2025 are given below:

Attendance particulars
Name of Director Category Number of
Board Meetings Last AGM
Held on
Held Attended 30.09.2024
Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal Managing Director 10 10 Yes
Ms. Upneet Dugal Executive Director 10 10 Yes
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Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur
Non - Executive Director 10 10 Yes

Dugal
Mr. Harsh Kumar .

Independent Director 10 03 No
Pandey*
Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini Independent Director 10 10 Yes
Mr. Pradeep Kumar .

Independent Director 10 9 Yes
Khosla
Dr. Rajiv Shukla Independent Director 10 02 No

*Mr. Harsh Kumar Pandey resigned on 28.09.2024 from the Board as the Independent Director of the
Company. Consequently, he ceased to be the chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

Member of Audit Committee and Stakeholders’s Relationship Committee of the Company.

Notes:
than 7 (seven) listed companies, as an

I. Other Directorships excludes Independent Director in more than 7
Directorships in  Private  Limited (seven) listed companies and in case
Companies, Foreign Companies, he/she is serving as a Whole Time
Alternate Directorships and Companies Director/ Managing Director in any
registered under Section 8 of the listed company, does not hold the
Companies Act, 2013, also excluding in position of Independent Director in
RSD Finance Limited. more than three listed companies.

II. As per Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing VI. The Executive Directors of the Company,
Obligation and Disclosure Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal, Ms. Upneet
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Dugal and Non-Executive Director, Mrs.
Membership and Chairmanship of Audit Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal are related to each
Committee and Stakeholders other in terms of the definition of
Relationship Committee are only relative as per Section 2(77) of the
considered, excluding in RSD Finance Companies Act, 2013. Declarations in
Limited. this regard have been received by the

Company. None of the other Directors on

IIl. None of the Directors hold directorship the Board are related to each other.
in any other listed Company.

VII. As per the declarations received by the

IV. None of the Directors is a member of Company from each of the Directors,
more than 10 (Ten) Committees or a none of them are disqualified under
Chairman of more than 5 (Five) Section 164(2) of the Companies Act,
Committees as specified in Regulation 2013.

26 (1)(b) of SEBI Listing regulations
across all the Companies in which VIII.The Board regularly reviews the
he/she is a Director. declaration made by the Managing
Director and Executives of the Company
V. As mandated by Regulation 17A of regarding compliance with all laws

Listing Regulations, no Director of the
Company serves as Director in more

applicable to the Company on a
quarterly basis.
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The relation of Directors inter se with each other, names and the number of directorships
and committee Chairmanships/ Memberships held by them in other public limited
companies as on March 31, 2025, is given below

Other Directorships / Category of Directorship and Chairpersonship / Membership of
Committees in Other Companies:

No. of directorships and Committee
Memberships/ Committee
Chairmanships/ Chairmanships of
. . . . public limited companies excluding
) Relation with other Dlrec_tor_sh!p held in oth_er Indian RSD Finance Limited
Director Directors Public Limited Companies (As on Committee
March 31, 2025) . .
Directorsh Commlttee_ Chan_‘mans
ip Membershi hip/
p Chairperso
ship
P Spouse of Mrs.
Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal | Listed Companies:
Mr. Rajeev gg;er Companies 2 Nil Nil
. b :
Singh Dugal E?;::;%fuhg/l:’i SRP 0il Pvt Ltd
Precision Automotive Pvt Ltd
b Daughter of Mr. Rajeev | Listed Companies:
Ms. Upneet Singh Dugal and Mrs. NIL Nil Nil Nil
Dugal Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal Other Companies:
NIL
» Spouse of Mr. Rajeev Listed Companies:
Mrs. Singh Dugal NIL
Kawaljeet Other Companies: 2 Nil Nil
Kaur Dugal  p Mother of Ms. Upneet SRP 0il Pvt Ltd
Dugal Precision Automotive Pvt Ltd
Mr. Malk Listed Companies:
r. Malkeet NIL . . )
Singh Saini i Other Companies: Nil Nil Nil
NIL
Mr. Harsh Listed Companies:
Kumar - NIL . Nil Nil Nil
Pandey Other Companies:
NIL
Mr. Pradeep Listed Companies:
Kumar - NIL . Nil Nil Nil
Other Companies:
Khosla NIL
Dr. Rail Listed Companies:
r. Rajiv NIL . . .
Shukla Other Companies: Nil Nil Nil
NIL
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS that the Independent Directors fulfill the

conditions of independence specified in
the Listing Regulations and the Act and
are independent of the Management of
the Company.

The Company has received declarations
from the Independent Directors that
they meet the criteria of Independence
laid down under the Act and the Listing
Regulations. The Independent Directors
have also confirmed that they have
registered themselves in the databank of
persons offering to become Independent
Directors.

The Policy for appointment and removal
of Directors and determining Directors’
independence is available on our
website at www.rsdfinancelimited.com

6. CORE SKILLS/EXPERTISE/
The Board of Directors, based on the COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF
declaration(s) received from the DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Independent Directors, have verified the
veracity of such disclosures and confirm Based on the recommendations of the
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Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, a matrix setting out the core
skills/ expertise/ competencies

identified by the Board of Directors in
the context of the Company’s business
and sector(s) as required for its effective
functioning and those actually available
with the Board is given below.

Further, the brief profiles of Directors
are also available on the website of the
Company.

Mr.
Mrs. Kawaljeet .
Ms. Upneet Mr. Malkeet Kaur Dr. Rajiv | Paradeep

Dugal Singh Saini Dugal Shuka Kumar
Khosla

Industry Mr. Rajeev
knowledge & Singh
Experience Dugal

Business N
Experience

v v

\l

Financial N
Expertise

\l

Understanding
the laws, rules, N N
regulations &
policies

Experience in
policy shaping &

; v
industry
promotion

Managerial &
entrepreneur y y
skills

Leadership skills v v

Legal &
Corporate v -
Governance

MAXIMUM TENURE OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Section 149(11) of
the Companies Act, 2013, the current
tenure of

Independent Directors of the Company
is for a term of 5 consecutive years.

SEPARATE MEETING OF
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company’s Independent Directors
met on 04t March, 2025. The meeting
was held without the presence of the

Executive Directors or any management
personnel in compliance with the Code
for Independent Directors as stipulated
under Schedule IV of the Companies Act,

2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

At the meeting, the Independent
Directors inter-alia reviewed the
performance of  Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole,
assessed the quality, quantity and

60



RSD FINANCE LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

timeliness of flow of information
between the Management and the Board
and its Committees that is necessary for
the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform and discharge its duties.

All the Independent Directors of the
Company attended the Meeting. The
Independent Directors expressed their
satisfaction to the desired level on the
governance of the Board.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Directors, including Independent
Directors, on induction are apprised of
the nature of industry, the business
model of the Company, the roles, rights,
responsibilities in terms of Companies
Act, SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and relevant Acts, Rules and
Regulations and are provided with
necessary documents, reports and
policies.

At the time of appointing a Director, a
formal letter of appointment is given to
him/her, which inter-alia explains the
roles, rights and responsibilities
expected of a Director of the Company.
The Director is also explained in detail
about the compliances required from
him/her under the Act, Listing
Regulations, code of Conduct for Board
Members and Senior Management
Personnel, Prohibition of Insider
Trading Code, RBI directions and other
relevant regulations.

With a view to familiarise him/her with
the Company’s operations, the Managing
Director has a personal discussion with
the newly appointed Director.

Periodic presentations are made at the
Board and Committee meetings on the
business and financial performance of
the Company, updates on compliances,
regulatory scenario, regulatory changes
which affect/ concern the Company,
Company policies, internal controls,
investor relations etc.

The Directors are given full opportunity
to interact with senior management

personnel and are provided with all the
documents required and/or sought by
them to have a good understanding of
the Company, its business model and
various operations and the industry it is
apart.

Details of the familarisation
programmes have been disclosed on the
website of the Company at http://
www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

10. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors of the
Company have been appointed in terms
of the requirements of the Act and the
SEBI LODR Regulations. Formal letters
of appointment have been issued to the
Independent Directors and the terms
and conditions of appointment of
Independent Directors have been
disclosed on the website of the
Company- www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

11. DETAILS OF SHARES HELD BY NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AS ON MARCH 31,2025

Name of the Director Number of Shares
held
Mr. Harsh Kumar Pandey Nil
Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal Nil
Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini Nil
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla Nil
Dr. Rajiv Shukla Nil

12. BOARD PROCEDURE

The Company adheres to the provisions
of the Act, Secretarial Standards and
Listing Regulations with respect to
convening and holding the meetings of
the Board of Directors and its
Committees. The Board meets at regular
intervals. The Board Meetings (including
Committee Meetings) of the Company
are scheduled in advance to facilitate the
Directors to plan their schedule and to
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ensure meaningful participation in the
meetings. However, in case of a special
and urgent business need, the Board’s
approval is taken by  passing
resolution(s) by  circulation, as
permitted by law, which is noted in the
subsequent Board Meeting.

The Meetings of the Company are
governed by a structured agenda. The
Company Secretary in consultation with
the Managing Director finalizes the
agenda of the Board meetings. All major
agenda items, backed up by relevant and
comprehensive background information,
are sent at least seven days before the
date of the Board and Committee
Meetings, except for the meetings called
at a shorter notice, if any, in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Secretarial Standard
on Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1)
issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. In special and
exceptional circumstances,
consideration of additional or
supplementary items is taken up with
the approval of the Chair and majority
of the Independent Directors.

Senior management personnel are
invited from time to time to the Board
meetings to make presentations on
relevant issues or provide necessary
insights into the operations/ working of
the Company and corporate strategies.

The Board reviews periodical
compliances of all applicable laws, rules
and regulations and the statements
submitted by the Management. The
members of the Board have full freedom
to express their opinion in the Board and
decisions are taken after detailed
deliberations.

In addition to the above, pursuant to
Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations,
the minutes of the Board Meetings of the
subsidiary companies and a statement of
all  significant  transactions  and
arrangements entered into by the
unlisted subsidiary companies are also
placed before the Board. The Chairman
of various Board Committees brief the
Board on all the important matters
discussed and decided at their
respective Committee Meetings.

13

The draft Minutes of the proceedings of
the Meetings of the Board/Committee(s)
are circulated to all the Members of the
Board or the Committee for their perusal
within the stipulated time prescribed by
Secretarial Standard on Meeting of the
Board of Directors. Comments, if any,
received from the Directors are
incorporated in the Minutes in
consultation with the Managing Director.
The Minutes are approved by the
Members of the Board/Committee(s)
prior to the next Meeting. The signed
Minutes are circulated to all the
Members of the Board or the Committee
within the stipulated time prescribed by
Secretarial Standard on Meeting of the
Board of Directors.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board Committees play a crucial
role in the governance structure of the
Company and have been constituted as
per the requirement of the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The Committees
constituted by the Board focus on
specific areas and take informed
decisions within the framework of
delegated authority, and make specific
recommendations to the Board on
matters within their areas or purview.
The decisions and recommendations of
the Committees are placed before the
Board for information or for approval, as
required.

Your Company has five Board level
Committees

Audit Committee;
Nomination and
Committee;
Stakeholders Relationship Committee;
Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee;

Risk Management Committee.

Remuneration

The composition and functioning of
these Committees is in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations.

During the year under review, all
recommendations received from its
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Committees were accepted by the Board.
Details on the role and composition of
these Committees, including the number
of meetings held during the financial
year and the related attendance, are
provided below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition of Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company
has been constituted in terms of Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 18 read with Part C of the
Schedule 1I of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
Audit Committee inter-alia monitors and
provides effective  supervision of
financial reporting process and ensures
that financial statement is accurate,

sufficient and credible. The Committee
oversees and reviews the reports of
various auditors of the Company and
access the quality of financial reporting
in the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises of three
directors. Two-thirds of the members of
audit committee are Independent
Directors. The Chairman of the
Committee is an Independent director.
All members of the Committee are
financially literate. Audit Committee met
5 (five) times during the year under
review i.e., on May 27, 2024, August 14,
2024, November 13, 2024, December 3,
2024 and February 14, 2025 and the
time gap between two meetings were
less than one hundred and twenty days
as specified under Regulation 18 of the
Listing Regulations.

The Composition of Committee along with the details of the meetings held and attended by

the members, are as follows:

No. of No. of

meeting meeting

Name of the Member Position Category held attended
Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini Chairman Non-Executive Independent 5 5

Director

Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal Member Executive Director 5 5
*Mr. Harsh Kumar Pandey Member Independent Director 5 2
*Mr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla Member Independent Director 5 3

* Mr. Harsh Kumar Pandey ceased to be the Member of the Audit Committee due to his resignation
from the post Independent Director of the Company.
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla is appointed as the member of the Committee w.e.f 04.10.2024

All the members of the committee are placed before the meeting of the

possess sound knowledge of accounts, Board

audit and are financial management of Directors. All the recommendations

expertise. The audit committee met of the Audit Committee have been

prior to the finalization of the accounts accepted by the Board of Directors.

for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

The chairman of the Audit Committee,

Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini was present in

the last Annual general Meeting held on

invitees to the Audit Committee 30 September, 2024 to answer the

Meetings and the Company Secretary shareholders’ queries.

acts as the Secretary to the Audit ii. Terms of Reference:

Committee. The terms of reference, role and scope of
the Audit Committee are in line with

Minutes of the Audit Committee Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013

meetings and Regulation 18 read with Part C of

The Chief Financial Officer, the Internal
Auditor and the Statutory Auditors are
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Schedule 1I of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
including any amendments thereof,
which inter alia include:

The broad terms of reference of the
audit committee, inter alia, includes the
following.

Oversight of the Company’s financial
reporting process and the disclosure of
its financial information to ensure that
the financial statements are correct,
sufficient and credible;

Recommendation for appointment,
reappointment and replacement,
remuneration and terms of appointment
of auditors, including the internal
auditor, cost auditor and statutory
auditor, of the Company and the fixation
of audit fee;

Approval for all payments to the
statutory auditors for any other services
rendered by them;

Review with the management, the
annual financial statements and auditors
report thereon before submission to the
Board for its approval, with particular
reference to
Matters required to be included in the
directors’  responsibility  statement
forming part of the board’s report in
terms of clause (c) of subsection 3 of
section 134 of the Act;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies
and practices and reasons for the same;
Major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

Significant adjustments, if any, made in
the financial statements arising out of
audit findings;

Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial
statements;

Disclosure  of all related party
transactions;

Modified opinion(s), if any, in the draft
audit report.

Review with the management, the
quarterly financial statements before
submission to the board for its approval;

Review with the management a
statement of uses/application of funds
raised through an issue, the statement of
funds utilised for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice and the report
submitted by the agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a public or
right issue and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take
steps in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor’s
independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent
modification of transactions of the
company with its related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments;

j. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the

k.

I. Review with the

q.

company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial
controls and risk management systems;
management,
performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems;

. Review the adequacy of internal audit

function, if any, including the structure
of the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal
audit;
Discussion with internal auditors of any
significant findings and follow up
thereon;
Review the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors
into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the
board;
Discussion with statutory auditors
before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concern;

Look into the reasons for substantial
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defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;
Review the functioning of the Whistle
Blower mechanism;

Approve appointment of the chief
financial officer;

Review of utilization of loans and/or
advances from/ investment by the
holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding Rs. 100 Crore or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is
lower including existing
loans/advances/investments;

Review of compliances with SEBI

(Prevention of Insider Trading)
Amended Regulations, 2018 and to
verify that the systems for internal
control are adequate and are operating
effectively, at least once in a financial
year;
. Consider and comment on rationale,
cost-benefits and impact of schemes
involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation, etc., on the Company and
its shareholders;

Granting approval / omnibus approval
for transaction(s) with related parties,
subject to conditions as may be
prescribed under the Policy on Related
Party Transaction of the Company or
any other applicable laws, regulations,
guidelines or any subsequent
modification in the transactions thereof;
Review of:

i. Management Discussion and Analysis
of financial condition and results of
operations;

ii. Statement of significant related party
transactions (as defined by the audit
committee), submitted by management;
iii. Management letters/letters of
internal control weaknesses issued by
the statutory auditors;

iv. Internal audit reports relating to
internal control weaknesses;

v. Appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Internal
Auditor shall be subject to review by the
audit committee;

vi. To review the financial statements, in
particular, the investments made by any
unlisted subsidiary; and

y. Carrying out any other terms of

reference as may be decided by the
Board or specified/ provided under the
Companies Act 2013 or the SEBI Listing
Regulations or by any other regulatory
authority.

Reporting:

The Secretary shall circulate the minutes
of the meetings of the Committee to all
members of the Committee and the
Chairman of the Committee shall, at a
minimum attend the Board meeting at
which the accounts are approved.

The Audit Committee shall annually
review its terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the
Board any necessary changes.

If the Board does not accept the audit
committee recommendation the same
shall be disclosed in the Board’s report
along with the reasons therefore.

The Audit Committee Chairman shall
attend the AGM and shall answer
questions, through the Chairman of the
Board, on the Audit Committee’s
activities and its responsibilities.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (NRC):

Composition of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has been constituted in
terms of Regulation 19(4) read with Part
D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules framed thereunder. The
Committee oversees the Company's
nomination and appointment and
determination of remuneration process
of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company including the
Key Managerial Personnel. The Company
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also has in place a succession plan for
orderly succession of the directors and
personnel of the Company. The
Company ensures that all appointments
in the Company, including successions
are strictly based on seniority, expertise
and experience.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Company's

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee comprised of 3 (three) Non-
Executive Directors with two being
Independent Directors. During the year
ended 31st March, 2025, the Nomination
& Remuneration committee met once on

December 27, 2024.

The Composition of NRC with the details of the meetings held and attended by the members,

are as follows:

No. of No. of
Name of the Category Position meeting meeting
Director held attended
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Non-Executive Chairman 1 1
Khosla Independent Director
. o Non-Executive

Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini Independent Director Member 1 1

Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Non-Executive Director Member 1 1
Dugal

*Mr. Harsh Kumar Pandey stepped down as the Chairman of the NRC due to his resignation from the

post Independent Director of the Company.

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla appointed as the Chairperson of the NRC and Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal
appointed as the member of the NRC w.e.f 04.10.2024.

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla, Member of
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, was present at the Annual
General Meeting held on 30.09.2024 to
answer queries of shareholders.

The Company Secretary of the Company
acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
During the year under review, all the
recommendations made by the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee were accepted by the Board.
Minutes of the NRC meetings are placed
before the meeting of the Board of
Directors immediately following the
NRC meeting.

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are in line with Regulation
19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II of
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder, including any amendments
thereof, which inter-alia includes:

a) To formulate a criteria for determining

qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and
recommending to the Board a policy
relating to the remuneration for the
directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, while formulating the above
policy, should ensure that:

the level and composition of
remuneration be reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Directors of the quality required to run
our Company successfully;

relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks;
and

remuneration to Directors, key
managerial personnel and senior
management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the
Company and its goals.
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b)

0)

d)

g)

h)

i)

For every appointment of an
independent director, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee shall
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board and on the
basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilities
required of an independent director. The
person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an independent director
shall have the capabilities identified in
such description. For the purpose of
identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee may:

use the services of an external agencies,
if required;

consider candidates from a wide range
of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

consider the time commitments of the
candidates

To formulate a criteria for evaluation of
Independent Directors and the Board;

To devise a policy on diversity of Board
of Directors;

To review and recommend
remuneration of Managing Directors/
Whole time directors based on their
performance and defined assessment
criteria.

To identify persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management and
recommend their appointment and / or
removal to the Board of Directors of the
Company;

Determine whether to extend or
continue the term of appointment of the
Independent Director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of
Independent Directors

To recommend to the board, all
remuneration, in whatever form,
payable to senior management.

Other matters as set out in Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder and under Part D of
Schedule II read with Regulation 19(4)
of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015 and referred to it by the Board of
Directors.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE
BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS, INCLUDING
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board has carried out
an annual evaluation of its own
performance and the performance of
individual Directors, as well as
evaluation of the Committees of the
Board.

The performance evaluation of the
Board and its committees was
conducted on the basis of a structured
questionnaire which was prepared
taking into consideration various
aspects such as adequacy of the
constitution and composition of the
Board, establishment and delineation of
responsibilities to various Committees,
attendance and contribution at Board/
Committee Meetings, processes followed
at the meeting, effectiveness of Board.
The performance of the Managing
Director was evaluated on certain
additional parameters depending upon
their roles and responsibilities. The
evaluation included points on key
aspects of his role, including setting the
strategic agenda of the Board Meetings,
encouraging active engagement by all
Board members and motivating and
providing guidance to the Management,
achievement of business target.

The Independent Directors had met
separately on 04t March, 2025 without
the presence of Executive Directors and
the members of management and
discussed, inter-alia, the performance of
Non-Independent Directors and Board
as a whole.

The performance evaluation of all the
Independent Directors have been done
by the entire Board, excluding the
Director being evaluated. On the basis of
performance evaluation done it is
determined whether to extend or
continue the term of appointment,
whenever the respective term expires.
Further, the Board of Directors has
expressed its satisfaction on functioning
and performance of the Board and
Committees and the performance of all
the directors. They expressed their
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iii.

satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Remuneration to directors:

The Company’s remuneration strategy is
market-driven and aims at attracting
and retaining high caliber talent. The
strategy is in consonance with the
existing industry practice and is directed
towards rewarding performance, based
on review of achievements, on a
periodical basis.

In accordance with the relevant
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
the Listing Regulations, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has
formulated the criteria for determining
qualification, positive attributes and
independence of Directors and has
recommended to the Board a policy
relating to the remuneration of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management.

The salient features of the Nomination &
Remuneration Policy is provided in the
Board’s Report and the detailed policy is
available on the Company’s website at
http://www.rsdfinancelimited.com /pdf
/d833004a-9a3a-4aaf-a512-
9a818e55e360.pdf

Details of remuneration paid to
Executive Directors during the FY
ended March 31, 2025 are furnished
hereunder:

The appointment and remuneration of

Executive Directors are governed by the
Articles of Association of the Company
and the resolutions passed by the
shareholders of the Company. The
remuneration paid to  Executive
Directors is determined keeping in view
the industry benchmarks, the
performance of the Director, the
performance of the Company and upon
the recommendation of Nomination &

Remuneration committee.

Annual increments are linked to
performance and are decided by the
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and recommended to the
Board for approval thereof.

The remuneration policy is directed
towards rewarding performance, based

on review of achievements. It is aimed at
attracting and retaining high caliber
talent.

Details of remuneration paid to
Executive Directors during the year
2024-2025 are given below:

) Remuneration (in
Name of the Director (

Rs.)
Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal 30,00,000
Ms. Upneet Dugal 22,20,000

Presently, the Company does not have a
stock options scheme and did not give
any  performance linked annual
increments for its Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to
Independent Directors during the FY

ended March 31, 2025 are furnished
hereunder:

The Company is being benefited from
the expertise and advice provided by the
Independent Directors. They give their
valuable advice, suggestion and
guidance to the management of the
Company from time to time. The
Independent  Directors are  paid
remuneration by way of Sitting Fees. The
Independent Directors were paid Rs.
2000 (Rupees two thousand only) till
26.08.2024 and 4,000 (Rupees four
thousand only) w.ef 26.08.2024 as
sitting fees for each Meeting of the Board
or Committee of Directors attended by
them. The total amount of sitting fees
paid during the Financial Year 2024-25
was Rs. 78,896/- . No sitting fees are
paid to Non-Independent Directors. The
Company has not paid any commission
to Independent Directors for the year
under review.

Details of the Sitting fees paid are as
under:

Name of the Director Sitt.ing Fee
(inRs.)
Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini 30000
Mr. Harsh Kumar Pandey 21988
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Khosla 22000
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Apart from receiving sitting fee for
attending meetings, none of the
Independent  Directors had any
pecuniary relationship or transaction
with the Company during the financial
year 2024-25. Criteria of making
payment to Non-executive/ Independent
director is also available on the
Company’s website at
wwww.rsdfinancelimited.com
Remuneration paid by Subsidiaries of
the Companies:

None of the Independent Directors have
received or were entitled to receive any
remuneration (apart from sitting fees)
or commission from any of subsidiary
company of the Company in FY 2024-25.
The following Directors of the Company
have received the following
remuneration from Precision
Automotive Private Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary Company, SRP 0Oil Pvt.
Ltd. And Sigma HTS LLP, subsidiaries of
the Company:

Name of Name of the Amount

Director Subsidiary received
Rajeev Singh SRP 0il Pvt 1200000
Dugal Limited
Rajeev Singh Sigma HTS LLP 2400000
Dugal
KawaljeetKaur | SRP Oil Pvt 2400000
Dugal Limited
Kawaljeet Precision 2100000
Kaur Dugal Automotive Pvt

Limited

C. THE STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP

COMMITTEE (SRC):

Composition of Stakeholders
Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders Relationship
Committee has been constituted in
terms of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Regulation 20 read with Part
D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and the
rules framed thereunder. The primary
objective of Stakeholders Relationship
Committee is to consider and resolve the
grievances of stakeholders including
complaints relating to non-receipt of
annual report, transfer or transmission
of securities, non-receipt of
dividend/interest, issuance of share
certificates etc.

As on 31st March, 2025, the composition
of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee is in conformity with the
requirements of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20
of the Listing Regulations. The
Committee comprised of 2 (two) Non-
Executive Independent Directors. The
Company Secretary of the Company acts
as the Secretary to the Stakeholder's
Relationship Committee. The Committee
held one meeting during the year on 04t
March, 2025. The composition and
attendance of committee meetings
during the year, is as under:

No. of No. of
N f the Direct Cat Positi meeting meeting
ame of the Director ategory osition held attended

Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal Executive Director Member 1 1
Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Non-Executive Director Member 1 1
Dugal
Mr. Malkeet Singh Non-Executive Chairperson 1 1
Saini Independent Director P

*Mr. Harsh Kumar Pandey ceased to be the Member of the SRC due to his resignation from the post

Independent Director of the Company.

Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal appointed as the member of the SRC w.e.f 04.10.2024.

Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini, Chairman of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
was present at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 30

ii.

September, 2024 to answer members’
queries.

Terms of Reference:

The Committee’s constitution and terms
of reference are in compliance with the
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a)

b)

)

d)

provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Regulation 20 read with Part D of
Schedule 1I of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and the
rules framed thereunder, including any
amendments thereof, which inter-alia
includes:

review all matters connected with the
Company’s transfer of securities;
Resolving the grievances of the security

holders of the listed entity including
complaints  related to  transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of
annual report, non-receipt of declared
dividends, issue of new/duplicate
certificates, general meetings etc.;
Review of measures taken for effective
exercise of voting rights by
shareholders;

overseeing and re-materialization,
consolidation of shares, etc.;

Review of adherence to the service
standards adopted by the listed entity in
respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent;

Review of the various measures and
initiatives taken by the listed entity for
reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of
dividend warrants/ annual reports/
statutory notices by the shareholders of
the company.

The Company Secretary of the Company
and the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, S.K. Infosolutions Private Limited
attend to all grievances of the
shareholders.

The Minutes of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee Meetings are
circulated to the Board and noted by the
Board of Directors at the Board
Meetings.

Continuous efforts are made to ensure
that grievances are more expeditiously
redressed to the complete satisfaction of
the investors.  Shareholders are
requested to furnish their updated

b)

<)

d)

telephone  numbers and  e-mail
addresses to facilitate prompt action.
The details of the complaints received
during the FY 2024-25 and the status of
the same are as below:

Number of pending complaints as on
01.04.2024 - Nil

Number of complaints received during
the year - 3

Number of complaints disposed of
during the year - 3

Number of complaints not solved to the
satisfaction of the shareholders during
the year - Nil

Number of complaints pending as at
31.03.2025 - Nil

The certificates required from a
Company Secretary  in Practice
confirming the issue of certificates for
transfer, sub-division, and consolidation
etc. and submits a copy thereof to the
Stock Exchanges in terms of Regulation
40(9) of the Listing Regulations and the
Compliance Certificate under Regulation
7(3) of the Listing Regulations,
confirming that all activities in relation
to both physical and electronic share
transfer facility are maintained by
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent are
withdrawn by SEBI (LODR) (Third
Amendment), 2024 No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2024/218 dt. 12th December
2024has been withdrawn.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Composition of Stakeholders
Relationship Committee:

Pursuant to the provisions of section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the
Company has constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee for the
purpose of formulating and
recommending a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy to the Board and
indicating activities to be undertaken by
the Company as per Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, recommending
the budget and monitoring the activities.
As on 31st March, 2025, the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee
comprises of two Executive Directors
and one Independent Director. The
Company Secretary of the Company acts
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ii.

b)

as the Secretary to the committee. The
Committee met once during the year i.e.
March 04, 2025. The composition and

attendance of members during the year,
is as under:

Name of the Director Category Position No. of No. of

meeting meeting

held attended
Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal Managing Director Chairman 1 1
Ms. Upneet Dugal Executive Director Member 1 1
Mrs. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal Non - Executive Member 1 1

Director

Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini Independent Director Member 1 1

The CSR Policy of the Company is
displayed on the website of the
Company at the web-link:

www.rsdfinancelimited.com/policies(pa

th)

Terms of Reference:

The Committee’s constitution and terms
of reference are in compliance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
issued thereunder.

To review the existing CSR Policy and to
make it more comprehensive so as to
indicate the activities to be undertaken
by the Company as specified in Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013;

To provide guidance on various CSR
activities to be undertaken by the
Company and to monitor process; and
Recommend the amount of expenditure
to be incurred on the activities as above.

THE RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE:

Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations
provides that top 1000 listed entities
and a high value debt listed entity as at
the end of immediate previous financial
year has to constitute a risk
management committee in accordance
with the Regulation. Your Company does
not rank among the top 1000 listed
entities and a high value debt listed
entity as on 31st March, 2025.

Accordingly the requirement of

14.

constitution of risk management
committee is not applicable on the
Company.

However, the Company has a Risk
Management Committee. The
composition of the Committee is in
conformity with the Listing Regulations,
with majority of members being
Directors of the Company.

The roles and responsibilities of the a
Risk Management Committee are as
prescribed under Regulation 21 of the
Listing Regulations and includes
monitoring and review of risk
management plan and reporting the
same to the Board of Directors
periodically as it may be referred by the
Board of Directors, from time to time.
The Company has formulated and
implemented a Risk Management Policy
covering key aspects as provided under
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Mr. Sital Prasad Swain, Company
Secretaries in practice, has conducted a
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
year 2024-25. The Audit Report
confirms that the Company has complied
with the applicable provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, the
Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and
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15

16.

iy

2)

3)

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, applicable RBI Regulations, Listing
Agreements with the Stock Exchanges,
applicable SEBI Regulations and other
laws applicable to the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report forms part
of the Board’s Report.

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE
REPORT

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated 8th
February, 2019, the Annual Secretarial
Compliance Report for the financial year
2024-25 issued by Mr. Sital Prasad
Swain, Company Secretaries in practice,
confirming  compliance  with  all
applicable SEBI  Regulations and
Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder,
has been submitted to the Stock
Exchanges within the due date.

SUBSIDIARIES

As on 31st March, 2025, the Company
has the following three subsidiaries:

SRP 0il Private Limited (material
unlisted subsidiary)

Precision Automotive Private Limited
(wholly owned, material unlisted
subsidiary)

Sigma HTS LLP (Subsidiary of Precision
Automotive Pvt. Ltd.)

The Subsidiaries of the Company
function independently, with an
adequately empowered Board of
Directors and sufficient resources. The
Financial Statements of the subsidiary
Companies are reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Minutes of the Board
Meetings of the Company’s subsidiary
are placed before the Board of Directors
of the Company regularly and the
attention of the Directors is drawn to all
significant
arrangements entered into by them.

Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations
further stipulates that at least one
Independent Director on the Board of
Directors of the listed entity shall be a
Director on the Board of Directors of an
unlisted material subsidiary. As per the

transactions and

17.

provisions, Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini,
Independent  Director has  been
appointed as an Independent Director
on the Board of Precision Automotive
Private Limited and SRP Oil Private
Limited.

The Company has formulated a policy
for determining its ‘Material’
Subsidiaries and the same is available on
the website of the Company-
wwww.rsdfinancelimited.com

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of the last three general body
meetings held are given below:
Locations and time of last 3 Annual
General Meetings (AGMs) are given
below:

Flzzralslal Venue Date & Time
Holding No. -
4, The Alcor
Hotel, Ramdas 11.00 AM,
2023-2024 Bhatta, September 30,
Bistupur, 2024
Jamshedpur -
831001
Holding No. -
4, The Alcor
Hotel, Ramdas 11.00 AM,
2022-2023 Bhatta, September 30,
Bistupur, 2023
Jamshedpur -
831001
Holding No. -
4, The Alcor
Hotel, Ramdas 11.00 AM,
2021-2022 Bhatta, September 30,
Bistupur, 2022
Jamshedpur -
831001

b) Particulars of Special Resolutions
passed in the last three AGMs are
given below:

2023- No special resolution required to
2024 be passed

Appointment of Mr. Malkeet
Singh Saini and Pradeep Kumar
Khosla as the Independent Directors
of the Company in terms of
provisions of Section 149, 150 and
152, Schedule IV of the Companies
Act, 2013 and provisions of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015.
Obligations and Disclosure

2022-
2023

Requirements) R2015
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18.

Payment of Managerial
Remuneration under section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 17(6)(e) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015

2021-
2022

During FY2024-25, One Extra-ordinary
General Meeting was held and no
resolution was passed through postal
ballot. None of the business proposed to
be transacted at the ensuing AGM
requires passing of a Special Resolution
by way of Postal Ballot.

Postal Ballot whenever conducted will
be carried out as per the procedure
mentioned in Rule 22 of the Companies
(Management and  Administration)
Rules, 2014, including any amendment
thereof.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Financial results: Prior intimation of
the Board Meeting to consider and
approve Unaudited / Audited Financial
Results of the Company is given to the
Stock Exchanges and also disseminated
on the website of the Company. The
Company’s quarterly financial results
are submitted to the stock exchanges
within forty five days from the end of the
quarter and the audited annual results
are announced within sixty days from
the end of the financial year as required
under the Listing Regulations.

ii.Newspapers where in results

iil.

normally published: The Company’s
Quarterly Unaudited/ Audited Results
are published in prominent daily
newspapers, viz. Morning India (English

daily) and Sanmarg(vernacular
newspaper) and are also posted on the
Company’s website

www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

Website: The Company’s website
(www.rsdfinancelimited.com) contains a
separate dedicated section “Investor
Relations” where shareholders’
information is available. The Company’s
Annual Report is also available in a
downloadable form. All official news
releases and filings made to the Stock

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Exchanges are wupdated on the
Company’s website.
Presentations to institutional
investors/ analysts: There were no
presentations made to institutional
investors or to the analysts during the
year under review.

Annual Report: The Annual Report

containing, inter alia, Audited
Standalone Financial Statement,
Consolidated Financial Statement,
Directors’ Report (including

Management Discussion  &Analysis
Report, Corporate Governance Report),
Auditors’ Report and other important
information is circulated to members
and forwarded to the stock exchanges
and also available in downloadable form
on the Company’s website and can be
accessed at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com/investorrel

ations/annualreport.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing
Centre (the “Listing Centre”): BSE’s
Listing Centre is a web-based
application designed for corporates. All
price sensitive information and matters
that are material to shareholders are
disclosed to the respective Stock
Exchanges where the securities of the
Company are listed. All submissions to
the Exchanges including periodical
compliance filings are made through
their respective electronic online filing
systems. The same are also available on
the Company’s website.

SEBI Complaints Redress System
(SCORES): The investor complaints are
processed in a centralized web-based
complaints redress system. The salient
features of this system are - Centralised
database of all complaints, online upload
of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by
concerned companies and online
viewing by investors of actions taken on
the complaint and its current status.
During the year 10 complaints were
received those have been closed.
Designated Exclusive email-id: The
Company has designated
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19.

rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.comas an e-mail ID

Company are also available in the

for the purpose of registering Investor Relations section of the
complaints/ Company’s website.

queries/ requests by investors and the

same is displayed on the Company’s ix. Dematerialisation of shares: The
website. Company’s Shares are  tradable
In line with the “Green Initiative” compulsorily in electronic form. The
undertaken by the Ministry of Corporate International Securities Identification
Affairs, the Company will be sending this Number  (‘ISIN’) allotted to the
year's  Annual Report (including Company’s Equity shares is
subsequent notices and INE616F01022.

communications, as permissible) to the
shareholders who have registered their
email address with the Company/
Depository. The Annual Reports of your

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i. Annual General Meeting :

Date : September 26, 2025

Day : Friday

Time : 11:00 AM

Venue : Professional - [, The Alcor Hotel, 2nd Floor, H.No - 4, Ramdas Bhatta, Bistupur,
Jamshedpur, Purbi Singhbhum, Jharkhand -831001.

ii. Corporate Identity Number
L17222JH1963PLC013316
iii. Financial Calendar (tentative)
The Financial year is 1st April to 31st March every year and for the FY 2025-26, the financial
results are proposed to be declared as per the following tentative schedule:

Particulars Schedule

Financial results for the quarter ending June 30, 2025 on or before 14t August, 2025

Financial results for the quarter ending September 30,
2025

on or before 14th November, 2025

Financial results for the quarter ending December 31,
2025

on or before 14th February, 2026

Financial results for the quarter ending March 31,2026 | on or before 30th May, 2026

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31,
2026

on or before30t September, 2026

iv. Book Closure Period vi. Listing on Stock Exchange & Stock

Code
The Register of Members and Share
Transfer Books of the Company will be
closed from Friday, September 19, 2025

following Stock Exchanges:

The Company’s shares are listed on the

to Friday, September 26, 2025 (both e  BSE Limited (BSE)
days inclusive) for the purpose of the Floor - 25, P] Towers, Dalal Street,
62nd Annual General Meeting. Mumbai - 400 001
.. SCRIP CODE - 539875
Dividend Payment Date

Your Directors have not recommended (CSE)

any dividend for the FY 2024-25. 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata - 700 001
SCRIP CODE - 28123

e (Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
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Custodial Fees for 2024-25 to NSDL and

The Annual listing fee for the year 2024- CDSL have also been paid.

25 has been paid to the above Stock vii. Demat ISIN numbers in NSDL and
Exchanges where the securities of the CDSL for equity shares -

Company are listed. The Annual INE616F01022

viil. Market Price Data and Performance of Company’s Share Prices

Monthly High and Low of Company’s Shares during each month, in last financial year, is as below:

CSE Limited (CSE) BSE Limited (BSE)
Month High Low Volume High Low Volume
(No. of shares (No. of
traded) shares
traded)
Apr - 24 N.T N.T N.T 116.35 88.10 10582
May 24 N.T N.T N.T 120.00 92.05 19685
June -24 N.T N.T N.T 119.00 9061 33519
July - 24 N.T N.T N.T 230.00 107.05 151565
Aug - 24 N.T N.T N.T 184.00 128.00 37992
Sep -24 N.T N.T N.T 169.85 141.00 14229
Oct -24 N.T N.T N.T 195.00 12745 15854
Nov -24 N.T N.T NT 180.50 13310 95530
Dec -24 N.T N.T N.T 300.10 150.00 115414
Jan -25 N.T N.T N.T 200.45 15710 g459
Feb - 25 N.T N.T N.T 186.40 117.50 5885
Mar - 25 N.T N.T N.T 139.95 11470 g7g1

Source: www.bseindia.com

Note: During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, there was no trading in the equity shares of the
Company at CSE. (N.T denotes-No Trades)

iX. Performance in comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index
etc. -

The chart below plots the monthly closing price of RSD Finance Limited versus the BSE -
Sensex for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Month BSE Sensex Highest price RSD Highest price
Apr-24 75,124.28 116.35
May-24 76,009.68 120
Jun-24 79,671.58 119
Jul-24 81,908.43 230
Aug-24 82,637.03 184
Sep-24 85,978.25 169.85
Oct-24 84,648.40 195
Nov-24 80,569.73 180.5
Dec-24 82,317.74 300.1
Jan-25 80,072.99 200.45
Feb-25 78,735.41 186.4
Mar-25 78,741.69 139.95
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X.

xi.

xii.

BSE Sensex vs. RSD Finance Limited
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I BSE Sensex Highest price

The shares of the Company have not
been suspended from trading.
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents
M/s. S. K. Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd

D/42, Katju Nagar (Near South City
Mall),Ground Floor,

Katju Nagar Bazar, Jadavpur

Kolkata -700032.

Contact No: 033-24120027, 2002

Email: skcdilip@gmail.com

Address for correspondence:

For Shares held in Physical form

Shareholders may correspond with the
Registrar and Transfer Agents at:

M/s. S.K. Infosolutions Private Limited
D/42, Katju Nagar (Near South City Mall)
Ground Floor, Katju Nagar Bazar
Jadavpur, Kolkata, West Bengal - 700
032

Tel: 033-24120027/29

Email id - skcdilip@gmail.com
Shareholders holding shares in physical
form may please note that instructions
regarding change of address, bank
details, e-mails ids, nomination and
power of attorney should be given to the
Company’s RTA i.e., S. K. Infosolutions
Pvt. Ltd . SEBI vide circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR
/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021 had

350
300
250
200
150
100

e RSD Highest price

laid down common and simplified norms
for processing Investor’s Service request
by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN,
KYC details and nomination.

As per the above said circular the
shareholders holding physical securities
are required to mandatory furnish PAN,
KYC details and Nomination by holders
and are also required to link PAN with
Aadhaar. The said circular stipulates
that folios wherein the required
documents are not made available on or
before April 1, 2023 shall be frozen by
RTA.

The Company had sent
communication to all physical holders
along with relevant Forms to enable the
shareholders to update the PAN, KYC
and other relevant details with RTA/
Company in line with the SEBI
directives. The PAN, KYC and other
relevant documents are being processed

relevant

by RTA on receipt from the
shareholders.

For Shares held in Demat form
Investors’ concerned Depository

Participant(s) and/or S.K. Infosolutions
Private Limited. Your Company has also
designated rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com as
an exclusive E-mail ID for Investors for
the purpose of registering complaints.
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Shareholders  holding  shares in
electronic form may please note that
instructions  regarding change of
address, bank details, email ids,
nomination and power of attorney
should be given directly to the DP.

xiii. Share Transfer

Pursuant to Regulation 40 of Listing
Regulations, the requests for effecting
transfer of securities shall not be
processed unless the securities are held
in the dematerialised form with
respective Depositories i.e, National
Securities Depository Limited and
Central Depository Services (India)
Limited. However, this restriction shall
not be applicable to the request received
for effecting transmission or
transposition  of  physical shares.
Shareholders are accordingly advised to
avail the facility of dematerialisation
holding shares in physical form by
getting in touch with any Depository
Participant having registration with
SEBI.

Equity Shares in physical form are
processed by the RTA. The requests
received by the Company/ RTA for
dematerialisation / rematerialisation
are disposed off expeditiously. Your
Company obtained, a certificate from a
Company  Secretary in  Practice,
certifying that all certificates for
transfer, Regulations and were duly filed
with the Stock Exchanges.
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Xiv. Distribution of Shareholding
Table 1 and Table 2 list the distribution of the shareholding of the Equity Shares of the Company by
size and by ownership class as on 31st March, 2025.

TABLE - 1:- DISTRIBUTION OF SHARE HOLDING BY SIZE AS ON MARCH 31, 2025

Shareholders Shareholding
istributi No of No. of
Distribution 00 % to total no 00 % to Total
Share shares
of holders Shares
holders
1-500 1074 76.01 1,15,387 0.89
501 -1000 205 14.51 1,42,923 1.10
1001 - 2000 88 6.23 1,09,285 0.84
2001 -3000 9 0.64 22,806 0.18
3001 - 4000 3 0.21 10,997 0.08
4001 - 5000 10 0.71 48,766 0.38
5001 - 10000 6 0.42 40,308 0.31
10001 & Above 18 1.27 1,24,56,008 96.21
TOTAL 1413 100.00 1,29,46,480 100.00

TABLE - 2:- SHAREHOLDING PATTERN BY OWNERSHIP AS ON MARCH 31, 2025:

Category of shareholder Number of Total number of As a percentage
shareholders shares (%)

Grouirfgzggi?ai:igg}zﬁgzz, etc. N 97,097,436 74.98%
Financial Institutions 0 0 0.00%
0CBs/Foreign Companies 0 (1] 0.00%
Other - Bodies Corporate/ Trusts 12 20,17,900 15.54%
General Public 1397 12,21,144 9.48%

TOTAL 1413 1,29,46,480 100.00%

XV.

Dematerialisation of Shares
Based on a SEBI directive, the Equity
shares of the Company are permitted to
be traded only in dematerialised form
and are available for demat under both
the Depositories in India - National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and

Central

Limited (CDSL).

As on March 31, 2025,
1,16,32,300

Equity

Depository Services (India)

a total of

shares of the

Company representing 89.85% of the
total Equity Share Capital were held in

dematerialised

form.

The entire

Promoters’ Group shareholding of the
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Company is in dematerialised form. The
bifurcation of shares held in Physical and
Demat form as on March 31, 2025 is given
below:

For any assistance in converting physical
shares in electronic form, investors may
approach S.K. Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd or the
Company Secretary of the Company.

I Nature of holding No. of Shares Shareholding I
NSDL 1,15,03,618 88.86%
CDSL 1,28,682 0.99%
PHYSICAL 13,14,180 10.15%

M Electronic — NSDL ® Electronic — CDSL

Physical

XVi.

xvii.

xviii.

xix.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or
any Convertible Instruments,
Conversion Date and likely impact on
equity

As on 31st March, 2025 the Company did
not have any outstanding
GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible
Instruments.

Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign
Exchange Risk and Hedging activities
Your Company does not deal in any
commodity and hence is not directly
exposed to any commodity price risk.

Accordingly, the disclosure pursuant to
SEBI  Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD1/CIR/P/2018/ 0000000141 dated
15th November, 2018 is not required to
be furnished by the Company.

List of all credit ratings obtained by
the entity:

None

Plant location:

NS-13, 2nd Phase,

XX.

XXi.

20.

Industrial Area
Adityapur, Jamshedpur - 832 109

Registered Office

Holding No. - 4, TheAlcor Hotel
RamdasBhatta, Bistupur,

Jamshedpur, PurbiSinghbhum,

Jharkhand - 831 001

Address For Correspondence
Shareholders may correspond with the
Registrar and Transfer Agents at:

M/s. S.K. Infosolutions Private Limited
D/42, Katju Nagar (Near South City Mall)
Ground Floor, Katju Nagar Bazar
Jadavpur, Kolkata, West Bengal - 700 032
Tel: 033-24120027 /29

Email id - skcdilip@gmail.com

on all matters relating to transfer,
transmission, dematerialisation of shares,
payment of dividend, change of address,
change in bank details and any other
query relating to the Equity Shares of the
Company.

For any query on the Annual Report
please contact the Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer of the Company:

Ms. Subhajita Biswal

RSD Finance Limited

Holding No. - 4, The Alcor Hotel
Ramdas Bhatta

Bistupur, Jamshedpur

Jharkhand - 831001
Tel No -+91 9234001791

Email id: rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com

Your Company can also be visited at its
website: www.rsdfinancelimited.com
Shareholders are requested to quote their
Folio No./DP ID & Client ID, e-mail
address, telephone number and full
address while corresponding with the
Company and its RTA.

DISCLOSURES

. Disclosures of Transactions with

Related Party

The Company has put in place a policy for
Related Party Transactions (RPT Policy)
which has been approved by the Board of
Directors. The Policy provides for
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identification of RPTs, necessary
approvals by the Audit Committee/
Board/ Shareholders, reporting and
disclosure requirements in compliance
with Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
same can be assessed at the Company’s
website at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, all the
transactions with related parties have
been made at arm’s length basis. The
Company did not have any material
pecuniary relationship or transactions
with Non- Executive Directors apart from
paying Director’s remuneration. Further,
the Directors have not entered into any
contracts with the Company or its
subsidiaries, which will be in material
conflict with the interest of the Company.
You may refer to Note no. 31 to the
financial statement which contains
related party disclosures. No materially
significant related party transactions
have been entered into during FY 2024-
25 having potential conflict of interest.

. Details of non-compliance by the
Company, penalties, strictures
imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory
authority on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three
years:

The Company has always complied with
the requirements of the Stock Exchanges,
SEBI and other statutory authorities on
all matters relating to capital markets.
There was no action initiated against the
listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/
material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by
Stock Exchanges (including under the
Standard Operating Procedures issued by
SEBI through various circulars) under the
aforesaid  Acts/  Regulations and
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder.
There were no instance of non-
compliance with any legal requirements
during the year under review or during
the last three years.

None of the Company’s listed securities
are suspended from trading.

. Accounting treatment in preparation

of Financial Statements:

The financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016
read with Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

. Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil

Mechanism:

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle-Blower Policy under which the
employees are free to report violations of
applicable laws and regulations and the
Code of Conduct. A facility is available to
report to the management, on a
confidential basis, any practices or
actions believed to be inappropriate or
illegal under the Company’s Code of
Conduct. The Code provides for adequate
safeguards against victimization of
director(s)/employee(s) who avail of the
mechanism and also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee in exceptional cases.

This mechanism has been communicated
to all concerned and posted on the
Company’s website
www.rsdfinancelimited.com.

During the year under review, no
employee was denied access to the Audit
Committee.

. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

Practices:

In compliance with the provisions of SEBI
(Prohibition  of Insider  Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time
to time) the Company has adopted a Code
of Conduct called the “Internal Code of
Practices & Procedures for prevention of
Insider Trading” with a view to regulate
trading in securities by its’ Designated
Persons and immediate relative of

80



RSD FINANCE LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

designated persons when in possession of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
(“UPSI").

The Code lays down guidelines for
procedures to be followed and
disclosures to be made while dealing with
Securities of the Company and cautions
them of the consequences of violations.
The Insider Code is available on website
of the company at
www.rsdfinancelimited.com /codes/polici

es.
All Designated person (as per code)
submits the Annual disclosure in regard
to the Trading done by them and their
immediate relatives in the securities of
the company. The intimation of closure of
trading windows are informed to the
designated person as and when
applicable.

All the Board of Directors, designated
employees and connected persons have
affirmed compliance with the Code.

. Details of utilization of funds raised
through preferential allotment or
qualified institutions placement as
specified under Regulation 32 (7A):

The Company has not raised any funds
through  preferential allotment or
qualified institutions placement as
specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

. Policy and procedure for inquiry in
case of leak/ suspected leak of
Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information:

The Company has formulated the “Policy
and procedure for inquiry in case of
leak/suspected leak of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information” in line with the
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018.

The objective of this Policy is to inter alia,
strengthen the internal control systems
to prevent leak of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information (“UPSI”),
restrict/prohibit communication of UPSI

with unauthorized person(s) and curb the
unethical practices of sharing sensitive
information by persons having access to
UPSL

. Familarisation Programme:

The Company has conducted the
Familarisation Program for Independent
Directors. The Program aims to provide
insights into the Company to enable the
Directors to understand its business in
depth, to acclimatize them with the
processes and business of the Company
and to assist them in performing their
role as Independent Directors of the
Company. The Company’s Policy of
conducting the Familarisation Program
has been disclosed on the website of the
Company at
http: //www.rsdfinancelimited.com/inves

torrelations/codes&policies (Path)

. Policy for determining Material

Subsidiaries

Your Company has formulated a Policy
for determining ‘Material’ Subsidiaries as
defined in Regulation 16 of the Listing
Regulations. This Policy has been hosted
on the website of the Company and can
be accessed through the web link

http: //www.rsdfinancelimited.com/inves

torrelations/codes&policies (Path)

. Recommendations of Committees:

During the financial year 2024-25, there
have been no circumstances where the
Board of Directors of the Company have
not accepted any recommendation made
by any of the committees of the Board.

. Total fees paid to the Statutory

Auditors and all entities in the
network firm/ entities

The total fees for all services paid by the
Company to the statutory auditor and all
entities in the network firm/network
entity of which the statutory auditors is a
partis Rs. 2,58,000/-
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L. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual

Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company is committed to create a
safe and healthy working environment
that enables the employees to work
without fear of sexual harassment at
workplace.

Status of complaints for the Financial
Year 2024-25 is as follows:

Number of complaints

a. received during the financial Nil
year
Number of complaints

b. disposed off during the Nil

financial year

Number of complaints pending as

at the end of the financial year Nil

. Compliance with Regulation 34(3) and
Part F of Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations

The Company does not have any shares in
the demat suspense account or unclaimed
suspense account.

. Nomination Facility

Shareholders whose shares are in
physical form and wish to make/change a
nomination in respect of their shares in
the Company, as permitted under Section
72 of the Companies Act, 2013, may
submit to RTA the prescribed Forms SH-
13/SH-14.

During the year under review, the
Company has complied with the
mandatory requirements of listing
regulations. Quarterly compliance
report on Corporate Governance, in
the prescribed format, duly signed by
the Managing Director is submitted
regularly with the Stock Exchanges
where the shares of the Company are
listed. Further, the Company has also
put its best endeavor to comply non
mandatory requirements.

P. The Company ensures dissemination
of applicable information wunder
Regulation 46(2) of the Listing
Regulations on the Company’s website
(www.rsdfinancelimited.com). The
section on ‘Investor Relations’ on the
website serves to inform the members
by giving complete financial details,
annual reports, press releases,
shareholding patterns and such other
information relevant to shareholders.

Q. During the FY ended March 31, 2025
the Company did not engage in
commodity price risk and commodity
hedging activity.

R. No funds have been raised through
public issue of Equity or Debt in the
form of public or right or preferential
issue during the year under review.

S. There has been no instance of non-
compliance of any requirement of
Corporate Governance Report as
prescribed under SEBI (Listing

Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements).
T. Adoption of Non - Mandatory

Requirements of Regulation 27 read
with Part E of Schedule II of SEBI
Listing Regulations

(a) Shareholder Rights

Half-yearly and other quarterly financial
statements are published in newspapers,
uploaded on Company’s  website
www.rsdfinancelimited.com and
submitted to Stock exchanges on which
Equity shares of the Company are listed
viz., the BSE Limited and Calcutta Stock
Exchange Limited;

(b) Modified opinion(s) in audit report

It has always been the Company’s
endeavor to present financial statements
with unmodified audit opinion. The
Statutory Auditors have issued an
unmodified audit opinion on the
Company’s financial statements for the
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year ended 31st March, 2025.

(c) Reporting of Internal Auditor

21.

22.

23.

The Internal Auditor reports directly to
the Audit Committee and they participate
in the meetings of the Audit Committee of
the Board and present their Internal
Audit

observations/reports to the Audit
Committee.

The Company has fully complied with
the applicable requirements specified
in Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b)
to Clause (i) of sub-regulation 2 of
Regulation 46 of Para C of Schedule V
of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements).

Compliance with the Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted the “Code of
Conduct for Directors &  Senior
Management Personnel” and “Code of
Conduct for Independent Directors”. The
Code incorporates the duties of Directors
and Employees. The Codes are available
on the website of the Company at
https//:www.rsdfinancelimited.com /inv

estorrelations/codes&policies (path).
All the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed

compliance with the applicable Code of
Conduct for the financial year 2024-25. A
declaration to this effect, signed by the
Managing Director forms part of this
Report.

Certificates from Practicing Company
Secretaries

As required by Regulation 34(3) and
Schedule V Part E of the Listing

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 13.08.2025

24.

25.

Regulations, the certificate given by Sital
Prasad Swain, Practicing Company
Secretaries, is annexed to this repor.

The Company has received declaration
from all the Directors on the Board of the
Company that they are not debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies by
SEBI/MCA or any other such statutory
authority. A certificate received from a
company secretary in practice in this
regard forms part of this report.

Certification by Managing Director and
Chief Financial Officer:

In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with
Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure
requirements) Regulation, 2015, a
certificate from the Managing Director
(MD) and the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) of the Company confirming,
amongst other aspects, about the
correctness of the financial statements,
adequacy of internal control measures
and matters to be reported to the Audit
Committee, were taken on record at the
Board meeting held on April 04, 2025 and
the same is annexed hereinafter and
forms a part of this Annual Report.

Auditors Certificate on Corporate
Governance:

Certificate from the Company’s Auditors,
M/s. S D Y& Co., confirming compliance
with conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated under Regulation 34 read
with  Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, is annexed to the Directors’
Report forming part of the Annual Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Rajeev Singh Dugal Upneet Dugal
Managing Director Director

DIN - 00052037 DIN - 07680726
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
To
The Members,
RSD Finance Limited
H. No -4, The Alcor Hotel
Ramdas Bhatta, Opp. Indian Oil Petrol Pump
Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of RSD FINANCE LIMITED (CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316) having its Registered Office at
H. No. 4, The Alcor Hotel, Ramdas Bhatta, Bistupur, Jamshedpur, Purbi Singhbhum - 831001
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Reserve Bank of India or any
such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. DIN Name of Designation Date of
No Director Appointment in
. Company
1. 00052037 RAJEEV SINGH Executive - Managing 10/04/1998
DUGAL Director
2. 00052100 KAWALJEET KAUR Non - Executive 13/08/2020
DUGAL Director
3. 07680726 UPNEET DUGAL Executive Director 28/12/2016
4. 02592649 MALKEET SINGH Non-Executive 30/09/2023
SAINI Independent
Director
5. 06823537 PRADEEP KUMAR Non-Executive 30/09/2023
KHOSLA Independent
Director

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the

responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these

based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Sd/-

Sital Prasad Swain

Practicing Company Secretary

Membership No: F6338

CP No: 6814

UDIN: F006338G000914663

P.R.NO- 6863/2025

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: 01.08.2025

84



RSD FINANCE LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

To,
The Members
RSD Finance Limited

Sub: Declaration by the Managing Director under Para D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

I, Rajeev Singh Dugal, Managing Director of RSD Finance Limited, hereby affirm and declare, to the best
of my knowledge and belief and on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company and senior
management personnel, that:

The Board of Directors has laid down a code of conduct for all Board Members and senior management
of the Company;

The code of conduct has been posted on the website of the Company;

The code of ethics code of conduct has been complied with.

For RSD Finance Limited

Sd/-

Rajeev Singh Dugal
Managing Director
DIN - 00052037

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: April 04, 2025
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PRACTISING CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH

THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS UNDER SEBI (LISTING

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Members
RSD Finance Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by “RSD Finance
Limited” (the Company) for the year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to
27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by
the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company. This Certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with the aforesaid Regulations
and may not be suitable for any other purpose.

ForM/s. SDY & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN NO- 016850C

Sd/-

JAY PRAKASH HEERWAL
PARTNER

Membership No. 415136

UDIN: 25415136BMLXVQ9434
Place - Jamshedpur
Date - 24.05.2025
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CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
(In Terms of Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Board of Directors
RSD Finance Limited

We, Rajeev Singh Dugal and Ravi Joshi, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief
Financial Officer of RSD Finance Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief
certify that -

a) We have reviewed the financial statements of RSD Finance Limited for the quarter and financial year
ended on 31st March, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

these statements do not contain any material untrue statement or omit any material fact nor do they
contain statements that might be misleading;

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing Indian accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31st March, 2025 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we
are aware have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have been taken to
rectify these deficiencies.

d) i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the
year under reference;

ii) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements; and

iif) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of
the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
RAJEEV SINGH DUGAL RAVI JOSHI
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: May 24, 2025
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Secretarial Compliance Report of RSD Finance Ltd
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025

To,

The Board of Directors

RSD Finance Ltd

H.No. 4, The Alcor Hotel Ramdas Bhatta,
Bistupur, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand-831001

I have conducted the review of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by RSD Finance Ltd (hereinafter referred as ‘the listed entity’),
having its Registered Office at H. No. 4, The Alcor Hotel Ramdas Bhatta, Bistupur, Jamshedpur,
Jharkhand-831001, in terms of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, read with SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 2024. Secretarial Review was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the listed entity’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the listed entity and also the information provided by the listed
entity, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, I
hereby report that the listed entity has, during the period covering the financial year ended on March
31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined:

(a) allthedocumentsandrecordsmadeavailabletomeandexplanationprovidedbyRSD Finance Ltd having
CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316 (the “Company” “listed entity”);

(b) the filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges;
(c) website of the listed entity (website address: rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com); and
(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this Report for the

Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 (“Review Period”)in respect of compliance with the provisions
of:

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars,
guidelines issued thereunder ;and

(b) theSecuritiesContracts(Regulation)Act,1956(“SCRA”),rulesmadethereunderandtheRegulations,circular
s,guidelinesissuedthereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India(“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/guidelines issued there under, have been
examined, include: -

(a) SecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(ListingObligationsandDisclosureRequirements)Regulations,
2015; (SEBI LODR)

(b) SecuritiesandExchangeBoardoflndia(IssueofCapitalandDisclosureRequirements)Regulations,2018;
(SEBIICDR); (Not applicable, as there was no reportable event during the review period);

(¢) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011; (SEBI SAST); (Not applicable, as there was no reportable event during the review period);

(d) SecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(BuybackofSecurities)Regulations,2018;(Not applicable, as there
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was no reportable event during the review period);

(e) SecuritiesandExchangeBoardoflndia(ShareBasedEmployeeBenefitsandSweatEquity)Regulations,2021;
(SEBI SBEB) (Not applicable, as there was no reportable event during the review period);

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- Convertible
Securities)Regulations,2021;(Not applicable, as there was no reportable event during the review
period);

(g) SecuritiesandExchangeBoardoflndia(ProhibitionoflnsiderTrading)Regulations,2015;

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018; and
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulation, 2021 (Not
applicable as there was no reportable event during the review period) and circulars/guidelines issued
thereunder;

Based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period:
a. The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above regulations and
circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

Sr. | Compliance Regul | Deviatio | Actio | Type of Action | Detai | Fine | Observatio | Man | Remar
No. | Requirement | ation | ns n (Advisory/Clarifi | Is of | Amo | ns/Remar | age ks
(Regulation/ | /Circ Take | cation/Fine/Sho | violat | unt ks of the | ment
Circulars/gui | ular nby |w Cause | ion Practicing | Resp
delines No. Notice/Warning Company onse

including etc) Secretary
specific
clause)
NIL
b. The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in
previous reports:

Sr. | Observations/R | Observation | Compliance Details of | Remedial Comments  of
No. | emarks of the | s made in | requirement violation/deviatio | actions, if | the Practicing
Practicing the (Regulations/circula | n  and  action | any, taken | Company

Company secretarial rs/guidelines taken/penalty by the listed | Secretary on the
Secretary in | compliance | including specific | imposed, if any, on | entity actions taken by
previous report | report for | clause) the listed entity the listed entity
the year
ended
2023-24
NIL

c. I hereby report that, during the Review period the compliance status of the listed entity with the
following requirements:
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Sr.
No

Particulars

Compliance
Status(Yes/No/NA)

Observations/R
emarks by PCS*

Secretarial Standards:
The compliances of the listed entity are in

accordance with the applicable Secretarial
Standards(SS) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries India(ICSI),as notified
by the Central Government under section
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
mandatorily applicable.

Yes

Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:
All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations

are adopted with the approval of board of
directors of the listed entities

All the policies are inconformity with SEBI
Regulations and has been reviewed & timely
updated as per the
regulations/circulars/guidelines issued by
SEBI

Yes

Yes

Maintenance and disclosures on Website:

The Listed entity is maintaining a functional
website

Timely dissemination of the

documents/information under a separate
section on the website

Web-links provided in annual corporate
governance reports under Regulation 27(2)
are accurate and specific which re-directs to
the relevant document(s)/section of the
website

Yes

Yes

Yes

Disqualification of Director:
None of the Director(s) of the Company are

disqualified under Section 164 of Companies
Act, 2013

Yes

b)

To examine details related to Subsidiaries of
listed entities:

Identification = of  material  subsidiary
companies

Requirements with respect to disclosure of
material as well as other subsidiaries

Yes

Yes

Preservation of Documents:
The listed entity 1is preserving and

maintaining records as prescribed under SEBI
Regulations and disposal of records as per

Yes
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Policy of Preservation of Documents and
Archival policy prescribed under SEBI LODR
Regulations, 2015.

Performance Evaluation:
The listed entity has conducted performance

Board,
Directors and the Committee sat the start of

evaluation of the Independent

every financial year/during the financial year
as prescribed in SEBI Regulations.

Yes

b)

Related Party Transactions:
ThelistedentityhasobtainedpriorapprovalofA

uditCommitteeforallrelatedpartytransactions
In case no prior approval obtained, the listed
entity shall provide detailed reasons along
with confirmation whether the transactions
were subsequently
approved/ratified/rejected by the Audit
Committee.

Yes

Disclosure of events or information:

The listed entity has provided all the required
disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with
Schedule III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015
within the time limit  prescribed

thereunder.

Yes

10.

Prohibition of Insider Trading:
The listed entity is in compliance with

Regulation 3(5) &3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Yes

11.

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if
any:

No action(s) has been taken against the listed
entity/ its promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries
either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges
(including under the Standard Operating
Procedures issued by SEBI through various
circulars) under SEBI Regulations and
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder (or)
The actions taken against the listed entity/its
promoters/directors/subsidiaries either by
SEBI or by Stock Exchanges are specified in
the last column

The listed entity
received an email
dated 16th
December, 2024
from Calcutta Stock
Exchange to check
the compliance
portal wherein the
company needed to
pay fines for the
LODR non -
compliances

The listed entity
vide their email
dated

December 20,
2024 informed
the Calcutta
Stock Exchange
wherein  they
replied that
Company has
complied with
all the
regulations  of
SEBI  (LODR),
2015 with BSE
& CSE within
stipulated time
and prayed to
waive off the
fine levied as
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the reason for

delay in
submission
under Reg
44(3) and
Financial

Results for the
quarter ended
30.09.2024 was
due to the CSE
Website error.

12.

Resignation of statutory auditors from the
listed entity or its material subsidiaries

In case of resignation of statutory auditor
from the listed entity or any of its material
subsidiaries during the financial year, the
listed entity and/or its material
subsidiary(ies) has/have complied with
paragraph 6.1 and 6.2 of section V-D of
chapter V of the Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated
November 11, 2024 on compliance with the
provisions of the LODR Regulations by listed
entities

Yes

M/s Prasad
Kumar & Co.,,

erstwhile
Statutory
Auditors of the
company as
well as of its
material
subsidiaries
M/s S R P 0il
Pvt Ltd and M/s
Precision

Automotive Pvt
Ltd resigned as
the  Statutory
Auditors w.e.f
30.11.2024 due
to changes in
their
professional
position  (The
signing auditor
had
surrendered his
certificate of
practice). The
auditor,
therefore only
issued the
limited review
report for the
quarter ended
30.09.2024.
Since the
auditor
resigned after
45 days from
the end of the
2nd quarter i.e
September 30,
2024, they
should have
issued limited
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review report
for the quarter
ended
December 31,
2024 too in
terms of
paragraph 6.1.2
of section V-D
of chapter V of
the Master
Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/
PoD2/CIR/P/01
55 dated
November 11,
2024 but due to
changes in their
professional
position, they
could not issue
the report.

13.

IAdditional non-compliances, if any:
No additional non-compliance observed for any off
the SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note etc.
except as reported above

No

14.

Disclosure about Employee Benefit Scheme
Documents in terms of regulation 46(2) (za) of the
SEBI LODR:

As detailed in SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-
PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024
Para 11 the secretarial compliance report issued by
a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary under
regulation 24A(2) of the LODR Regulations shall
include a confirmation on compliance with the
following requirements by the listed entity:

a. The scheme document has been uploaded on the
website of the listed entity after obtaining]
shareholder approval as required under SEBI
(SBEB) Regulations, 2021.

b. The documents uploaded on the website has
minimum information disclosed to shareholders as
per SEBI (SBEB) Regulations, 2021.

c. The rationale for redacting information from the
documents and the justification as to how such
redacted information would affect competitive
position or reveal commercial secrets of the listed
entity is placed before the board of directors for

consideration and approval.

N.A

[ hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/

Guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:
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1. Compliance Requirement (Regulations / circulars / guidelines including specific | N.A.
clause)
2. Regulation / Circular No. N.A.
3. Deviations N.A.
4. Action Taken by N.A.
5. Type of Action N.A.
6. Details of Violation N.A.
7. Fine Amount N.A.
8. Observations/Remarks of the Practicing Company Secretary N.A.
9. Management Response N.A.
10. Remarks N.A.

(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous

reports:
1. Compliance Requirement (Regulations / circulars / guidelines including specific | N.A.
clause)

2. Regulation / Circular No. N.A.
3. Deviations N.A.
4. Action Taken by N.A.
5. Type of Action N.A.
6. Details of Violation N.A.
7. Fine Amount N.A.
8. Observations/Remarks of the Practicing Company Secretary N.A.
9. Management Response N.A.
10. Remarks N.A.

Sd/-

(SITAL PRASAD SWAIN)

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

MEMB NO.- F6338

Place: Jamshedpur C.PNO- 6814

Date: 06.05.2025 PEER REVIEW NO.- 813/2020

UDIN: F006338G000282031

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditors, which is annexed as

Annexure A& forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE A
To,
The Members

RSD Finance Ltd
H.No. 4, The Alcor Hotel Ramdas Bhatta,
Bistupur, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand-831001

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
Management's Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to
ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility
2. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures
followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.
3.1believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is adequate
and appropriate for me to provide a basis for my opinion.
4.1 have relied on the documents and evidence provided physically and through electronic mode
5. Wherever required, I have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.
Disclaimer
6. The Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
7.1 have not verified the correctness and appropriateness or financial records and books of accounts of
the Company.

Sd/-

(SITAL PRASAD SWAIN)

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

MEMB NO.- F6338

Place: Jamshedpur C.P NO- 6814
Date: 06.05.2025 PEER REVIEW NO.- 813/2020
UDIN: F006338G000282031
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STATUTORY AUDITORS CERTIFICATE

We have examined the books of accounts and other records of RSD FINANCE LIMITED for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 on the basis of the information submitted to us, we certify the

following:
SL . .
No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the company RSD FINANCE LIMITED
2 Certificate of Registration No. 05.01970
. . H. No-04,The Alcor Hotel, Ramdas Bhatta,
3 Registered office Address Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001
) H. No-04,The Alcor Hotel, Ramdas Bhatta,
4 Corporate office Address Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831001
The company has been classified by
RBI as:
5 (Investment Company / Loan Non - Deposit taking NBFC
Company / AFC / NBFC-MFI / NBFC-
Factor /IFC / IDF- NBF(C)
Net Owned Fund (Rs. In lakhs)
6 (Calculation of the same is given in 7,310.12 lakhs
the Annex)
7 Total Assets (Rs. In lakhs) 7,766.24 lakhs
Asset-Income pattern:
(in terms of RBI Press Release
1998- 99/1269 dated April 8, 1999)
a) % of Financial Assets to Total 92.95 %
8 Assets
91.72 %
b) % of Financial Income to Gross °
Income
(NBFC-Factor / NBFC-MFI / AFC /
IFC may also report separately below)
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Whether the company was holding any Public Deposits, as on
March 31, 2025?

No

10.

Has the company transferred a sum not less than 20% of its
Net Profit for the year to Reserve Fund?

(in terms of Sec 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934).

Yes

11

Has the company received any FDI?

If Yes, did the company comply with the minimum
capitalization norms for the FDI?

No

12

If the company is classified as an NBFC- Factor;
a) % of Factoring Assets to Total Assets

b) % of Factoring Income to Gross Income

N.A.

13

If the company is classified as an NBFC- MFI;
% of Qualifying Assets to Net Assets

(refer to Notification DNBS.PD.No.234 CGM(US) 2011 dated
December 02, 2011)

N.A.

14

If the company is classified as an AFC;

% of Advances given for creation of physical / real assets
supporting economic activity to Total Assets

% of income generated out of these assets to Total Income

N.A.

15

If the company is classified as an NBFC- [FC

% of Infrastructure Loans to Total Assets

N.A.

16

Has there been any takeover/acquisition of control/ change
in shareholding/ Management during the year which
required prior approval from RBI?

(please refer to per DNBR (PD) CC.
N0.065/03.10.001/2015-16 dated July 09, 2015 on the
subject for details)

No
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In terms of Chapter II of the Master Direction- Non Banking financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve
bank) Directions, 2016, a separate report to the Board of Directors of the company has been prepared.

We have read and understood Chapter III of the Master Direction- Non Banking financial Companies
Auditor’s Report (Reserve bank) Directions, 2016.

ForM/s. SDY & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN NO- 016850C

Sd/-
JAY PRAKASH HEERWAL
PARTNER
Membership No. 415136

UDIN: 25415136BMLXVP4988
Place - Jamshedpur
Date - 24.05.2025
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Annexure - 1

Capital Funds - TierI (Rs. Ip

Paid up Equity Capital 647.32

Pref. shares to be compulsorily converted into equity 0.00

Perpetual Debt Instrument 0.00

Free Reserves:

Statutory/ Special Reserves under Sec 451C of RBI Act, 1934 1375.09
3. b. General Reserve 119.22
4. c. Share Premium 0.00

d. Capital Reserves 2.37

e.Debenture Redemption Reserve 0.00

f. Capital Redemption Reserve 0.00

g. Credit Balance in P&L Account 5652.10

h. Other free reserves 0.00

Total of 1 to 4 7796.11
5. Less: Accumulated balance of loss 0.00
6. Deferred Revenue Expenditure 0.00
7. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 0.00
8. Other intangible Assets 0.00
9. Others ( to be specified)

Total
10. Owned Fund 7796.11
11. gl)v(?(s):tl:;)zl:ltiler; frlll ill;zss(zﬁne group 0.00

(ii) Subsidiaries 208.86

(iii) Other NBFCs 0.00

Book value of debentures, bonds outstanding loans and
12. advances, bills purchased and is counted (including H.P. and

lease finance) made to, and deposits with

(ii) Subsidiaries 0.00
13. Total 208.86
14. Amount in item (VIII) in excess of 10% of item (X) above 0.00

Net Owned Fund 7796.11
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CERTIFICATE UNDER NON - BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES AUDITORS
REPORT (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2016

To
The Board of Directors,
RSD FINANCE LIMITED

As required under Non - Banking Financial Companies Auditors Report (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 and on the basis of information and explanation given to us, we report that:

3A)

The company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution as defined in section
45-1(a) of the RBI Act and meeting the Principal Business Criteria (Financial asset/income pattern)
as laid down vide the Bank’s press release dated April 08, 1999, and directions issued by DNBR, the
company has obtained a Certificate of Registration from the Bank.

On the basis of Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss account for the year ended 31.03.2025 in our opinion
the Company is entitled to continue to hold such certificate of Registration in terms of its Principal
Business Criteria (Financial asset/income pattern).

On the basis of Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss account for the year ended 31.03.2025 in our opinion
the company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master Direction
- Non-Banking Financial Company-Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

30)

The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for Non Acceptance of any Public Deposits.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year ended 31st March,
2025.

The Company has complied with the prudential Norm relating to the Income Recognition,
Accounting Standards, assets classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as
applicable to it in terms of Non - Banking Financial (Non Deposits Accepting or Holding)
Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions - 2016.

The Company is not a systematically Important Company as defined in Paragraph 3(xxviii) of the
Non - Banking Financial Company - Non systematically Important Company Non Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

For M/s.SD Y& CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN NO- 016850C

Sd/-
JAY PRAKASH HEERWAL
PARTNER
Membership No. 415136

UDIN: 25415136BMLXUR2589

Place - Jamshedpur
Date - 24.05.2025
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Jharkhand State Co-operative Bank Building
1st Floor, Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 1.

Ph. : 0657-2317108

E-mail : sdy.jsr@gmail.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of RSD Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of RSD Finance Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3 1st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive [ncome), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of
Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information. (hereinafter referred to as the
“financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended (IND AS) and other accounting principle generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its total comprehensive income (comprising profit and
other comprehensive income), changes in equity, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the duditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

BRANCH OFFICES : 1) KOLKATA 2) KHARAGPUR

102



<1

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

*+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and.timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable. .

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belicf were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), The
Statement Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
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d)

€)

g)

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, with reference to standalone financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate

Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and

operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone

Financial Statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the

requirement of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i).  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

(it).  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Indian
accounting standards (IND AS), for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term
contracts including derivative contracts.

(iii). ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv).  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(v).  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding
Party or

¢ provide any guarantee, security or like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

e Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub — clause (iv) and (v) contain any material
misstatement.

(vi).  The Company has not declared any dividend during the year hence the compliance of
Section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 is not required.
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(vii).  Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further during the course of our audit, for the period
for which the audit trail facility had been operational during the year, we did not come
across any instance of audit trail being tampered with and the management has represented
that the audit feature cannot be disabled. Company has preserved the Audit trail as per the
statutory requirements of records retention.

For SD Y & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN —=016850C)

(Jay Prakash Heerwal)
Partner

M. No.: 415136
UDIN: 2S5 415126 BMLYWDHLE

Date: 2. 4o DS «202S
Place: Jamshedpur
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‘Annexure A’ CARO 2020 Report on the standalone financial statement of RSD Finance Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2025

To the Members of RSD Finance Limited

[Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our Report
of even date to the members of RSD Finance Limited on the accounts of the company for the year

ended 31st March, 2025]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us
and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.
The major Property, Plant and Equipment of the company have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed

on such verification. _
According to the information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of the immovable
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the company except the following,

Relevant | Descriptio | Gross | Title Deeds | Whether Title | Propert | Reason for Not
line item in | nofitem | Carryi | Held In the | Deed Holder is | y Held Being Held in
Balance of ng Name of a promoter, Since the name of the
Sheet property Value director or Which | company/entity
. relative of Date
(Rs in promoter/dire
Lacs) ctor or
employee of
promoter/dire
ctor?
Property, Flat No. F- 9.49 PATO NO 10-10- The possession
Plant & 401 & F- BUILDERS 2012 and original
Equipment 404 agreement to
Located at sale, of the
M.P. City, property, is in the
Adityapur, name of the RSD
Dist. Finance Ltd.
Seraikella- Further, title
Kharsawan deeds will be
registered in the
name of the

company once
state govt.'s
policy on registry
is changed
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(d)

(e)

(ii)

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during the year.

The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, primarily lending loans and making
investments and the Company’s business does not involve inventories, accordingly Clause 3
(ii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company;

The Company does not have any inventory and no working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees (at any point of time during the year), in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not
applicable.

During the year the company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)
(e)

M

Reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable as the Company is a Non-Banking
Finance Company, ;

According to the information and explanation given to us, the investments made, guarantees
provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

In respect of loans/advances in the nature of loans granted by the company, the schedule of
repayment of the principal amount and the payment of the interest have been stipulated.and the
repayment of principal amount and the interest is regular;

According to the information and explanation given to us, no amount is overdue in this respect;
According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of any loan or advance in
the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, none has been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties;

The Company has during the year, not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Promoters, related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clauses 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees in contravention
of the provisions of section 185 and 186(1) of the Act, the other provisions of section 186 of the Act
are not applicable to the company;

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits under the
directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, where applicable.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of
cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/
services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) There are no dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions, not recorded
in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

(a) In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year;

(b) Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose
for which the loans were obtained;

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, funds raised on short term basis have not
been utilised for long term purposes;

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or

joint ventures;

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year;

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year;

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, any fraud by the company or any
fraud on the company has not been noticed or reported during the year;




(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints,
received during the year by the company;

Company is not a Nidhi company, accordingly provisions of the Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the company:

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the
Accounting Standards and the Companies Act, 2013,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit;

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and
accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The company is a Non-Banking Financial Company as registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, accordingly the provisions of sub-clause (b) of clause 3(xvi) of the
Order is not applicable;

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India, accordingly the provisions of sub-clause (c) and (d) of clause 3(xvi) of the
Order are not applicable;

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted
we are of opinion that the company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and the
immediately preceding financial year;

There has been resignation of the Previous Statutory Auditors during the year under audit due to change
of his professional capacity (Surrender of Certificate of Practice) and the outgoing auditor has not raised
any consideration of the issues, objections or concerns and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable;
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(xix)

()

(xxi)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that company is incapable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
vear from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has, during the year, spent the prescribed amount as required under
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements of
the Company. Accordingly. no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

ForSD Y & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN — 016850C) /69

e

(Jay Prakash Heerwal)
Partner

M. No.: 415136

UDIN: 254iS136RBMLYXWD L2881

Date: 2.4-05: 2025
Place: Jamshedpur
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Annexure B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RSD Finance Limited
(‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (*ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Co’n}gg_n-}g;\ab_nd
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(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSDY & Co.

Chartered Accountants ,!i-—'ét"“\
2%
(FRN — 016850C) PRI\

(Jay Prakash Heerwal)
Partner

M. No.: 415136

UDIN: 2818126 BML X WD L9 8)

Date: 2. 4.5 200¢

Place: Jamshedpur
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025
Rs.in Lacs
Parvticulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
(1) | Financial Assets
(a) | Cash and cash equivalents 3 173.70 205.93
(b) | Trade Receivables 4 18.14 11.88
(c)| Loans 5 1109.65 1109.84
(d)| Investments 6 6505.06 6108.97
(e) | Other Financial assets 7 172.22 219.46
(2)| Non-financial Assets
(a) | Property, Plant and Equipment 8 105.30 110.17
Total Assets 8084.07 7766.24
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) | Financial Liabilities
“J(a) | Payables
'. Trade Payables 9
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
: ; 17.18 6.33
enterprises and small enterprises
(b) | Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 10 - 39.81
(2)| Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) | Current tax liabilities (Net) 11 152.71 204.98
(b) | Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 12 -5.68 3.79
(c)| Provisions 13 40.09 104.00
(d) | Other non-financial liabilities (to be specified) 14 83.66 97.20|
Total Liabilities 287.97 456.12 .
(3)| EQUITY
(a) | Equity Share capital 15 647.32 647.32
(b)| Other Equity 16 7148.78 6662.80
Total Equity 77%96.11 7310.12
Total Liabilities and Equity 8084.07 7766.24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached.
For SDY & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 016850C

Jay Prakash Heerwal
Partner
M. No. 415136

Date: 2U. 05.2025

Place: Jamshedpur

UDIN: DS LIS (A6RM L rWD YUY &)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

E | }}PD Finance Limited # .
RSD FINANCE LIMITED
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Rajcev Singh Dugal Upneet Dt!g§ IECTOR
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00052037 DIN: 07680726
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fz D5

R oshi £ :

o O .l SN Co -,S I]npta&f:wm -
= 1SE T Chief Fifn il OTaécr Company Sceretary

114



RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAR 31,2025

Rs.in Lacs
Particulars Note | For the Period Ended For the Year Ended
No. Mar 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from Operations
1 |Interest Income 17 705.56 711.21
ii |Dividend Income 18 5.38 11.24
iii [Net gain on fair value changes 19 69.31 132.31
iv |Sale of Services 20 94 .87 102.47
I [Total revenue from operations 875.12 957.22
Other Income
i |Net Gain on sale of Financial Instruments 21 -40.09 259.31
ii |Other Incomes 22 44.59 20.88
11 |Total Other income 4.50 280.19
II1 |Total income (1 + II) 879.62 1237.41
Expenses
i |Cost of materials consumed 28.10 28.71
ii |Employee benefits expense 23 84.21 75.54
iii |Finance costs 24 0.08 0.08
iv_|Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 5.27 6.03
v |Provisions 13 -63.91 -
vi |Other expenses 25 161.17 160.21
IV |Total expenses 214.94 270.56
V_|Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (111 - IV) 664.68 966.85
Exceptional items - -
V1 |Profit / (Loss) before tax 664.68 966.85
Tax expense
a) Current Tax 11 152,71 204.98
b) Deferred Tax 12 -0.27 -0.28
VII |Total Tax Expenses 152.44 204.70
VIII |Net Profit/ (Loss) for the period (VI - VII) 512.24 762.15
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be classified to profit or loss
(i) Items that will not be classified to profit or loss -36.56 64.81
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be classified to profit ar loss -0.20 16.31
IX |Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) -27.36 48.50
X _|Total comprehensive income for the period (VIII + IX) 484.88 810.65
Paid-up Equity Share Capital
{Face Value of T3 per share) 647.32 647.32
{Previous Year Face Value 5 Per Share)
Earnings per share :(in 3)
(a) Basic 31 3.75 6.26
(b) Diluted 31 3.75 6.26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For SDY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 016850C

For RSD

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ANOE RSP Finance Limited

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

S
Rajeev Singh Dugal Upneet Iﬂéﬂ ECTOR

: Managing Director Director
Jay Prakash Heerwal . DIN: 00052037 Eo DIN: 07680726
Partner RSD Filna nce Lid. rksSp F!NANCE LT
M. No. 415136 Fﬂ'h_ [%—,W
Date: 240520928 RaviJoshi (o Subhajita Biswal
Place: Jamshedpur Chiel f | Ehief Finan¢ial Qfjser Coﬁ%ﬁbk&' %l"&f.‘];'};.

UDIN: 2§ Y1S13 6 BMLIWDULE)
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RSD Finance Limited
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316

Statement of Standalone Cash Flow Statments for the Period Ended M arch 31, 2025
Rsin Lacs Rsin Lacs
Sk No. |Particulars FY 24-25 FY 23-24
1 Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax 664.68 966.85
Add : Adjustments for
Depreciation 5.27 6.03
Gain/(Loss) on Remeasurement of Financial Assets -36.56 64.81
Provisions -63.91 -
Less : Adjustment for
P/L. Appropriation - -
Profit on Sale of Investment -40.09 259.31
Dividend Received 5.38 11.24
Interest Income 705.56 711.21
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes -101.37 55.93
Adjustments for:-
Trade Receivables -6.26 2.62
Other Non-Financial Liabilities -13.54 11.33
Other Financial Assets 47.23 -100.73
Trade Payables 10.85 1.03
Net cash generated from operating activities -63.09 -29.80
Tax Paid/Provided 203.88 117.89
Net cash generated from operation  [A] -266.96 -147.70
2 Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Profit on sale of Investment -40.09 259.31
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments -396.08 -692.06
Loans 0.18 14.85
Dividend Received 5.38 11.24
Interest Received 705.56 711.21
Sale/(Purchase) of Assets -0.40 -3.15
Net cash from investing activities [B] 274.55 301.40
3 Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings -39.81 -
Net cash from financing activities [C] -39.81 -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents [A+B+C] -32.23 153.70
Cash & Cash cquivalents (Opening balance) 205.93 52.22
Cash & Cash equivalents (Closing balance) 173.70 205.93

* The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set-out in IND AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

** Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents are disclosed in Note No. 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

——

For SDY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 016850C

Jay Prakash Heerwal  <- -
Partner
M. No. 415136

Date: 9. 820920

Place: Jamshedpur

RSD FRNAN2YE

oo Sirattor
Rajeev Singh Dugal
Managing Director
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E?Ed Enrlt:ga[f of the Board of Directors of
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Upneet Dug
Direct
DIN: 07680726
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ubhajita Biswal
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements (
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Name of the Non-Banking Financial Company: RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended : 31st March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Rs in Lacs
Balance as at April 1, 2023 647.32
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors B
Re-stated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 047.32
Changes in equity share capital during F.Y 2023-24 -
Balance as at April 01, 2024 647.32
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - : N
Re-stated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 647.32 e E
Changes in equity share capital during F.Y 2024-25 - =1 =
Balance as at March 31, 2025 647.32 g (:f E
Z 5=
B. Other Equity Rs in Lacs = :; =
i a
Share Application . i Surplus i.e. Balance 52| E
Particulars Money Pending SI::::::: Capital Reserve ?:'::;:: g::::: in the Statement of Total Q 8
Allotment Profit & Loss E
Restated balance as at April 01, 2023 - 1115.99 2.37 119.22 4618.77 5856.35 B
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the period - - - - 762.15 762.15
Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 48.50 48.50] . =
Add: Addition During the Year - 162.13 - - - 162.13] e
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 1278.12 2.37 119.22 5429.43 6829.13]..! &=
Appropriation to Statutory Reserves - - - - -162.13 -162.13) @ E_’
Other Appropriation - - - - -4.20 -4.20 E,-' ‘:_i
Balance at March 31, 2024 - 1278.12 2.37 119.22 5263.10 6662.80 . - =
Balance at April 01, 2024 - 1278.12 2.37 119.22 5263.10 6662.80] .- S\ -':3
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the period = E B - 512.24 512.24]i -
Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - -27.36 -27.36] -, By
Add: Addition During the Year - 96.98 - - - 96.98 3 5
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 1375.09 2.37 119.22 5747.97 7244.65 o
Appropriation to Statutory Reserves - - - - -96.98 -96.98
Other Appropriation - - B - 1.11 1.11
Balance at March 31, 2025 - 1375.09 2.37 119.22 5652.10 7148.78|

For R

RSD FINANC
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming Integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

Note-1

Corporate Information

RSD Finance Limited (the "Company") is a public limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in fund-based activities like providing loans and advances, inter-corporate
deposits, loans against securities and investments in shares and sccurities. The Company also carries out job work activities.
The shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company
holds a certificate of registration from the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial
Institution ("NBFI") under the category of Non-Deposit taking Company.

Note-2
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Statement of compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2. Accounting Policies:

Cid

=
[

2

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS under the historical cost convention on
the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies mentioned below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange of goods or services. The Company complies with the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
and directions prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

3. Use of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from the estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected.

2.4. Revenue Recognition:

The applicability of Ind AS 115, Revenue Recognition provides for a single model of accounting revenue from contracts with
customers based on the identification and satisfaction of performance obligations.

Income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis, wherever ascertainable.
Dividend are recognised only when the right to receive is established
Interest Income is recognised as and when they become accrued.

ﬁis. Trade receivables:

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for
impairment, if any.

2.6. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques and drafts in hand, balances with bank and deposits held at call
with financial institutions. These do not include bank balances earmarked / restricted for specific purposes.

RSD F/Li;:lfi LIMIT E

DIRECTOR

anaging Director
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming Integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

2.7. Investments and other financial assets:

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and

» those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies
debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to financial assets, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

-Debt Instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other gain or loss using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and
interest revenue are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised under other income. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other gain or loss using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
presented in the statement of profit and loss under other gain or loss in the period in which it arises. Interest or dividend
income, if any from these financial asses is separately included in other gain or loss.
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming Integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

-Equity investments (other than investments in subsidiaries)

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain or loss in the

statement of profit and loss.

-Equity Investments (in subsidiaries)
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(iii) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Derivative financial instruments
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material

foreseeable losses,

.8. Financial liabilities

Classification: Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Initial Recognition and Measurement: Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires,

2.9. Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. The cost of
fixed assets comprises of purchase price and all other attributable costs of bringing the assets to working condition for

:C"-: intended use.
% Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non refundable
<

purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working

r—é condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
& located.

- An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
w—; arise from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
Lﬂl equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in the statement of profit and loss.

Transition to Ind-AS

On transition to IND AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of
the property, plant and equipment.
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming Integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

Depreciation:

On fixed assets, depreciation is provided on written down Value method. The rates of depreciation prescribed in Schedule 11
to the Companies Act, 2013, are considered as minimum rates,

Leasehold Land is not depreciated or amortized.

Trade and other payables:
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial period which
are unpaid. They are recognised at their fair value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee benefits:

(i) Short-term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits. These benefits include salary, wages and bonus. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised during the period of rendering of service
by the employee.

(ii) Post-employment benefits:

Defined contribution plans
The Company has defined contribution plans for post-employment benefits namely Provident Fund which are recognised by
the income tax authorities. The Company contributes to a Government administered provident fund on behalf of its employees
and has no further obligation beyond making its contribution. The Company makes contributions to state plans namely
Employee’s State Insurance Fund and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to them. The Company’s
contributions to the above funds are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss every year.

Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there
is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation,

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate '
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming Integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

Earnings per share:

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding
during the year-end, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Borrowings:

Borrowing Cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of the qualifying asset are capitalised until the
time all the substantial activities necessary to prepare such assets for the intended use are complete. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenditure during the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed is recognised in
profit or loss,

Foreign exchange transactions
The Company during the year did not have foreign exchange transaction.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with Income Tax
Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income
and taxable income for the period). The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or
assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future;
however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are
recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each
balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case
may be) to be realised,

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is
likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, and
it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with asset will be realised.

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Company has not accepted any Public Deposits during the year under review and the Board of Directors have passed
resolution to the effect that the Company has neither accepted Public Deposit nor would accept any public Deposit during the
year.
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RSD Finance Limited

. Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-3

i Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024

Rs. in Lacs Rs, in Lacs

Balance with Banks:
(a} IDBI Bank 11.19 6.34
(b) Punjab National Bank - 0.08

(¢) Kotak Mahindra Bank - 0.04

(d) State bank of India 0.39 0.79

(e} HDFC Bank - 1.18
(NICICI Bank 0.47 27.05

- In current Account 12.04 3547

Cash in Hand 1.59 1.6]

Cheques, drafis on hand - -

Fixed Deposit With ICICI Bank 160,07 168 84

Total 173.70 205.93

Note-4

Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables ageing schedule: As at 31st Mar,2025 Rs. in Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars h
WSS Lo finn 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years WAl Total
months years
¢ “ndisputed Trade receivables -considered good 1642 0.01 - 0.05 1.62 18.14
\wsmdisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtiul - # * = = =
(iii) Disputed trade receivables considered good T - - e 3 5
(iv) Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -
Trade Receivables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2024 Rs. in Lacs
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Particul Less !
AvHClaly A3 ""Lm ¢ 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years “ﬂ::‘;::“ J Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good 10.13 - 0.13 - 1.62 11.88

i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful = - - - - -
(iii) Disputed trade receivables considered s00d - - - = - =
(iv) Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful - - - - - -

— Impairment allowance recognised on trade receivables is Nil (Previous year Nil),

— No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or

private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, director or a member.

jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or

=) 55
= ©
Note-5 - e
Loans (U-)l & S
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 = ({/JJ)
At Amortised Cost Rs, in Lacs Rs. in Lacs g
= o
Security Deposit 370 3.89 bt X
borate loan 1105.95 1105.95 () &=
b ) o
Total (Gross) 1109.65 1109.84 oc =
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance - - LE
Total (Net) A) 1109.65 1109.84 o ©
> Re.
Secured 110595 1105.95 = :‘;»-‘{
Unsecured 3.70 3.89 ] e
Q0 o
Total(Gross) (B) 1109.65 1109.84 £ ]
{0 <
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance - - l‘. =
' LWL
L e
Total (Net) () 1109.65 1109.84 P 5
Sed £
Total 1109.65 1109.84 8] 2

These loans or advances are considered (0 have low risk based on credit evaluation undertaken by the Company.

There is no history of any defaults on lhese%ans or advances. The

company regularly monitors to ensure that these entities have enough liquidity which safeguards the interest of the investars and lenders. Accordingly there is no Expected credit loss

allowance on the aforesaid loans and advances.

For RS

RSD FINANCE LIMIR{ED
=

-._”RCZCTOR
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RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-6 Rs in Lacs
Investments
As on March 31, 2025
At Fair Value
Eartienlars Amortised cost Thraugh Otl-wr Through profit il e Sub- Total Others* Total
Comprehensive value through profit
or loss
Income or loss
1 2 3 4 (5)=(2)+(3)+(4) 6 (7)=(1)H5E)+(6)
Mutual funds 204913 68.14 - 68.14 3017.27
Investment in PMS/AIF 2393.85 -36.56 - - -36.56 2357.28
Debt securities 867.11 = - = - 867.11
Equity instruments 53.36 - 1.17 - 1.17 54,53
Subsidiaries 208.86 - . - - 208.86
Bonds - - - - - -
Total — Gross (A) 6472.31 -36.56 69.31 - 32.75 - 6505.06
(i)Investments outside India - - - - - -
(ii)Investments in India 6472.31 -36.56 69.31 - 32.75 6505.06
Total (B) 6472.31 -36.56 69.31 3 32.75 6505.06
Less:Allowance for Impairment loss ( C ) - - - - - -
Total — Net D= (A)-(C) 6472.31 -36.56 69.31 - 32.75 - 6505.06
Rs in Lacs
Investments
As on March 31, 2024
At Fair Value
Fartigaloxs Amortised cost Thvough Ott.ler Through profit vexigmisit at By Sub- Total Others* Total
Comprehensive value through profit
or loss
Income or loss
| 2 3 4 B)=2)+3)+4) 6 (D=H(5)+(6)
Mutual funds 1,253.41 - 114.44 - 114.44 - 1,367.85
Investment in PMS/AIF 3,220.90 64.81 - - 64.81 - 3,285.71
Debt securities 964.31 - - - - - 964.31
Equity instruments 114.37 > 17.87 - 17.87 - 132.24
Subsidiaries 208.86 - 5 - = - 208.86
Bonds 150.00 - = - - - 150.00
Total — Gross (A) 5,911.85 64.81 132.31 - 197.12 - 6,108.97
(i)Investments outside India - - - - - - -
(ii)Investments in India 5,911.85 64.81 = 197.12 - 6,108.97
Total (B) 5,911.85 64.81 - 197.12 - 6,108.97
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss ( C ) - - 2 = = 4
Total — Net D= (A)-(C) 64.81 - 197.12 - 6,108.97

RSD FINANCE LIMi

ED

i

DIRECTOR
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Note-7

C

. RSD Finance Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Other Financial Assets

C

Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 Ason Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Advance to Staff - : - -
Others 0.83 10.44
Balance with Revenue Departments 171.40 209.02
Total 172.22 219.46
Note-8 Property, Plant and Equipment as on 31.03.2025
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION BLOCK NETB
e e SRpl AU n‘:xnmggftsn BALE / DISPOBAL| TOTAL ASON | ..., 2024 | FORTHE YEAR || vpTo 2025 s s o:
01.04.2024 ’;‘;AR DURING THE YEAR 31.03.2025 o ZE 8103 M;(I?o?ztzs
1 |Land(Frechold) 0.10 - 0.10 - - - 0.10
2 |Land(Leasehold) 62.13 - - 62.13 0.00 - 0.00 62.13
3 |Building 16.97 - = 16.97 14.24 031 14.55 2.42
4 |Building (Staff Quarter) 57.51 - 57.51 29.59 2.65 32.24 25.27
5 |Flat 30.32 - - 30.32 19.92 0.91 20.83 9.49
6 |Plant & Machinery 20.05 - - 20.05 16.81 0.27 17.08 2.97
7 |Electric Installation 10.70 - - 10.70 10.13 - 10.13 0.57
8 |Generator Set 3.05 - - 3.05 3.03 3.03 0.02
9 |Furiture & Fixtures 2.58 - - 2.58 2:53 - 2.53 0.05
10 |Computer 5.36 0.40 5.76 4.70 0.42 5.11 0.64
11 |Moter Cycle 0.35 0.35 0.34 - 0.34 0.01
12 |Motor Car (Toyota Fortuner) 48.39 - 48.39 46.17 0.69 46.87 1.53
13 |Air Conditioner 0.50 - - 0.30 0.47 0.00 0.48 0.02
14 |Printer 0.07 - - 0.07 0.07 - 0.07 0.00
15 |Refrigerator 0.33 - - 0.33 0.29 0.01 0.29 0.04
16 [Telephone & Mobile 0.30 - 0.30 0.26 0.01 0.26 0.03
TOTAL 258.71 0.40 - 259.10 148.54 5.27 153.81 105.30
As on 31.03.2024 293.29 3.15 0.00 296.44 180.25 6.03 186.27 110.17

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

For RSD

FINANCE LTD.

Secretary.

CTOR

DPrrerde)
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' Note9

RSD Finance Limited
' Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st Mar,2025

Rs. in Lacs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
i Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years Total
(1) MSME - - - - -
(ii} Others 14.05 3.13 - - 17.18
(1i1) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(1v) Disputed dues - Others - = - 3 -
Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 315t March,2024 I Rs. in Lacs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - - - - -
(i1) Others 6.33 - - - 6.33

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

The Group has not paid any interest in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enter

amounts due as at March 31, 2025.

prises Development Act, 2006, additionally there are no interest

Naote 9.1 @ Steps have been taken to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small and

1

may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material.

RSD Finance Ltd.

Chief ‘-'-“-z'g: ia! Qfigar

am Enterprises Development Act 2006, Since no intimation has been received from the suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as at 31st March

2025, disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, if any, have not been furnished. In the opinion of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that

DIRECTOR

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

CSbohain= Diredd

CompaHy Secretary.
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RSD Finance Limited

C

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31 , 2025

Note-10 Rs in Lacs
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Designated
. at fair ; Designated
At Amortised T‘::J:ghvs:l;; ¢ value Total At Amortised Thf::;:;:(:;: - at fair value Total
Cost through Cost through
or loss loss
profit or profit or loss
loss
M 2) 3) @H=()+H2)+ 8)) (2) 3 (H=(D)+2)+
3 3)

(a)Term loans

(i)from banks - - - - - - -
(b)Loans repayable on demand -

(i)from banks - : £ = = = 5

(ii)from other parties - - - 39.81 39.81
Total (A) - - - 39.81 - - 39.81
Secured Borrowings - - - - - - -
Unsecured Borrowings - - - 39.81 - - 39.81
Total (B) - - - 39.81 - - 39.81
Borrowings in India - - - 39.81 - - 39.81
Borrowings outside India - - - - - - -
Total (C) - - - 39.81 - - 39.81

RSD Fi

C

iance Lid.

‘}-,fn{ :.‘J(: 13T ":."F C'f'fif",ﬂr

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

DIRECTOR

For ASD FINANCE LTD.
D= @q\w'

Company Secretary.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 3 1,2025

Note-11

RSD Finance Limited

Current tax liabilities (Net)

Particulars

As on Mar 31, 2025

As on March 31, 2024

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Provision for Tax 152.71 204.98
Total 152.71 204.98
Note-12
Deferred tax Liabilities (Net)
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025( As on March 31, 2024

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Opening Balance 3.79 -12.24
Property. Plant and Equipment and Intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation -0.27 -0.28
Investment and other financial instruments
Recognised through OCI -9.20 16.31
Recognised through Profit & Loss
Total -5.68 3.79
Note-13

Provisions

Particulars

As on Mar 31, 2025

As on March 31, 2024

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Provision for Substandard Assets
Opening Balance as on beginning of financial year 104.00 104.00
Add : Addition During the Year - -
Less: Deletion During the Year -63.91
Closing Balance as on end of financial year 104.00 104.00
(| Total 40.09 104.00

For RSD FINANCE LTD

\
\

\ \

K5

.

Chief F:’r‘.ang:gi Cfficer

2 Finance tg.

RSD F INANCE LiM ITED

/W
W DIRECTOR

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

Sywr;aj\ﬂa Ditanoond

Company Secretary.
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RSD Finance Limited

. Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Mote-14
Other Non-Financial Liabilities
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Liability Against Salary 416 15.29
TDS Payable |.44 2,17
EPF/ESIC Pavable 0.42 0.27
GST Payable 051 0.25
Otther Liabilities 77.13 79.23
Total 83.66 97.20
Note-15
Equity Share capital
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Authorised Capital
1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of 25/- each
{P.Y. 1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of T5- each) 650.00 650.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,29.46 480 Equity Shares of 35/~ each 647,32 647.32
(P.Y. 1,29,46,480 Equity Shares of 5/- each)
647.32 647.32
\_/I Reconciliation of the number of shares and t outstanding at the begi & end of the Reporting Period.
I As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,29.46 480 647,32 1,29 46,480 647.32
Add: Shares lssued - - - -
Balance outstanding at the end of the vear 1,29,46,480 647.32 1,29,46,480 647.32

15.2 Shares held by each shareholder, holding more then 5% shares, specifying the number of shares held.

=% As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Name of the Sharcholder No of shares Yo holding No of shares % holding
Rajeev Singh Dugal 50.89,080 G2.48% 80,589,080 62.48%
K LI Benefit Trust 15.82,000 12.22% 15,82,000 12.22%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March,
2025
Promoter Name

Type of Shares

Mo. of Shares

% of total shares

No. of Shares

% of total shares|

Rajeev Singh Dugal Equity 80,89.080 62.48% 80,89.080 62.48%
KU Benefit Trust Equity 15,82.000 12.22% 15,82,000 12.22%
Kashvi Dugal Equity 27,960 0.22% 27,960 0.22%
Upneet Dugal Equity 8.396 0.06% 8,396 0.06%
Taotal 97,07,436 74.98% 97,07,436 74.98%
Is,_,a{lares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March
2024 Type of Shares No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares %o of total shares
Promoter Name

Rajeev Singh Dugal Equity 80.89.080 62.48% 80,89,080 62.48%
K U Benefit Trust Equity 15.82.000 12.22% 15,582,000 12.22%
Kashvi Dugal Equity 27.960 0.22% 27,960 0.22%
Upneet Dugal Equity 8.396 0.06% 8,396 0.06%
Total 97,07,436 74.98% 97.,07,436 74.98%

15.3 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of %5 per share (P.Y. 25 per share). Each sharcholder is eligible for one vate per share held. In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are eligible 10 receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.
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Note-16

RSD Finance Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Other Equity
Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Capital reserve account 2.37 2.37
Statutory reserve account 1375.09 1278.12
Surplus i.e. Balance in the Statement of Profit & Loss 3652.10 5263.10
General reserve account 119.22 119.22
Total 7148.78 6662.80

Movement in Other Equity

Particalars As on March 31,2025 | As on March 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
(a) Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 2.37 2.37
* ddition during the year - 3
./ 2.37 2.37
(b) Statutory Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 1278.12 1115.99
Addition during the year 96.98 162.13
1375.09 1278.12
(c) Surplus i.e. Balance in the Statement of Profit & Loss
As per last Balance Sheet 5263.10 4618.77
Add: Total Comprehensive Income during the year 484.88 810.65
Add: P/L Appropriation 1.11 -4.20
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve -96.98 -162.13
5652.10 5263.10
(d) General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 119.22 119.22
Addition during the year - -
119.22 119.22
Total 7148.78 6662.80
<

RSD FINANCE LI MITED
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RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31 , 2025

Note-17
Interest Income
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
On Financial assets measured at Amortised cost
Interest on Loans 198.00 181.50
Interest income Debenture/AIF/Bonds 494 .85 494,81
Exempt Income 11.46 25.48
Other interest Income 1.25 9.43
Total 705.56 711.21
Note-18
Dividend Income
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Dividend Income 5.38 11.24
Total 5.38 11.24
Note-19
Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars As on Mar 31,2025 As on Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 69.31 132.31
Total 69.31 132.31
Note-20
Sale of Services
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Job work service 92.95 100.58
Rent on Flat 1.92 1.89
Total 94.87 102.47
Note-21
Net Gain on sale of Financial Instruments i
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Net Gain on Sale of Financial Instruments/AIFs -40.09 259.31
Total -40.09 259.31
R&D FINANCE LIMITED

Chiaf Ffs*.%r_‘-:"écer

M DIRECTOR

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

Q«wa}a Bye s
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RSD Finance Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-22

Other Incomes

Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Income From F&O Trading/ Intraday 4.32 19.61
Sundry Balances Written Off 39.81 -
Profit On Sale of Fixed Asset - 1.27
Other Income 0.46 -
Total 44.59 20.88
Note-23

Emplovee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

As on Mar 31, 2025

As on Mar 31, 2024

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Salaries and Wages 23.16 20.16
Stipend / Training Expenses 3.30 4.57
Director Remuneration 52.20 46.20
Contribution to provident and other Statutory funds 2.32 1.74
Staff welfare expenses 3.23 2.87
Total 84.21 75.54
Note-24

Finance Costs

Particulars

As on Mar 31, 2025

As on Mar 31, 2024

Rs. in Lacs

Rs. in Lacs

Bank Charges & Interest

0.08

0.08

Total

0.08

0.08

LTD

treclor

Ear
8l
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RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-25

Other Expenses
Particulars As on Mar 31, 2025 As on Mar 31, 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Advertisement Expenses 0.54 0.44
Auditors' Remuneration 0.75 0.75
Conveyance & Travelling 3.57 5.32
CSR Welfare Expenses 13.95 9.89
Demat Charges 0.33 0.25
Directors Sitting Fees 0.94 0.31
Donation 0.25 0.20
Fees & Subscription 1.01 0.97
General Expenses 0.15 0.13
Insurance Charges 0.64 0.55
Job Charges 19.84 19.17
Legal Expenses 2.52 3.34
Listing Fees & Stock Exchange Charges 4.95 4.87
Loading & Unloading Charges 1.00 0.90
Management and Upfront Fees 50.84 60.01
Office Maintenance 7.13 6.90
Postage ,Telegram & Telephone 0.02 0.30
Power & Fuel 12.46 11.17
Printing & Stationery 0.46 0.88
Professional Fees & Consultancy Expenses 9.28 9.78
Rent, Rates & Taxes 16.99 5.03
Repair & Maintenance 1.38 1.63
ROC Charges 0.11 0.07
Security Charges 10.17 11.38
Security Transaction Tax 1.55 3.92
Sundry Balance Written Off 0.17 1.35
Sales & Business Promotion - 0.48
Telephone & Mobile Expenses 0.18 0.26
Total 161.17 160.21

For RS

)

Finance L.td.

anaging’Director
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ai Officer
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For RSD FINANCE LTD.

D= Riewrs

Cemnahy Secretary.

133



RSD Finance Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note : 26
Auditors Remuneration
Particulars As on March 31, As on March 31,
2025 2024
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Audit Services 0.75 0.75
Total 0.75 0.75
Note-27
Risk Management

Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management framework
including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This
process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the
Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is mainly
exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. It is also subject to various operating and business risks.

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk
management strategies and principles.

The Company has a robust Risk management framework to identify, evaluate business risk and opportunities. This
framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the
competitive advantage. The framework has a different risk model which helps in identifying risk trends, exposure
and potential impact analysis at a company level.

a. Market Risk

The Company's Financial Instruments are exposed to market changes as are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The Company does not have any exposure to foreign currency. Hence, any fluctuations on account of foreign
currency has not arisen.

Equity price risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from its investments in equity instruments. Equity price risk is
related to the change in market reference price of the investment in equity securities.

Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk as it has borrowings at fixed rate of interest. There are no long
term borrowings at floating interest rate which would affect the profitability of the Company due to fluctuation in
interest rate.

b. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as
they fall due,or will have to do so at an excessive cost. This risk arises from mismatches in the timing of cash flows
which is inherent in all finance driven organisations and can be affected by a range of Company-specific and
market-wide events.

R8D FINANCE LIMJTE

RSD Finance Ltd.

Chief Finzyflﬁ Qfficer

DIRECTOR

\ For RSD FINANCE LTD.
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Notes to Standalone F 1al St for the year ended March 31, 2025
NOTE 28: RATIO ANALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS (Rs. in Laes)
51, No. Particulars Formula As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Numerator Denominator Ratio % | Numerator | Denominator Ratip %
I |Capital 1o Risk Weighted Adjusted Networth / Risk 7879.02 6633.02 118.78 7388.19 624535 118.30
Assets Ratio (CRAR) Weighted Assets
2 |Ter 1 CRAR Tier I Capital / Risk 7796.11 6633.02 117.53 7310.12 624535 117.05
Weighted Assets
3 |Tier Il CRAR Tier 11 Capital / Risk 82.91 6633.02 1.25 78.07 624535 1.25
Weirhted Assets
4 |Liguidity Coverage Ratio Not applicable NA NA NA NA NA NA
Note-29
Additional information as required under Regulation 52(4) of the SERI] {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 (Amended) as presented in the table
below
g 3 As at As at
2 Parksniyry Mareh 31,2025 | March 31, zozﬂ
| Debt-equity ratio (no, of times) - 0.01
2 Debt service coverage ratio NA NA
3 Interest service coverage ratio NA NA
4 Outstanding redeemable preference shares (quantity and valuc) MNA NA
5 Capital redemption reserve (2 in Lacs) NA NA
6 Debenture redemption reserve {2 in Lacs) NA NA
7 Net worth (2 in Lacs) 7796.11 7,310.12
8 Nel profit after tax (2 in Lacs) 512.24 762.15
9 Eamings per share:  Basic 3.75 6.26
Diluted 3.75 6.20
10 Current ratio (no, of times) NA NA
11 Long tenn debi to working capital (0. of times) NA NA
12 Bad debls to Account receivable ratio NA NA
l\.#' 13 Current liability ratio (no. of times) NA NA
14 Total debts (o total assets - 0.01
15 Debtors turnaver 0.19 0.12
16 Inventory turnover NA NA
17 Operating margin (%) NA NA
18 Net profit margin (%) 0.58 0.62
19 Sector specific equivalent ratios as applicable:
a) Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 1 IS.?SI 118.30
b) Tier | CRAR 117.53 117.05
¢) Tier Il CRAR 1.25 1.25
d) Liguidity Coverage Ratio NA NA

NOTE 30: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The following is the disclosure with regard to CSR activities -

(Rs. in Lacs)

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
) amount required to be spent by the company durin, the year 12.92 10.12
b) amount of expenditure incurred 13,95 9.89
) shortfall at the end of the year (#) -1.03 0.23
d) total of previous years shortfall - =
e) reason for shartfall M.A. * Op. Unspent Balance of CSR adjusted
in this FY
D) nature of CSR Activities Spreading  awareness  about legal  rights, Making safe available drinking water,

o

activities,

educating and empowering women, distributing
food packets and grains to needy people,
supporting  rural  development,
education, women empowerment, healthcare,
medical
protection. It also includes cducating youth on
the harmful effects of drug  abuse and

encouraging them to stay away from drugs,

and

promoting,
& Ecological Balance
environmental

Distribution of food. Promotion of
Education, Distribution of Mask &
Sanitizer, Health Care - Financial Support
& Ensuring Environmental Sustainability

) details of related party transactions NA NA

h) where a provision is made with respect (o a liability incurred by entering into a contractual NA NA

obligation, the movements in the provision during the year

# The Company has spend an excess amount of Rs, 1.03 Lakhs during the current financial year i.¢ 2024-25 and the same has becn carried forward for i diately ding three fi |

years, in compliance to the provisions of Rule 7(3) of the Companies (CSR Palicy) Rules, 2014

* The Company had spent an e
had been adiusted in the finan

xeess amount of Rs. 7.50 Lacs during the financial year 202 -22
cial vear 2023-24, in compliance to the provisions of Rule 7(3)

RSD FINANCE LIMI

towards which Rs. 7.08 Lacs was adj
of the companies [ CSR Policy ) Rule, 2014
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RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
Note-31
Related party disclosures as required under IND AS - 24 on "Related Party Disclosure" notified by the Central Government,

A. Subsidiaries Companies Precision Automotive Pvt Ltd,
S R P Oil Private Limited

Step Down Subsidiary Sigma HTS LLP

Key Management Personnel Rajeev Singh Dugal (Managing Director)
Upneet Dugal (Executive Director)
Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal (Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director)
Rajiv Shukla (Non-Executive Independent Director)
(Appointed w.e.f. 27th December 2024)
Malkeet Singh Saini (Non-Exccutive Independent Director)
Pradeep Kumar Khosla (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Ravi Joshi (Chief Financial Officer)
Subhajita Biswal (Company Secretary)

Ralative of Key Management Personnel KashT‘r‘Duga]
-y L
Enterprise Over Which KMP is able Precision Automotive Private Limited *{5 5
\_/ to Exercise Significant Influence: Reflexallen India Private Limited ~d 5
Reflexallen India Tubing Private Limited 8 =
SRP Qil Pvt. Ltd. o e
Premium Residency Private Limited E.j A ;'_.
Sigma HTS LLP Lt &;
Jharkhand Agro Farms Sy o
Ban Infra & Developers LLP A =
Rajeev Singh Dugal HUF ©
K U Benefit Trust b
B. Transactions during the Year Current Year Previous Year
(X In Lacs) (X In Lacs)
i. Sale of Goods/Services 10.67 10.09
a. Reflexallen India Private Limited 10.67 10.09
ii. Purchase of Goods/Services 6.15 6.58
a.  SRP Qil Pvt Ltd 6.15 6.58
u Managerial Remuneration 65.10 63.08
a.  Rajeev Singh Dugal 30.00 24.00
b. Upneet Dugal 22.20 22.20
¢.  Ravi Joshi (Chief Financial Officer) 12.90 12.00
d.  Aditya Srivastava (Ex-Company Secretary) < 3.34
¢ Subhajita Biswal (Company Secretary) 5.64 1.54
iv. Sitting Fees 0.80 0.26
a. Sushil Kumar Khowala - 0.10
b. Harsh Kumar Pandey 0.22 0.10
¢.  Malkeet Singh Saini 0.30 3
d.  Sukant Bari 0.06 0.06
e.  Pradeep Kumar Khosla 0.22 =
C. Outstanding balance as on 31.03.2025 3.90 14.46
4. Rajeev Singh Dugal (Expenses Payablc) 1.54 12.74
b.  Upneet Dugal (Expenses Payable)’ 1.05 0.70
d.  Ravi Joshi (Expenses Payable) : 0.44 0.43
¢ Subhajita Biswal (Expenses Payable) ; = 0.50 0.32
£ Reflexallen India Private Limited (Trade receivables) 0.37 W= e 1y 827
RSD FINANCE Linigcl




Note-32

On the basis of information available with the company,
outstanding for more than 30 days.

Note-33

Ind AS 108 - Segment Reporting:

Information about Primary Business Segments

RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

there are no small-scale industrial undertakings to which the Company owes any sum which is

(X In Lacs)

Particulars Finance Job Work Unallocable Total
Total Revenue 784.75 94.87 0.00 879.62
PY. 1134.94 102.47 0.00 1237.41
Segment Result before Interest, 639.24 25.52 0.00 664.77

Exceptional Items and Tax

Y 933.23 33.70 0.00 966.93
Less : Interest Expenses 0.08
PY 0.08
~ Profit before Taxes 664.68
966.85
Taxes 152.44
204.70
Profit after Taxes 512.24
762.15
Segment Assets 7946.55 137.52 0.00 8084.07
7634.37 131.87 0.00 7766.24
Segment Liabilities 194.49 93.48 0.00 287.97
370.58 83.54 0.00 456.12
Capital Expenditure 0.40 0.00 0.00 0.40
0.87 2.28 0.00 343
Depreciation 5.22 0.05 0.00 5.27
O/ 2.11 3.92 0.00 6.03

v X an, pncd A NS
RSO FilNANLE L
-

DIRECTOR

For RSD FINANCE LTD. ‘

bk Drswnd

Company Secretary.

Finance Ltd,

Chict ?f:f:%{(iir}';cer
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Note-34

Earnings Per Share (EPS):

RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

No of Ordinary Shares at the Beginning of the year (in nos.)
No of Ordinary Shares at the End of the year (in nos.)
Weighted Average No. of Ordinary Shares (in nos.)
Qutstanding during the year

Profit (Loss) after tax for calculation of Basic EPS (Z in Lacs)
Profit (Loss) after tax for caleulation of Diluted EPS (2 in Lacs)

Basic Earnings per share (%)
Diluted Earnings per share (%)

Note-35

Directors Remuneration
Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal
Ms. Upneet Dugal

Note-36

, RBI Schedule for NBFC'S ;

</

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

Current Year Previous Year
1,29,46.480 1,29,46,480
1.29.46.480 1.29.46.480
1.29.46,480 1,29.46,480

484.88 810.65
484.88 810.65
3.75 6.26
3.75 6.26
Current Year Previous Year
Rs in Lacs Rs in Lacs
30.00 24.00
22.20 22.20
52.20 46.20

(Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions,

Liabilities Side:

1. Loans and Advances availed by the NBFC’S inclusive
of interest acerued thereon but not paid :

(a) Debentures :

Secured
Unsecured

(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

(b) Deferred Credits
(¢) Term Loans

(d)  Inter-Corporate Loans & Borrowings

(¢) Commereial Paper
(N Other Loan (specify nature)

2. Break-up (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
Interest acerued thereon but not paid) :

(a) In the form of Unsecured Debentures
(b)  In the form of partly secured debentures where there
is a shortfall in the value of security

(¢)  Other Public Deposits

R

For RSD

ST Finance i_td.

Chief Finc%ﬂ'icer

s

2007.
As at 31st March, 2025
Amount Amount
Qutstanding Overdue
(Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs)
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
RSD FINANCE LIMI ;D

For RSO FINANCE LTD.

Ww Ve rad
Company Secretary,

as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial
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RSD Finance Limited
1 Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Amount Outstanding
¥ As on 31.03.2025
Assets Side: (Rs in Lacs)

3.  Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivable
[other than those including in (4) below]:

(a) Secured 1105.95
(b)  Unsecured 4.53

Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on hire and other assets
counting Towards AFC activities:

(I)  Lease Assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors : NIL
(a) Financial Lease NIL
(b) Operating Lease NIL
(I} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors : NIL
(a)  Assets on hire NIL
(b) Repossessed Assets NIL
(Il Other Loans counting towards AFC activities : NIL
({_ ) Loans where Assets have been repossessed NIL
(b)” Loans other than (a) above NIL

4. Break-up of Investments:

Current Investments (Rs in Lacs)
(D Quoted
(a) Shares: (1) Equity 54.53
(ii) Preference NIL
(b) Debentures & Bonds NIL
(¢)  Units of Mutual Funds 3017.27
(d) Govemment Securities NIL
(e}  Other (please specify) NIL
(II)  Unquoted
(a) Shares: (i) Equity NIL
(ii) Preference NIL
(! )Debentures & Bonds NIL
(¢J™ Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(d) Government Securities NIL
(e)  Other (please specify) NIL

. i e e g s
RSE:’ F”tf";["ﬁbt l.g}‘a'!ITL..D

DIRECTOR ‘

For RSO FINANCE LTD. 8

Cobha)sTn Dissod
2 - :
comiyany Secretary

Lt, Feadl [
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g Long Term Investments

RSD Finance Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(I)  Quoted
(a) Shares: (i) Equity NIL
(i) Preference NIL
(b)  Debentures & Bonds 867.11
(¢)  Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(d) Government Securities NIL
(¢)  Other (PMS) 235728 v
) ~A 2
()  Unquoted 5 =
(a) Shares: (i) Equity 208.86 w e
= &)
(i) Preference NIL Q = 8
zZ Ao
(b)  Debentures & Bonds NIL g g
(¢)  Units of Mutual Funds NIL T o
W o
(d)  Government Securities NIL o =
(e)  Other (please specify) NIL ) o
xNQ
5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above: lo-
(Rs in Lacs) L
L. .J Amount net of Provision
Category Secured IUnsecured ]Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL
(b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL NIL
(c)  Other Related Parties NIL NIL NIL
2. Other than Related Partics 1105.95 453 1110.48
6.  Investor group-wise classification of all Investments (current and long term) in shares and Securities (both Quoted and Unquoted) :
(Rs in Lacs)
Market Value / Break Book Value
Category Up or fair Value or NAV (Net of Provisions)
1. Related Parties
(a)  Subsidiaries 208.86 208.86
(b)  Companies in the same group NIL NIL
(¢} Other Related Parties NIL NIL
2. Other than Related Parties 6296.20 6263.45
7.  Other Information:
Particulars Amount (Rs in Lacs)
: .
(I Gross Non-Performing Assets NIL o e
(2) Related Parties NIL a 4=
(b)  Other than Related Partics NIL a O
(1) Net Non-Performing Assets NIL O ™
(a) Related Partics NIL [f; o
(b)  Other than Related Parties NIL C E
(1) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. NIL L}_ e
0 2
= &) Q
I

For R ELTD

irector

W DIRECTOR
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RSD Finance Limited

Al o sl
F

Notes o S

Note-37
Title deeds of Immovable Property :

for the year ended March 3 1,2025

The title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the Company as at the current and previous balance sheet date except

the followings,

Relevant linc item| Description of item of Gross Carrying [T

‘itle Deeds Held In

Whether Title Deed Holder
is a promoter, director or

relative of

Peiperty Heln Reason for Not Being Held in the

in Balance Sheet property Value (in Lacs.) the Name of promoter/director or Slncl;::;hich name of the company/entity
employee of
promoter/director?
The  possession  and original
Flat Mo, F<401 & F- agreement to sale, of the property, is
Property, Plant & | 404, Located at M.P. m——_— " in the name of the RSD Finance Lid,
Equipment City, Adityapur, Dist. At PATO BUILDERS NO 10/10/12 Further, title deeds will be registered
Scraikella-Kharsawan in the name of the company once
stale govi's policy on registry is
Note-38 '

Disclosure of Fair Value of Investment Property :

On transition to IND AS, the company has elected to continue with the camrying value of all of is
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of the property,
company is not required to get its valuation done and hence the question of valuation

Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 docs not arise,

property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2018 measured a5
plant and equipment. As a result of the above decision taken by the company, the
being done by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered

Note-39 0 =
Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipments = =
The Company has not revalued its praperty, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the current or previous financial vear. Hence the disclosure as to the re-valuatiopl .}E
is done by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies {Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 does not arise, Ly ﬂ_’
(&

‘ O A g
Note-40 2 1)
Loans & Advances to Directors, Pr s KMPs & Related Parties __:(

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loan outstanding 1o any of its Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personals and related parties. = g\
o {501
Note-41 L. o
Capital- Work-in Progress (CWIP)/ Intangible assets under development (ITAUD) 0 {:
The Company does not have any Capital Work in Progress Account as at the Current and Previous Balance Sheet Date. (5] [
(.
o i
Note-42 i

Details of Benami Propcrty held O
No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {4d.af
1988) and the rules made thereunder.

Note-43

Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets:

The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Henee this disclosure is not applicable to the
company,

Note-44
Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as a Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Note-45

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has reviewed transaction to identify if there are any transaction with struck off companics to the extent information is available on struck off companies, there
are no transaction with struck off Companies, Z

o) 3

Note-46 st ]

Registration of charges or satisfaction with R gistrar of Companies o o
The Company do not have any pending charges or satisfaction that are yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, o (: ]
Note-47 Cg X :‘;

Compliance with number of Iayers of companics J"‘} P
The Company has plied with the ber of lavers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Agt read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rnlcs,i'.; :p
2017, oo ]

u- i

~ ke

d =

] &

RSL_AMNANCE Lii
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Note-48
Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements

The Company has not ent, d inte any scheme of arrang

Note-49
Uitilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

A. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including

Intermediary shall;

RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial vear.

)

e

i

a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entiti

4 in any

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

er by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Bencficiaries) or

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

B. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recarded in writing

or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or en behalf of the Funding Party (Ullimate Benefi
b) provide any puarmtee, security or the like an behalf of the ultimate bencficianes

C. The Company has used the borrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheel date,

Note-50
Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Viral Currency during the current or previous financial year.

Note-51

Undisclosed Income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income durin
in the books of account,

Note-52

Previous year's figure have been regrouped/reclassified / re-arranped wherever

Note-53

2 the current or previous year in

fecessary to correspond with the current year's classification/disclosure.

The figures have been rounded ofF to the nearest Lacs of rupees upto two decimal places.

As per our repoit of even date attached,

For SDY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0168500

Jay Prakash Heerwal G
Parter -
M. No. 415136

Date: 2405209 5

Place: Jamshedpur

UDIN: 2 418 136 BMLRXWDUL R

RSD Financs Lt

For RSD g

i3

Chief Financial Qfficer

RSD Finance Limited

naging Dify
Rajeev Singh Dugal
Managing Director
DIN: 00052037

tor

ChHief Financial Officer

For RSD F

LTJ;]] on behalf of the Board of Directors of

ciaries) or

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded

RSD FINANCE Lini

-

Upneet Dugal

“TM
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)

DIN: 076
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S D 17 & Co Jharkhand State Co-operative Bank Building
1st Floor, Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 1,
Chartered Accountants E-mail :Ps}éy.jgfégézﬁ?cloori

www.sdy.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of RSD Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of RSD Finance Limited (herein refer to as
the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as “the Group™) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as “the consolidated financial

statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act. 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31,
2025, and its consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and comprehensive loss
if any). consolidated change in equity, its consolidated Profit and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
India in terms ol the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
consolidated linancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
nol express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

BRANCH OFFICES : 1) KOLKATA 2) KHARAGPUR
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with the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, consolidated change in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities is responsible for assessing
the ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and
Jointly controlled entities is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group
and of its associates and jointly controlled entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and




L1

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and of its associates and
jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and of its associates and jointly
controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

* LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express: an
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
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regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our audit report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order” “CARQ?”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and further to the comments in “Annexure A” to
Independent Auditor’s Report on Standalone Financial Statements of Helding and Subsidiary
Companies issued by us, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these
CARO reports.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.
[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.
The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes of
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.
In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate
companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the directors
of the Group Company, its associates companies and jointly controlled companies
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
(i).  There were no pending litigations which would impact its consolidated financial
position of the Group Company, its associates’ companies and jointly controlled
entities.
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(ii).

(iii).

(iv).

(vi).

(vi).

The Group Company, its associates companies and jointly controlled entities has
made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards (IND
AS), for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including
derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its associates’
companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India.

The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such
subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such
subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person or
entity, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company and its
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited by us under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v) contain
any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared any dividend on equity shares during the year,
however its subsidiary Company Precision Automotive Private Limited has
declared and paid the agreed rate of dividend on its Cumulative Non-Convertible
Preference Shares and the same is in compliance of Section 123 of the Companies
Act 2013.
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(vii).  Based on our examination which included test checks, the company and its group
entities has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further during the course
of our audit, for the period for which the audit trail facility had been operational during
the year, we did not come across any instance of audit trail being tampered with and the
management has represented that the audit feature cannot be disabled. Company has
preserved the Audit trail as per the statutory requirements of records retention.

ForSDY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN = 016850C)

(Jay Prakash Heerwal)
Partner =

M. No.: 415136

UDIN: 25416 |34 RMLY WEQFD2

Date: 2.u|pylaons
Place: Jamshedpur
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RSD Finance
Limited (herein referred to as the “the Holding Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction
with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICATI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policics, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respecls.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors® judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with Ind AS. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with Ind AS and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of the Management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
cvaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSD Y & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN - 016850C)

(Jay Prakash Heerwal)
Partner

M. No.: 415136

UDIN: 2T UIS 134 BMULXY WE 8322

Date: 24| vr‘ nouU

Place: Jamshedpur
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLCO013316
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON MAR 31,2025

(Rs. in Lacs)
: Note
Particulars No. As at Mar 31,2025 | As at Mar 31, 2024
(A) |ASSETS
(1) |Financial Assets
(a) |Cash and cash equivalents 3 58.71 131.49
{b) [Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 3A 524 .84 565.11
(c) |Trade Receivables 4 366.01 251.89
{d) |Loans 5 1418.25 1159.16
(e) |Investments 6 17279.89 16969.11
(f) |Other Financial assets 7 1313.99] 669.92
(2) |Non-financial Assets
(a) |Inventories g 1944.81 1496.22
(b) |Property, Plant and Equipment 9
i) | (i) Tangible Assets 5567.24 6298.95
(ii) Capital WIP 773.05 -
(iii) Intangible Assets 0.43 3.26
(c) |Other Non-Financial Assets
Total Asséts 29247.23 27545.11
(B) |LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) |LIABILITIES
(1.1) |[Financial Liabilities
(a) |Payables
Trade Payables 10
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises ] ]
(ii) lot.al outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 772.86 580.19
enterprises and small enterprises
(b) [Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 11 2107.96 2639.95
(1.2) [Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) |Current tax liabilities (Net) 12 753.48 473.60
(b) [Provisions 13 153.38 230.26
(c) [Deferred tax Liability (Net) 14 293.11 283.18
(d) |Other non-financial liabilities (to be specified) 15 230.53 188.22
Total Liabilities 4311.31 4395.40
(2) [EQUITY
(a) |Equity Share capital 16 647.32 647.32
(b) |Other Equity 17 20542.26 19233.23
Total Equity attributable to owners of parent 21189.59 19880.55
Non-controlling interest 3746.33 3269.16
Total Equity 24935.92 23149.71
Total Liabilities and Equity 29247.23| 27545.11
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For SDY & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants RSD Finance Limited - e
FRN: 016850C For RSD TD RSD FINANCE LIMITEEZD
—_—
Ve Singi Digal N Upneet Dugal RECTOR
Managing Dircctor Director
Jay Prakash Heerwal DIN: 00052037 DIN: 07680726
- - Ear RS "IN T
:f:r;{n:rusw& FSH Finance L. R F%Eﬁf%i&;g\uﬂ
Date: 2.\|o5]2004—  Ravilgefi c SH'?"}“&?@B%%‘?&?etary.
Place: Jamshedpur Chisef FChig imangigkQtticer df>mp ny Secretary

UDIN: L57YITI3 L RMLYX WE 2322 -
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MAR 31,2025

(Rs. in Lacs)

Fariealers r;‘:“ As at Mar 31,2025 | As at Mar 31, 2024
Revenue from Operations
i Interest Income 18 1585.00 976.04
ii Dividend Income 19 70.12 79.45
iii__ [Net gain on fair value changes 20 95.08 372.16
iv Sale of finished goods 21 7119.34 4455.61
v Sale of service 22 4131.07 4428.01
I Total revenue from operations 13000.62 10311.27
Other Income
i Net Gain on sale of Financial Instruments 23 207.61 51712
ii Other Income 24 292.09 292,89
11 Total Other income 499.70 810.01
I |Total income 13500.32 11121.28
Expenses
i Cost of materials consumed 25 4206.90 3084.41
ii Cost of stores consumed 26 1182.73 1033.55
il Employee benefits expenses 27 993.13 846.39
iv Finance costs 28 395.17 281.25
v Depreciation and amortisation expense 9 776.00 1052.59
vi Provisions 29 -63.91 -
vii__ |Other expenses 30 3473.98 2637.27
IV |Total expenses 10964.02 8935.46
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 2536.30 2185.82
Exceptional items a =
Y1 __ |Profit / (Loss) before tax 2536.30 2185.82
Tax expense
a) Current Tax 12 753.48 473.60
b) Deferred Tax 14 1.35 -28.07
VII  |Total Tax Expenses 754.83 445.53
VIII _|Net Profit/ (Loss) for the period 1781.47 1740.29

Other Comprehensive Income
[tems that will not be classified to profit or loss

(i) Items that will not be classified to profit or loss 34.06 398.94
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be classified to profit or loss 8.57 100.40
IX [Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 25.49 298.54
X Total comprehensive income for the period 1806.96 2038.83
XI Profit for the period attributable to
Owners of the company 1323.53 1400.03
Non-Controlling Interest 457.94 340.26
XI1 _ |Other Comprehensive Income attributable to
Owners of the company 14.90 227.71
Non-Controlling Interest 10.59 70.83
XIII | Total Comprehensive Income attributable to
Owners of the company 1338.43 1627.74
Non-Controlling Interest 468.53 411.09
X1V P':nd—up Equity .Sharc Capital 647.32 647.32
(Face Value of * 5 per share)
XV __ |Earnings per share :(in Rs.)
(a) Basic 33 13.96 15.75
(b) Diluted 33 13.96 15.75
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For SDY & Co. - For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants =<7 5=~ RSD Fmance L|m|ted MITE
FRN: 016850¢ & For RS 'ELTD  RSD FINANCE LiMIT
\lL ul . W/
Ry Singh'Dugal I Upneet D b_ﬁTOr{
‘\Q hEE-}ng‘ i * "‘"” Dlrcucg:‘_fﬁr
Jay Prakash Heerwal ~ “SSUACO=Z DIN: 00052037 76807
Partner RSD Finance Ltdq. For R” ' qf%éﬁi LTD.

M. No. 415136

Date: 2.4] 0g] 2024~

Place: Jamshedpur

UDIN: 28Y) R e AMLX WE §H22

C(?)H“?“#F“f*% retary.

mpany Secretary
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316

Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow Statments for the Year Ended 31st March 2025
As at Mar 31, As at Mar 31,
SI. No. Particulars 2025 2024
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)
1 Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax 2536.30 2185.82
Add : Adjustments for
Depreciation 776.00 1052.59
Gain/(Loss) on Remeasurement of Financial Assets 34.06 398.94
Provisions -63.91 -
Less : Adjustment for
P/L Appropriation -25.01 -2.82
Profit on Sale of Investment 207.61 517.12
Dividend Received 70.12 79.46
Interest Income 1585.00 976.04
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1444.74 2067.55
Adjustments for:-
Inventories -448.59 -422.29
Trade Receivables -114.13 173.26
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 42.32 -4.09
Other Financial Assets -644.07 254.05
Provision for expenses payable -12.97 -21.07
Trade Payables 192.66 -236.45
Net cash generated from operating activities 459.96 1810.95
Tax Paid/Provided 473.60 286.98
Net cash generated from operation [A] -13.64 1523.97
2 Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Profit on sale of Investment 207.61 517.12
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments -310.78 -1857.42
Loans -259.09 10.08
Dividend Received 70.12 79.46
Interest Received 1585.00 376.04
Sale/(Purchase) of Assets -§14.52 -335.40
Net cash from investing activities [B] 478.34 -610.13
3 Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings -531.99 -798.94
Payment of Dividend -54.40 -54.40
Capital introduction in Subsidiary 8.64 12.00
Net cash from financing activities [C] -577.75 -841.34
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash
& Cash equivalents [A+B+C] -113.05 72.50
Cash & Cash equivalents (Opening balance) 696.60 624.10
Cash & Cash equivalents (Closing balance) 583.55 696.60

* The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set-out in IND AS 7, Statement of

Cash Flows

** Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents are disclosed in Note No. 3 and 3A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Consolidated financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached.

For SDY & Co.
Chartered Accountani;
FRN: 016850C 7/

JAMSHEDPUR

Partner
M. No. 415136

Date: ')«\{[ ofl2024~

Place: Jamshedpur

UDIN: 257U $734 @ML X LOE P 322

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
B .RSrl)fF'_‘jnance Limited

LILs SO IR A RS
RSD FINAKCE LIMiTED

S e
|08 Upneet Dugal
DiredfiRECTOR
DIN: 07680726
For BSD FINANCE LTD.

g«nb&ﬂﬂﬁ 2% 20

Ravi Joshi Subhajita Biswal

Chief FHEEnenQeEger i ey TE1ArY.

-

DIN: 00052037
RS Finance Lid.
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See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Name of the Non-Banking Financial Company: RSD FINANCE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended : 31st March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 647.32
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2024 647.32
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2025 647.32
B. Other Equity (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Statutory Capital Securitie General Surplus i.e.
Reserves Reserve S Reserve Balance in the
Premiu Statement of Total
m Profit & Loss
Balance at April 01, 2023 1,115.99 1,287.56 - 5,468.33 9,785.19 17,657.07
Add: Addition During the year 162.12 = - - - 162.12
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 1,627.74 1,627.74
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 162.12 - - - 1,627.74 1,789.86
Proposed dividend < = 5 = -54.40 -54.40
Appropriation to Statutory Reserves - - - -162.12 -162.12
Other Appropriation - - - - 2.82 2.82
Balance at March 31, 2024 1,278.11 1,287.56 - 5,468.33 11,199.22 19,233.23
Balance at April 01, 2024 1,278.11 1,287.56 - 5,468.33 11,199.22 19,233.23
Add: Addition During the year 96.98 - - - - 96.98
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 1,338.43 1,338.43
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear 96.98 - - - 1,338.43 1,435.41
Add: P/L Appropriation - - - - 25.01 25.01
Proposed dividend - - - - -54.40 -54.40
Appropriation to Statutory Reserves - - - - -96.98 -96.98
Balance at March 31, 2025 1,375.09 1,287.56 - 5,468.33 12,411.28 20,542.26

RSD tlll.\t'\‘[‘lk,._ Lolivel b izt

For RSD FINANCE LiD.

S

e/

e By

1y Secretary.

comp

zial Officer
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2.0.

2.1,

2.2.

RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLCO013316
Notes forming Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note-1

Corporate Information

RSD Finance Limited (the "Company") is a public limited company incerporated under the provisions of the Erstwhile
Companies Act, 1956, The Company is engaged in fund-based activities like providing loans and advances, inter-
corporate deposits, loans against securities and investments in shares and securities. The Company also carries out job
work activities. The shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Bombay Stock
Exchange. The Company holds a certificate of registration from the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") to carry on the
business of Non-Banking Financial Institution ("NBFI") under the category of Non-Deposit taking Company.,

Note-2
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation:
The Consolidated Financial statements consists of RSD Finance Limited (“the Company") and its subsidiary company
(collectively reffered to as "the Group"). The consolidated financial statemenrts have been prepared on the following
- The financial statements of the company and its subsidiary company have been combined on a line-by-linc basis by
adding together the book values (measures at fair vaule as per IND AS) of like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or
losses as per IND AS 110 - " Consolidated financial statements" notified by companies ( Indian accounting standards)
Rules.20135, as amended.
- The financial statements of the subsidiary used in the conslidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of
the company i.e 31st march, 2025.
The List of Subsidiary Company which is included in the consolidation and the Group Holdings therin are as under.

Name of the Company / Precision SRP OIL Pvt i
Body Corporate Automotive Pvt Ltd Ltd Sigma HTS LLP
ooy 2024-25 100 52.55 65
(1)
i 2023-24 100 52.55 65
Country of Incorporation India India India

Statement of compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting Policies:

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies mentioned below.Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or services. The Company complies with the Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable and directions prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupees.

RSD FINANCE LIMITEL

RSD Finance L td.

Chief F %'/:}’ icer
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23.

2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316
Notes forming Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Use of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities. income,
expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from the estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at cach balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected.

Revenue Recognition:

The applicability of Ind AS 115, Revenue Recognition provides for a single model of accounting revenue from contracts
with customers based on the identification and satisfaction of performance obligations.

Income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis, wherever ascertainable.

Dividend are recognised only when the right to reccive is established

Interest Income is recognised as and when they become accrued.

Trade receivables:

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for
impairment, if any.

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques and drafts in hand, balances with bank and deposits held at
call with financial institutions. These do not include bank balances earmarked / restricted for specific purposes.

Investments and other financial assets:
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss),
« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

b

DIRECTOR
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ISD Finbhice Lid. For RSD FINANCE LTD.
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316
Notes forming Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

-Debt Instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt
instruments:

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other gain or loss using the effective interest rate
method,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses and interest revenue are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised under
other income. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other gain or loss using the effective interest rate
method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and presented in the statement of profit and loss under other gain or loss in the period in which it arises. Interest or
dividend income, if any from these financial assets is separately included in other gain or loss.

-Equity investments (other than investments in subsidiaries)

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has
clected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value,

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain or loss in the
statement of profit and loss.

It

/
DIRECTOR

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

Company Secretan

R3D Finance Ltd.
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2.8.

2.9.

RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLC013316
Notes forming Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
-Equity [nvestments (in subsidiaries)
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, il any.

(iii) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains cither all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

Financial liabilities

Classification: Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Initial Recognition and Measurement: Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classitied as fair value through profit and loss.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. The cost
of fixed assets comprises of purchase price and all other attributable costs of bringing the assets to working condition for
intended use.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item
to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assct and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.10 Depreciation:

On fixed assets, depreciation is provided on written down Value method. The rates of depreciation prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, are considered as minimum rates.
Leasehold Land is not depreciated or amortized.

2.11. Trade and other payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial period
which are unpaid. They are recognised at their fair value.

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

Sulaborte Biess?

Chief Finagflal Ofticer Company Sacretfary.
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2.12.

2.13.

2.14

RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLCO013316
Notes forming Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee benefits:

(i) Short-term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits. These benefits include salary, wages and bonus, The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised during the period of
rendering of service by the employee. '

(ii) Post-employment benefits:

Defined contribution plans
The Company has defined contribution plans for post-employment benefits namely Provident Fund which are
recognised by the income tax authorities. The Company contributes to a Government administered provident fund on
behalf of its employees and has no further obligation beyond making its contribution. The Company makes contributions
to state plans namely Employee’s State Insurance Fund and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to
them. The Company’s contributions to the above funds are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss every year.

Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more unceriain future
events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

RSD FINANCE LIiMiTED
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2.15.

2.16

2.17.

|
2.18.

2.19.

RSD FINANCE LIMITED
CIN-L17222JH1963PLCO013316
Notes forming Integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Earnings per share:
Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstand ing
during the year-end, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Borrowings:

Borrowing Cost that are directly attributable to the acquistion/ construction of the qualifying asset are capitalised until
the time all the substantial activities neceessary to prepare such assets for the intended use are complete. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure during the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are initially recognised al fair value. net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed is recognised in
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange transactions
The Company during the year did not have foreign exchange transaction.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with Income Tax
Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income
and taxable income for the period). The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or
assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future;
however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets arc
recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each
balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case
may be) to be realised.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is
likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.
Accordingly. MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, and
it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with asset will be realised.

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Company has not accepted any Public Deposits during the year under review and the Board of Directors have
passed resolution to the effect that the Company has neither accepted Public Deposit nor would accept any public
Deposit during the year.

RSD Finance Litd.
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RSD Finance Limited

CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-3

Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024
(¥ in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)

- In eurrent Account 33.28 109.69

Cash in Hand 2543 21.80

Cheques, dratts on hand s -

Total 58.71 131.49

Note-3A

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

Fixed deposits with banks 524.84 565.11

Total 524.84 565.11

Note-4

Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2025

(X in Lacs)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months

6 months -1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
vears

Total

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables
considered good

357.78 223

1.33

2.89

1.78

366.01

(1} Undisputed Trade receivables
cansidered doubtful

(111) Disputed trade receivables
considered good

(iv) Disputed trade receivables
considered doubtful

Trade Receivables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2024

(T in Lacs)

Particulars

Qutstanding for following periods from du

¢ date of payment

Less than 6 months

6 months -1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables
considered good

24718 -

2.93

1.78

251.89

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables
considered doubtful - - - - = .
(iii) Disputed trade receivables
considered good - L = - 5 =
(iv) Disputed trade receivables
considered doubtful - - 3 a = .
— Impairment allowance recognised on trade receivables is Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nilj.

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

For RSD FINANCE LTD. {5
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RSD Finance Limited
CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-5

Loans
Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024

(¥ in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)

At Amortised Cost
Security Deposit 50.10 4970
Corporate loan 1368.15 1109.46
Total(Gross) 1418.25 1159.16
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance -
Total (Net) (A) 1418.25 1159.16
Secured 1368.15 1109.46
Unsecured 50.10 49.70
Total{Grass) (B) 1418.25 1159.16
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance - =
Total (Net) Q) 1418.25 1159.16
Total 1418.25 1159.16

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

DIRECTOR

RSD Fj
iNance Lid. For RSD FINANCE LTD.

" X
Chief an% i S"‘H“’jﬂ“ Doyewal

Company Secretary.

162



RSD FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Ce d Financial St far the year ended March 31, 2025
Note-6
Rs in Lacs
Investments
As at March 31,2025
Amortised cost At Fair Value Sub- Total Others* Total
Particulars Through Other Through profit or | Designated at fair
Comprehensive loss value through
Income profit or loss
1 2 3 4 (5)=(2)+(3)H(4) 6 (T )+(S)+(6)
Mutual funds 6835.00 - 277.25 - 277.25 . 7112.25
Investment in PMS 6230.89 106.90 -50.49 - 56.41 - 628731
Debt securities 3234.19 -22.85 -271.12 - -293 96 - 2940,22
Equity instruments 958.14 -50.00 31.97 - -18.03 - 940.11
Subsidiaries - - - - - - -
Other Group Company -| - = - -
Property - - - - - -
Bonds - - - - - - -
Total — Gross (A) 17258.23 34.06 -12,39 < 21.67 - 17279.89
(i)Investments owtside [ndia - - - - - - -
(il}Investments in India 17258.23 34.06 -12.39 - 21.67 - 17279.89
Tatal (B) 17258.23 34.06 -12.39 i 2L.67 - 17279.89
Less:Allowance for Impairment loss ( C ) - - - - - - -
[ Total — Net D=(A)}(C) 17258.23 34.06 -12.39 - 21.67 - 17279.89]
Note-6
Rs in Lacs
Investments
As at March 31,2024
At Fair Value
Particulars
Amortised cost Sub- Total Others* Total
Through Other Designated at fair
Comprehensive Ahrsigh ofitnr value through
loss
Income profit or loss
1 2 3 4 (S)=(2)H3)H4) 6 (T=1H5)H6)
Mutual funds 3.491.78 - 325.40 - 325.40 - 3.817.17
Investment in PMS/AIF 6,222.63 39972 13.84 - 413.56 - 6,636.19
Debt securities 4,659.06 10.20 131.80 - 142.00 - 4,801.06
Equily instruments 1,574.55 -10.98 -98.88 - -109.86 - 1,464 .69
Subsidiaries = - ™ - - - -
Preference Shares - - - - = - -
Properiy = - = - = - -
Bonds 250.00 - - - - - 250.00
Total — Gross (A} 16,198.02 398.94 372.16 - 771.10 - 16,969.11
(i)Investments outside India - - - - - - -
(it}Invesiments in India 16,198.02 398.94 372.16 - 771.10 - 16,969.11
Taotal (B) 16,198.02 398.94 372.16 - 771.10 - 16,969.11
Less:Allowance for Impairment loss ( C ) - - - - - - -
Total — Net D= (A)-(C) 16.198.02 398.94 372.16 - 77110 - 16,969.11
- bl w1y =
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RSD Finance Limited

CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-7

Particulars

Prepaid Expenses

Other Advances

Advance to Staff

Advance against capital goods
Balance with Revenue Departments

Note-8

Particulars

Food. Beverages, Stores and Supplies
Raw Material

Finished Goods

Stores & Spares

Total

CE LTD

RSD Finance Ltd.

Chicf Fina~tis! Officer

Other Non Financial Assets

As on March 31,2025

As on March 31,2024

(T in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
7.03 3.34
27.87 37.96
2.38 1.33
233.76 .00
1042.96 627.29
1313.99 669.92

Inventories

As on March 31,2025

As on March 31,2024

(Z in Lacs) (X in Lacs)
93.10 105.58
734.88 515.67
433.86 377.43
682.97 497.54
1944.81 1496.22

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

%W

Company Secreta

164



RSD FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Note 9
Property, Plant and Equipment as on 31.03.2025 (Rs in Lacs)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION BLOCK NET BLOCK
S.NO | PARTICULARS COST AS ON ADDITIONS DIE:E‘)E il TOTAL AS ON DEDLCTIONS NET CARRYING | NET CARRYING
i 'm 04‘2524' DURING THE DI!R[NC‘ ‘fl'l-iE i 1'024 UPTO 01.04.2024 | FOR THE YEAR | DURING THE | UPTO 31.03.2025 | AMOUNT AS ON | AMOUNT AS ON
o YEAR i =ap i YEAR JLo03.2025 31.03.2024
YEAR
| |Land(Freehold) 472,42 - 472.42 - 5 £ - 47242 472,42
2 Land{Le¢asehold) 62.13 - - 62.13 - - - - 62.13 6213
3 Shed & Building 352299 49.34 9391 3478.42 1359 96 16010 - 1520.06 1958.36 2162.50
4 Building (Staff Quarter) 37.51 - - 57.51 29.59 2.65 - 32.24 2527 27.93
5 |Flat 30.32 - - 30.32 19.92 091 - 20.83 949 10.40
6 Plant & Machinery 727148 408.51 388.88 7291.11 4236.17 509,33 - 474551 2545.60 3035.30
7 Eleciric Installation 777.06 0.48 17.21 760,33 500.21 37.85 - 538.07 322326 276.85
8  |Generator Set 3.05 - - 3.05 3.03 .00 - 3.03 0.02
9 |Furniture & Fixtures 482.05 43 - 48248 434.52 5.99 - 440.51 41,97 47.52
10 |Computer 172.39 18.55 190.94 138.15 18.54 - 156.70 34.24 34.23
11 |LED Television 66.61 - - 66,61 50.14 3.08 - 53.22 13.38
12 [Vehicle @15% 197 92 65.83 221 261.54 166.66 18 80 - 185 46 76.08 31.26
13 |Office Equipment 41.03 - - 41.03 311 1.57 - 3328 7.75
14 |Saolar Power plant 343.00 - - 343.00 230.42 14,33 - 24475 98.25 112.58
SUB TOTAL |A] 13499.95 543,14 502.21 13540.89 720047 773.18 - 7973.65 5567.24 6298.95
11 Capital WIP - 773.05 - 773.05 - - - 773.05
IIT_|Intangible Assets
1 [ROC Filing Fees
2 |Copyright 0.61 - - 0.61 0.61 - = 0.61 -
3 Pre-Operative Exp 49.15 - - 99.15 9915 - - 99.15 -
4 Pre-Incorporation Expenses 20.50 - - 20.50 17.24 2.83 - 20.07 0.43
SUB TOTAL (B) 120.26 - - 120,26 117.00 2.83 - 119.83 0.43
TOTAL 13620.21 1316.20 502.21 1443420 7317.47 776.00 - 8093.47 6330.73 6302.21
PY. 13291.37 408.07 79.23 13620.21 6271.97 1052.66 7.16 7317.47 6302.21 7019.40

RSD Financs Litd.
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RSD Finance Limited

CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-10

Trade Pavables

Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2025

(Rs. In Lacs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 Years

Total

(i) MSME ;

(ii) Others 690.08

16.30

51.09

15.39

772.86

(1i1) Disputed dues- MSME 5

(iv) Disputed dues - Others C

Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2024

(Rs. In Lacs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particul
G Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 Years

Total

(i) MSME :

(i1) Others 527.29

34.08

16.46

580.19

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -

The Group has not paid any interest in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
additionally there are no interest amounts due as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 Rs. Nil ).

RSD Finance itd

Chief FIF%;‘I Officer

Company Secretary.
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED

Neotes to Cansolidated Financial § for the year ended March 31, 2025
Nate 11 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) ( Rs in Lacs)
As on 31st March, 2025 As on 31st March, 2024
A3 0n_228t hiarg e
Designate
i = d at fair Designated at fair
Particulars At Amortised Cost At e value Tihwough value Total At Amortised Cost i value through Tatal
profit or loss profit ar loss
through profit or loss
profit or
H)= @)=
: . $ (1)+{2}+(3) : 2 2 (13+{2)+(3)

(a)Term loans

(i)from banks 1579.48 - =] 1579.48 2477.97 - - 2477.97
(b)Loan repayable on demand - - - - —f - - - -
l(i\from other partics = = S | 3981 = z 3981
(c)L.oans from related partics 97.36| - - 97.36 97.36, - - 97.36)
(d] Cash Credit 431.12 - = 431,121 24.81 - - 24.Bl-|
Total (A) 2107.96] - - 2]0‘!.9% 1639.95 e - 2639.95
Sccured Borrowings 2010.60) - - 201060 2502.78 - - 2502.78
Unsecured Borrowings 97.36) 2 z 97 36| 137.17 - = 137 I?I
Total (B) 2107.96 - - 2 m?.gi 2639.95 2 - 2639.95!
Borrowings in India 2107.96 - - 2107.96 2639.95 - - 2639.95
Borrowings outside India - - - | - - - -
[Total (C) 2107.96 i - 2107.96] 2639.95 - - 2639.95

Cash Credil is seeured by way of
Primary Security

Exelusive charge by way of hypothication on entire current assets of company both present & future,
Cash Credit from Axis Bank secured by exclusive hypothecation charge on stock, book debis and all other
present & future, equitable mortgage of leaschold Jand admeasuring area around 0.88 acres located at Ramdas Bhaita Area, Bistupur, Jamshedpur along with building of "Hotel The Alcor” &

admeasuring area around 8.09 acres located at Mouza-Tiruldih, Khata No-62, Plot No-2, Saraikela Thana No. 148, Jharkhand in the name of "SIGMA HTS LLP". Cash Credit limits/ dues with Axis
Bank have been settled in full and hence there are no limits/dues wiih Axis Bank as on March 31 2024 towards "Hotel The Alcor”

current assets present and future, exclusive hypothecation charge on entire movable assels

Personal Guarantee
Personal guarantee of Mr. Rajeev Singh Dugal (Dircctor) and Mrs, Kawaljeet Dugal.

These loans are considered to have low risk based on credit evaluation undertaken by the Company. There is no histery of any defaults on these loans, The company regularly monitors to ensure that
these entities have enough liquidity which safegaurds the interets of the investors and lenders, Accordingly there is no Expected credit loss allowance on the aforesaid loans.

a) Term Loans from Axis Bank are secured by exclusive hypothecation charge on stock, book debts and all other current assets present and future, exelusive hypothecation charge on entire movable
assels present & future, equitable mortgage of leasehold land admeasuring area around 0.88 acres located at Ramdas Bhatta Area,

Bistupur, Jamshedpur along with building of "Hotel The Aleor” &
admeasuring area around 8.09 acres located at Mouza-Tiruldih, Khata No-62, Plot No-2, Saraikela Thana No. 148, Jharkhand in the name of "SIGMA HTS LLP". Term Loan limits/ dues with Axis
Bank have been settled in full and hence there are no limitsidues with Axis Bank as on March 31,2024 towards "Hotel The Alcor”

i. Term Loan having a limit of Rs. 1300 Lacs, repayable in 11 quarterly installments of Rs 40 Lacs. 8 quarterly installments of Rs 45 Lacs. 10 quarterly installments of Rs 50 Lacs commenced ffom
Dec’2018.
iL. Term Loan having a limit of Rs, 220 Lacs, repayable in 36 monthly installments commenced from July 2021 and it is completely repaid in June'24

iii. Term Loan having a limit of Rs. 600 Lacs, repayable in 24 monthly installments of Rs 5 Lacs. 24 monthly installments of Rs 7.5 Lacs. 24 monthly installments of Rs 8 Lacs. 12 quarterly
installments of Rs 9 Lacs commenced from June 2022,

iv. Term Loan having a limit of Rs. 113.73 Lacs, repayable in 120 monthly installments commenced from November 2023,

v. Term Loan having a limit of Rs. 1000 Lacs, repayable in 32 quarterly installments of 31.25 Lacs, commenced from Apr'2024.
b) Vehicle Loan from YES Bank are secured by hypothecation charge on Vehicles,

i. Term Loan sanctioned for Yaris Rs. 10 Laes, EMI of Rs. 16,358/~ commenced from Sep2019,

¢) Viehicle Loan from ICICI Bank are secured by hypothecation charge on Vehicles

i. Term Loan sanctioned for Creta Rs. 12 Lacs, EMI of Rs. 24,752/~ commenced from Feb2023.

d) Vehicle Loan from Union Bank of India are secured by hypothccation charge on Vehicles

1. Term Loan sanctioned for Lexus Rs. 40 Lacs, EMI of Rs. 72,105.15/- commenced from Sep2024,

¢) Loan of Rs. 4.50 Crore is Secured by way of Leveraging of [nvestment in Powerg

rid India Investment Lid. & Indiagrid Trust. Investment held under Investment in Quoted Shares and it is
completely repaid in June'24,
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Company Secretary.

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

RSD Finance Limited
_ CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-12
Current tax liabilities (Net)
Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024
(¥ in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
Provision for Tax 753.48 473.60
Total 753.48 473.60
Note-13
Provisions

Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024

( in Lacs) (in Lacs)
Provision for Substandard Assets 40.09 104.00
Provision for dividend 54.40 54.40
Provision for expenses 58.88 71.86
Total 153.38 230.26
Note-14

Deferred tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024

(X in Lacs) (X in Lacs)
Opening Balance 283.18 210.85
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation .35 -28.07
Investment and other financial instruments
Recognised through OCI 8.57 100.40
Recognised through Profit & Loss - -
Total 293.11 283.18
Note-15

Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024

RSD Finance Lid.

lal Officer

o

inan

~
v

F.
i

Chief

(¥ in Lacs) (X in Lacs)

Liability Against Salary 81.44 80.27
TDS Payable 32.07 9.93
EPF/ESIC Payable 5.29 461
GST Payable 20.31 1.59
Audit fees payable 6.44 7.11
Others Payables 84.69 84.47
Professional tax payable 0.30 0.24
Total 230.53

RSD FINANCE LIMITED




RSD Finance Limited
CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-16
Equity Share capital
Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024
(¥ in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
Authorised Capital
1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥5/- each
(P.Y. 1,30,00,000 Equity Shares of 5 /- each) 650.00 650.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,29,46,480 Equity Shares of ¥5/- each 647.32 647.32
(P.Y. 1,29,46.,480 Equity Shares of ¥5/- each)

Total 647.32 647.32

16.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning & end of the Reporting Perioc

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024

Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

(in Lacs) (in Lacs)

i i 9‘ ] (] ] )

Balance at the beginning of the 1,29.46,480 647.32 1,29,46,480 647.32
year
Add: Shares issued during the - = s s
Year
Balance outstanding at the end 1,29,46,480 647.32 1,29,46,480 647.32
of the year

16.2 Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares, specifying the number of shares held,

As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024
Name of the Shareholder No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
Rajeev Singh Dugal 80,89,080 62.48% 8089080 62.48%
K U Benefit Trust 15,82,000 12.22% 1582000 12.22%

16.3 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 25 per share (P.Y. 25 per share). Each shareholder is
eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

RSD Finance Ltd. For RSD FINANCE LTD.

Chist F".H&n%@fficer

Company Secretary.
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RSD Finance Limited
CIN: L17222JH1963PL.C013316

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-17
Other Equity
Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024
(¥ in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
Capital reserve account 1287.56 1287.56
Statutory reserve account 1375.09 1278.12
Surplus i.e. Balance in the
Statement of Profit & Loss a1 a8 b
General reserve account 5468.33 5468.33
Total 2054;;_;6 19233.23
Movement in other equity
Particulars As on March 31,2025 As on March 31,2024
(T in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
(a) Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 1287.56 1287.56
Addition during the year c -
1287.56 1287.56
(b) Statutory Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 1278.12 1115.99
Addition during the year 96.98 162.12
1375.09 1278.12
(c) Surplus i.e. Balance in the Statement of Profit & Loss
As per last Balance Sheet 11199.22 9785.19
Add: Total F?omprehenswe 1338.43 1627.74
Income during the Year
Add: P/L Appropriation 25.01 2.82
Add: Proposed Dividend -54.40 -54.40
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve -96.98 -162.12
12411.28 11199.22
(d) General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 5468.33 5468.33
Addition during the year .00
5468.33 5468.33
Total 20542.26 19233.23

RSD Finance Lid.

[ T R
Chinf Finangi:

Officer

RSD FINANCE LIMITED
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Note-18
Interest Income

Particulars Asat Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024

(Z in Lacs) (% in Lacs)
On Financial assets measured at Amortised cost:-
Interest on deposits with Banks 11.99 13.73
Interest on  Loans 198.00 181.50
Interest incame from investments 1362.30 745.91
Other interest Income 12,71 34.90
Total 1585.00 976.04
Note-19

Dividend Income

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024

(% in Laes) (% in Laes)
Dividend Income 70.12 79.45
Total 70.12 79.45
Note-20

Net gain on fair value changes

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024

(T in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
Net Gain/(Loss) on investments at FVTPL
[nvestments
Fair value loss- through P&L -Equity and Debt Mutual Fund 95.08 372.16
Total 95.08 372.16
Note-21

Sale of Finished Goods

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024

(in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
Finished goods 7119.34 4455.61
Total 7119.34 4455.61

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

sSD Finance L.id For RSD FINANCE LTD.
R lT‘.— ~irar -l

\ Qumﬁtr« Piewsd ';\:"

any Secretary.

. L3 -
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RSD Finance Lid.

‘or RSD FINANCE LTD.

j‘l"_

4 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-22

Particulars

Job work service
Room rental

Foods, Restaurant and banquet income
Rent on Flat

Less: Inter Company transactions

Note-23

Particulars

Net Gain on Sale of Financial Instruments

Total

Note-24

Particulars

Other Income

Total

Note-25

Particulars

Company Secretary.

Cost of raw material consumed

Raw material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases during the year

w.Less: Inventory at the end of the year
‘.—_‘ECosl of raw material consumed

=+

C/Changes in inventory of finished goods
“@lnventory at the beginning of the year

“Stock-in-trade
g‘ aWork in progress
;7 Finished goods

Zlnventory at the end of the year
_ Stock-in-trade

Work in progress

Finished goods

Quuajw}a Ditegal

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods

Total

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

Sale of Service

As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(% in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
1900.88 2267.55
678.11 603.92
1585.73 1586.00
1.92 1.89
4166.64 4459.36
35.57 31.35
4131.07 4428.01
Net Gain on sale of Financial Instruments
As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(T in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
207.61 517.12
207.61 517.12
Other Income
As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(% in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
292.09 292.89
292.09 292.89
Cost of Materials Consumed
As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(¥ in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
(A)
(i) 621.25 546.31
(ii) 4470.06 3453.51
(iii) 827.98 621.25
4263 .34 3378.57
(B)
(i) C -
{ii) & E
(iii) 377.43 83.27
377.43 83.27
(i) 2 7
(ii) 2 3
(iii) 433.86 377.43
433.86 377.43
-56.43 -294.16
4206.90 J084.41

RSD FINANCE LIMITED



RSD FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31. 2025

Note-26

Particulars

Opening Stock of Material
Add: Material Purchases

Less: Closing Stock of Material
Total

Note-27

Particulars

Salaries

Stipend

Contribution to PF and Other Funds
Director and Partner Remuneration
Staff & Labour Wellare Expenses
Total

Note-28
Particulars
Interest on borrowings

Interest on overdrall facilities

Total

Note-29

Particulars

Provision for Expenses

Total

Cost of Stores Consumed

Emplovee Benefit Expenses

Finance Cost

As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(T in Lacs) (Tin Lacs)
497.54 444.35
1368.16 1086.74
682.97 497 54
1182.73 1033.55
As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(T in Lacs) (Tin Lacs)
625.84 566.70
119.66 8361
33.47 30.82
169.20 139.20
44.96 26.06
993.13 846.39
As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(Tin Lacs) (T in Laes)
390.84 280.98
432 0.27
39&]7 281.25
As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(T in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
-63.91 -
-63.91 -

RSD FINANCE LIMITED

For RSD FINANCE LTD.

Dresn)

Company Secretary.
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-30
Other Expenses
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2025 As at Mar 31, 2024
(% in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
Administrative Expenses 4.03 2.50
Advertisement Expenses 345 0.44
Agricultural Expenses 5.44 9.45
Audit fees 2.58 2.58
Bad Debts 0.17 1.51
Bank Charges 13.59 10.10
Business Promotion Expenses 3.08 4.17
Commission Expense 54.48 20.36
Calibration Charges 4.65 3.77
Canteen Expenses 11.90 11.32
Conveyance & Travelling 35.88 51.59
CSR Expenses 24.30 9.89
Director Sitting Fees 0.94 0.31
Discount Allowed 0.03 0.15
Decoration Charges 10.10 9.83
Donation 1.10 0.97
Demat Charges 0.42 0.45
Labour Charges 628.39 49491
Filing Fees 0.16 0.00
Freight Inward 91.66 72.70
Fuel, Power and Light 1096.51 1093.98
Fees & Subscription 9.84 23.67
Fooding & Lodging Expenses 7.99 5.48
General Expenses 8.04 4.2_?;
Insurance Charges 21.02 20.8+
Interest on Statutory Dues 0.25 0.39J
Job Charges 295.70 [23_%
Legal Expenses 6.93 0.
Lab Expenses 13.95 15631
Loading & Unloading Expenses 4.85 -2
Listing Fees & Annual Charges 4.95 4,871
License and Permit fees 9.00 v )
Linen, Uniform Washing and Laundry Expenses 14.44 13.539)
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets - 17215
Loss on sale of Investment & AIF / Capital Gain 342.85 - ’é
Management and Upfront Fees 61.61 79.65
Municipal Maintanence Expenses 4.89 4.51 ,
Membership and Renewal Fees 474 -9
Misc. & Office Expenses 15.96 = ‘*:3
Net Loss on Fair Value under IND AS 107.47 5%
Office Maintenance 14.54 34.73%
Operation & Maintenance Charges for Salar 3.10 4.53¢~
Postage ,Telegram & Telephone 0.49 18.48(;
Power & Fuel - £
Printing & Stationery 5.33 4.94)
Professional Fees & Legal Expenses 89.17 80.51
Property Sale Related Expenses s 1 |‘23Q
Quality Service Charges - . 0
Rent, Rates & Taxes 22.46 55.72(L
Rent & Logistics Charges 40.86 -
Repair & Maintenance 263.01 240.65
Round OfT 0.00 -
Vehicle Hire Charges 47.44 47.62
ROC charges 0.20 0.10
STT charges 4.98 3.92
Security Service 71.20 64.84
Telephone, Internet and Cable TV Expenses 15.60 -
Transportation. Hire, Loading & Unloading Charges 3.82 2.06
Total 3509.55 2,668.62
Less: Inter company transactions 35.57 31.35
Total 3473.98 2637.27

—
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RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note-31

On the basis of information available with the company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under
"The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MEMED') Act, 2006". The unpaid amount has been disclosed

in Note No. 10 of the Financial Statement.

Note-32
Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 108- Segment Reporting:

Information about Primary Business Segments

(Rs. In Lacs)

::; Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

1 Segment Revenue
(a) Investment & Finance related activities 1,699.43 1631.78
(b) Job work & Manufacturing activities 94 87 102.47
{c) Hotel business related activities 2,726.10 2,764.38
{d) Heat Treatment Activity 9,015.49 5,654.00
Total 13,535.89 11,152.63
Less: Inter segment Revenue 35,57 31.35
Net Sale! Income from operations 13,500.32 11,121.28

2 Segment Results (Profit) (+) / (-) Loss before tax & Interest
(a) Investment & Finance related activities 995,64 1,333.01
(b) Job work & Manufacturing activities 25.52 33.70
(c) Hotel business related activities 845.62 949.49
(d) Heat Treatment Activity 1,064.69 150.87
Total 2,931.47 2,467.07
Less: Interest 395.17 28125
Total Profit before Tax 2,536.30 2,185.82

3 Segment Assets (Including Godwill)
(a) Investment & Finance related activities 14,440.74 14,203.16
{b) Job work & Manufacturing activities 137.52 131.87
(c) Hotel business related activities 7,182.62 6,559.10
{d) Heat Treatment Activity 7,486.35 6,650.98
{e) Unallocable 5
Total Segment Assets 20,247.23 27,545.11
Less: Intersegment Elimination - -
Add: Unallocated Corporate Assets - -
Total Assets 29,247.23 27,545.11

4 Segment Liabilities
(a) Investment & Finance related activities 544.34 812.03
{b) Job work & Manufacturing activities 93.48 85.54
{c) Hotel business related activities 673.99 711.97
{d) Heat Treatment Activity 2,999,50 2,785.86
{g) Unallocable
Total Segment Liabilities 4,311.31 4,395.40
Less: Intersegmant Elimination =
Add: Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 5 B
Total Liabilities 4,311.31 4,395.40
Note-33

Earnings Per Share (EPS):

No of Ordinary Shares at the Beginning of the year
No of Ordinary Shares at the End of the year
Weighted Average No. of Ordinary Shares
Quitstanding during the year

Profit (Loss) after tax for calculation of Basic EPS (Rs. In Lacs)
Profit (Loss) after tax for calculation of Diluted EPS (Rs. In Lacs

Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.)
Diluted Earnings per share (in Rs.)

Current Year

RSD FINANCE LIMIT

Previous Year

1,29.46,480 1,29.46.480
1,29.46,480 1.29.46,480
1.29.46.480 1.29.46.480
1306.96 2038.83
1806.96 2038.83
13.96
13.96

=1

For RSD FINANCE LTD.
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RSD Finance Limited

Sl Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
lote-

Related party disclosures as required under IND AS - 24 on "Related Party Disclosure” notified by the Central Government.

Subsidiaries Companies Precision Automotive Pyt Lid.
S R P Qil Private Limited
Step Down Subsidiary Sigma HTS LLP
Key Management Personnel Rajeev Singh Dugal (Managing Director)

Upneet Dugal (Executive Director)

Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal (Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director)
Harsh Kumar Pandey (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Sukant Bari (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Ravi Joshi (Chief Financial Officer)

Aditya Srivastava (Ex - Company Secretary}

Subhajita Biswal (Company Secretary)

Malkeet Singh Saini (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Pradeep Kumar Khosla (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Ralative of Key Management Personnel Kashvi Dugal

Enterprise Over

Which KMP is able to Premium Residency Pvt Lid.
Exercise Significant Reflexallen India Pvt, Ltd.
Influence:

Jharkhand Agro Farms
Ban Infra & Developers LLP

Transactions during the Year Current Year Previous Year

Rs in Lacs Rs in Lacs
Sale of Goods/Services
From SKEP il Pyt Lid 23.96 20.95
To SIGMA HTS LLP 12.7% B.79
To Precision Automotive Pyl Lid. 5.02 5.58
To RSD Finance Ltd, 6.15 6.58
From SIGAMA HTS LLP 11.61 10,40
To SRP Oil Pvt, Lid, 11.61 10.40
From RSD Finance Ltd 10.67 10,09 C:l :.a_-‘
To Reflexallen India Pvt. Lid, 10.67 10.09 };—J & B
Director Remuneration 145.20 115.20 L P_J
Mr.Rajeev Singh Dugal 42.00 24.00 O \-—I{ 8
Ms.Upneet Dugal 22.20 22.20 =z 2]
Ms. Kashvi Dugal 36.00 30.00 < {3—}
Ms. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal 45.00 39.00 = EC:G
Partner Remuncration 24,00 24.00 L =
Mr.Rajeev Singh Dugal 24.00 24.00 (1553 g
Salary during the year 12.00 12.00 g Y &)
Ms, Kashvi Dugal 12.00 12,00 L
Managerial Remuneration 18.54 16.83 Ll?
Ravi Joshi (Chief Financial Officer) 12.90 12.00
Aditya Srivastava (Ex - Company Sccretary) - 3.34
Subhajita Biswal (Company Secretary) 5.64 1.54
Sitting Fees 0.80 0.26 ) b=
Sushil Kumar Khowala (Ex-Independent Director) i 0.10 - o
Harsh Kumar Pandey 0.22 0.10 i &
Sukant Bari 0.06 0.06 ® (8]
Malkeet Singh Saini 0,30 - 0 Coos
Pradeep Kumar Khosla 0.22 - e ~ st
Interest Paid on Capital Current A/c 199.20 - © f‘.:
Rajeev Singh Dugal 9.60 e 5_5 =
Precision Automotive Pyt Lid, 189.60 _ I ku:
OQutstanding balance as on 31.03.2025 108,59 116.85 M 2
Premium Residency Private Limited ( Borrowings) 04.36 94.36 {r;} E-"‘)
Jharkhand Agro Farms (Advance Refundable) 300 3.00 » f
Kashvi Dugal (Expenses Payable) 2.24 2.40 Q—
Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal (Expenses Payable in CY and Advance in PY) 2.19 (0.27)
Rajeev Singh Dugal (Epxenses Payable) 4,44 15.64
Upneet Dugal (Expenses Payable) 1.05 0.70
Ravi Joshi (Expenses Payable) 0.44 0.43
Subhajita Biswal (Expenses Payable) 0.50 0.32
Reflexallen India Pyt Ltd. (Trade receivables) 037 027




Note-35

RSD Finance Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

The title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the respective entities as at the
current and previous balance sheet date except the followings:-

ncial Officer

Relevant line item in Description of item of property Gross Carrying| Title Deeds Held | Whether Title Deed | Property Held Since | Reason for Not Being
Balance Sheet Value (Rs in In the Name of Holder is a Which Date Held in the name of
Lacss) promoter, director the company/entity
or relative of
promoter/director
or employee of
promoter/director?
The possession and
original agreement to
sale, of the properly, is
in the name of the RSD
Property, Plant & Flat No. F-401 & F-404 Located at MLP. i i X Finance Ltd. Further,
5 ol City. Adityapur, Dist. Seraikella-Kharsawan 00 | AT RMILGERS " WIS Lol aedk il be
registered in the name
of the company once
slate povt's policy on
registry is changed
Note-36
Additional information as required under Regulation 52(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 (Amended) as presented in
5. No Particulars AT Ax it 1
S March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Debt-equity ratio (no. of times) 0.08 0.11
2 Debt service coverage ratio NA NA }
3 Interest service coverage ratio NA NA D =
4 Qutstanding redeemable preference shares (quantity and value) NA NA 5 d‘ E
5 Capital redemption reserve (2 in Lags) NA NA W ®
Debenture redemption reserve (¥ in Lacs) 5] t‘i 8
Pursuant to the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules, = [3_09
& 2019 dated August 16, 2019, the Company being a NonBanking Financial Nk NA f( >
Company is exempted from the requirement of creating Debenture _é %
Redemption Reserve in respect of Secured Redeemable Non-Canvertible L (=
Debentures issued through public issue and under private placement 0 E
7 Net worth (2 in Lacs) 24935.92 23.149.71 ) 8
8 Net profit after tax (2 in Lacs) 1781.47 1.740.29 o
9 Farnings per share:  Basic 13.96 15.75 bl
Diluted 13 96 15.75 (N
10 Currenl ratio (no. of times) NA NA
11 Long term debt to working capital (no. of times) NA NA
12 Bad debts to Account receivable ratio NA NA
13 Current liability ratio (no. of times) NA NA ,
14 Total debts to total assets 0.07 0.10 T
15 Debiors wmover 0.03 0.03 3
16 Inventory turnover 0.17 0.17
17 Operating margin (%) NA NA o
18 Net profit margin (%) 0.13 016 o)
19 Sector specific equivalent ratios NA NA {E
o
Note-37 g aid
Disclosure of Fair Value of Investment Property : L L
On transition to IND AS. the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at D L:c;
April 1, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. As a result of 0 5
the above decision taken by the company, the company is not required to get its valuation done and hence the question of valuation being done by a L't’

registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 does not arise.

Note-38

Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipments
The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the current er previous financial year. Hence the

disclosure as to the re-valuation is done by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules,

2017 does not arise.

RSD FINANCE L




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
Note-39
Loans & Advances to Directors, Promoters KMPs & Related Parties
The Group has nol granted any loans or advances in the nature of loan outstanding 1o any of its Promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personals and related parties

Note-40
Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) / Intangible assets under development (ITAUD)
The Group has Capital Work in Progress Account in SIGMA HTS LLP which pertains to current year only.

Note-41

Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions ( Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988 and the rules made thereunder,

Note-42

Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets:

The Group has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and quarterly returns
or statement of current assets filed by the company entity with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books
of accounts.

Note-43

Wilful Defaulter

The Group has not been declared as a Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

Note-44

Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has reviewed transaction to identify if there are any transaction with struck off companies to the extent
information is available on struck off companies, there are no transaction with struck off Companies,

Note-45
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
‘The Group do not have any pending charges or satisfaction that are vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Note-46

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Note-47
Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial

Note-48

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

A. The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

B. The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) ar entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

C. The Group has used the barrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at
the balance sheel date.

Note-49
Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current or previous financial year,

RS = [y
RSD F .uulnce Ltd. For RSD FINANCE LTD.
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Note-50
Undisclosed Income

RSD Finance Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessmenls under the
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Note-51

Previous year's figure have been regrouped/reclassified / re-arranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's

classilication/disclosure.

Note-52

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest Lacs of rupees upto two decimal places.

For SDY & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 016850C

Jay Prakash Heerwal
Partner £
M. No. 415136

Date: 'J—V] U.rf 2025

Place: Jamshedpur

UDIN: 2.5Y)C I3 BRMLXWEL>2 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For RSD &R/

RajedAsIngh Dups
I\Eﬁ‘ég}ﬁémtectm
DIN: 00052037

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financigl Qficer

oD Finance Limitsds 1y EINANCE LIMITED

Upneet Dugal DIRECTOR
Director
DIN: 07680726

< Bran O

Ltel. FO?@D,;,F! :

Subhajita Biswal

CompriyiSt¥eaRCretary
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R S D FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316

Registered Office: H. No - 4, The Alcor Hotel, Ramdas Bhatta,
Bistupur, Jamshedpur, Purbi Singhbhum, Jharkhand -831001

Tel. No: +91 7280009199, Email address: rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com,
Website: www.rsdfinancelimited.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be signed and handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Registered Folio / DP ID
& ClientID :

Name and Address
of the Shareholder :

Joint Holder(s) :

No. of Shares :

I/ We hereby record my/ our presence at the 62rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of the Company held on
Friday, 26th September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. at H. No- 4, The Hotel Alcor, Ramdas Bhatta, , Bistupur, Jamshedpur Purbi
Singhbhum, Jharkhand -831001

Member’s Folio/DP ID- Client ID No. Member’s/proxy name in Block letters Member’s/ proxy’s signature

Notes:

1. A member/proxy/authorised representative wishing to attend the meeting must complete this Admission Slip
before coming to the Meeting and hand it over at the entrance.

2. If you intend to appoint a proxy, please complete, stamp, sign and deposit the Proxy Form at the Company’s
Registered Office at least 48 hours before the Meeting.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN

(EVOTING EVENT NO.) USER ID PASSWORD/PIN

136408

NOTE: Members are requested to read the Notice of the 62nd Annual General Meeting, being sent herewith, in respect of
the instruction for voting through electronic means. The voting period starts from 9:00 am on September 22, 2025 and
ends at 5:00 pm on September 25, 2025.
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RSD FINANCE LIMITED

CIN: L17222JH1963PLC013316
Registered Office: H. No - 4, The Alcor Hotel, Ramdas Bhatta,
Bistupur, Jamshedpur, Purbi Singhbhum, Jharkhand -831001

Tel. No: +91 7280009199, Email address: rsdfinance.ltd@gmail.com,
Website: www.rsdfinancelimited.com

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered Address :

E-mail Id :

Folio No./Client Id:

DPID:

I/We, being the member(s) of RSD Finance Limited holding shares, hereby appoint:

1) Name
Address:
Email Id : Signature: , or failing him/ her

2) Name
Address:
Email Id : Signature: or failing him/ her

3) Name
Address:
Email Id : Signature: or failing him/ her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 62" Annual General Meeting of the members of
the Company to be held on Friday, 26t September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. at H. No- 4, The Hotel Alcor, Ramdas Bhatta, Bistupur, Jamshedpur,
Purbi Singhbhum, Jharkhand -831001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 together
with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Ms. Kawaljeet Kaur Dugal (DIN: 00052037), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment as a Director.

3. Appointment of Statutory Auditor of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
1. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor.

2. Re-appointment of Managing Director.

3. Continuation of Mr. Malkeet Singh Saini as a Non-Executive Independent Director
of the Company attaining 75 years as on May, 2026.

Signed this day of of 2025 (Affix Revenue Stamp)

Signature of the Shareholder:

Signature of Proxy holder:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not
less than 48 hours before commencement of the Meeting.
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Note:

1
2)

3)

4)
5)
6)

7)

8)

A proxy need not be a member of the Company and shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.

Appointment of a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he wishes so. When a Member appoints
a Proxy and both the Member and Proxy attend the Meeting, the proxy will stand automatically revoked.

This is only optional. Please put a ‘V” in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the box. If you leave the ‘For’ or
‘Against’ column blank against any of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote at the meeting in the manner he/she thinks
appropriate.**

In case of Joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient but names of all the joint holders should be stated.

Undated proxy form will not be considered valid.

This form will be valid only if it is duly completed in all respects, properly stamped and submitted as per the applicable law.
Incomplete form or form which remains unstamped or inadequately stamped or form upon which the stamps have not been
cancelled will be treated as invalid.

This form of proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing, or if the appointer is a body
corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorized by it.

If Company receives multiple proxies for the same holding of a member, the proxy which is dated last will be considered valid; if
they are not dated or bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple proxies will be treated as invalid.

182



ROUTE MAP AND PROMINENT LAND MARK FOR EASY LOCATION OF
THE VENUE OF THE 62N° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Y325, 11.07 AM Tatanagar Junction to Tha Alcor Hotel - Google Maps

Tatanagar Junction, Tata Nagar, Khasmahal, Drive 57 km, 16 min
Jugsalai, Jamshedpur, Jharkhand 8371007 to The Alcor Hotel,
Holding No .4, Ram Das Bhatta Cir, New Rani Kudar, Bistupur,
Jamshedpur, Jharkhand 831001

Google Maps
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